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Letter from the Chairman
董事長的話

董事長的話
Letter from the
Chairman
秉持財務穩健及永續經營理念，持續深耕
壽險市場，成為最值得信賴的保險公司。
We will continue to apply the principles
of sound financial management and
sustainable development. We will
continue to operate in insurance
market and strive to become the most
trusted insurance company.
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015年間，因世界多國持續推動寬鬆貨幣政策、
大陸經濟呈現疲態、國際原油及黃金價格下

跌、美國升息及美元強勢等因素，造成全球經濟變
動劇烈。台灣壽險業持續開放業務及鼓勵競逐亞洲
盃等多項政策，中國人壽除積極投入電子商務之發
董事長 Chairman & CEO

王銘陽 Alan Wang

展，亦首波取得國際保險業務分公司OIU執照，為
未來的發展奠定穩健成長基石。

中國人壽在2015年新契約保費收入達新台幣831億元，市場排名由上年度第六名躍升至第四名；稅前純益
為106.8億元，稅後純益為91.7億元，每股稅後盈餘為2.75元，獲利再創歷史新高；資本適足率達350%以
上，為大型保險公司最高；轉投資的大陸建信人壽，自2011年到 2015 年底，短短4.5年，總資產成長約12
倍，淨利潤成長約13倍，總保費收入增長25倍，並於8月核准籌建資產管理公司，積極朝向全方位保險集
團發展布局。2015年中國人壽在財務及業務各方面皆展現優異的績效。
中國人壽亦擁有嚴謹的公司治理及風險管理機制，秉持著自律及專業理念，不因追求短期績效而忽略長期
穩健經營，是台灣壽險業唯一於2014及2015年連續獲選《富比士》全球兩千大企業(Forbes Global 2000)的
公司；臺灣證券交易所及中華民國證券櫃檯買賣中心共同委託證券暨期貨市場發展基金會辦理之上市上櫃
企業公司治理評鑑，於105年4月8日公布第2屆公司治理評鑑排名，在超過 800家上市公司激烈競爭下，中
國人壽連續2年獲前5%排名之殊榮為中國人壽積極推動公司治理成果之最佳肯定。
氣候、環境、社會型態及人口結構的改變，都是企業永續發展必須面臨的課題，中國人壽秉持著開放、創
新的思維，在變動的時局中提供更符合民眾需求的產品及服務。進入2016年，聯合國所訂定的的17項永續
發展目標（Sustainable Development Goals, 簡稱SDGs）也正式啟動，SDGs將是聯合國為未來15年全球
永續發展規劃的藍圖，也是中國人壽在邁向永續發展道路上所追求的方向。
展望未來，中國人壽仍本著永續發展及穩健經營的一貫理念，做到組織業務持續成長、股東價值不斷提
升，提供給保戶更堅實的保障及專業服務、培養世代傳承人才，信守對保戶、股東及同仁承諾的初衷，與
社會創造共享價值，為經濟發展帶來正面的能量，貫徹中國人壽的永續之道。
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n the year of 2015, there are dramatic changes in the global economy: many
countries in the world continued loose monetary policy; China's economy showed
signs of slowdown; prices of international crude oil and gold declined; US interest
rate was increased with a strong dollar and other factors. In Taiwan, life insurance
industry continued its open door policy for business and were encouraged to compete
for the Asian Cup and many other policies. Besides being actively involved in the
development of e-commerce, China Life also obtained OIU license of international
insurance business in the first round laying solid foundation for future growth.
China Life's first year premium reached NT $ 83.1 billion in 2015, jumping from sixth
to fourth place in ranking. Pre-tax net profit was NT$10.68 billion. After-tax net income
was NT $9.17 billion and after-tax EPS was NT$ 2.75 reaching a new high record
in profit. The capital adequacy rate of China Life was more than 350%, the highest
among large insurance companies. In China, CCB Life, a China Construction Bank
insurance subsidiary in which we have an equity investment, showed significant
growth from 2011 to the end of 2015. Its total assets increased about 12 times;
net profit increased about 13 times, and the total premium income had a growth of
25 times in just 4.5 years. It was approved to build asset management companies
in August 2015, actively becoming all-round insurance group. China Life showed
excellent performance in insurance and financial business.
In China Life we have strict corporate governance and risk management mechanism.
We continued to focus on long-term sustainable growth rather than being distracted
by short-term profitability while upholding the highest standards of discipline and
professionalism. We are the only one life insurance company in Taiwan that has
made the Forbes Global 2000 list in 2014 and 2015 consecutively. Last year, we
performed strongly in corporate governance evaluation of publicly traded companies
held by Securities and Futures Institute and jointly commissioned by Taiwan Stock
Exchange and the OTC exchange. The ranking of the 2nd evaluation of corporate
governance was published on April 8, 2016. In the high competition of more than 800
listed companies, China Life is the only insurer ranked the top 5%. This is the best
affirmation of corporate governance in China Life.

■進入2016年，聯合國所訂定的的
17項永續發展目標（Sustainable
Development Goals, 簡稱SDGs）
也正式啟動，SDGs將是聯合國為
未來15年全球永續發展規劃的藍
圖，也是中國人壽在邁向永續發展
道路上所追求的方向。
■The 17 sustainable development
goal s set by U ni ted N a ti ons
(Sustainable Development Goals,
referred SDGs) will officially
start in 2016. SDGs will be the
global blueprint for sustainable
development planning for the next
15 years in United Nations, they
are also the directions we will
pursue in sustainable development.

Companies that pursue sustainable development must face changes in climate,
environment, social patterns and demographic structures. Upholding an open,
innovative thinking, China Life provides products and services that are more in line with
public demands in rapidly changing environment. The 17 sustainable development
goals set by United Nations (Sustainable Development Goals, referred SDGs) will
officially start in 2016. SDGs will be the global blueprint for sustainable development
planning for the next 15 years in United Nations, they are also the directions we will
pursue in sustainable development.
Looking ahead, we will continue to apply the principles of sound financial management
and sustainable development. We will grow in organization and businesses, increase
value for our investors, provide full protection as well as high-quality insurance services
for our policyholders, create talent pools for leadership succession, keep our promises
to our shareholders, customers and colleagues and create shared-value with our
societies. We will bring positive energy for economic development and implement
sustainable way of doing business at China Life.
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Letter from the President
總經理的話

總經理的話
Letter from the
President
以客戶需求為導向，積極提供多元化專業
服務，並善盡企業社會責任，持續秉持自
律理念，落實有效風險管理。
China Life provides demand-oriented
service to its customers and actively
provide a wide range of professional
services to fulfill corporate social
responsibility. We continue to uphold
the concept of self-regulation and
implement effective risk management.

中

國人壽近年來財務、業務屢創新高，良好的
經營績效歸功於我們堅持長期穩健的經營理

總經理 President

郭瑜玲 Yu Ling Kuo

念並擁有優秀的專業經營團隊。2015年新契約保
費收入達新台幣831億元，總保費收入約1,622億
元，表現持穩；稅前純益為106.8億元，稅後純益

為91.7億元，再創歷史新高，公司整體經營績效及獲利持續穩健成長。
中國人壽始終以嚴謹的態度控管風險與成本，不斷強化公司治理，並持續深耕及發展多元化行銷通路。隨
數位金融時代來臨，中國人壽於2015年成立電子商務及資訊治理專責部門，將在資訊安全無虞的前提下持
續推動包括電子商務、大數據運用等各項創新服務，善用網路服務的即時性、行動性及互動性，將保障的
觀念、產品及服務延伸至各個角落，讓保戶體驗中國人壽無所不在的關懷及服務。商品方面，隨著台灣邁
入高齡化社會，醫學科技發達，國人壽命延長，中國人壽除了壽險、年金、健康險、意外險等既有商品線
外，也加強推動多重保障的全方位長期照護保險及退休規劃商品，並導入健康管理機制，宣導正確觀念，
協助民眾快樂享受生活。財務方面則持續落實風險管理，堅持資訊揭露透明度，並採取穩健的投資策略，
以強化財務健全。
中國人壽長期致力於企業社會責任，2014企業社會責任報告書，榮獲「台灣TOP 50企業永續報告獎」金
融及保險業銀獎的殊榮，企業社會責任是需要長期持續且一步一腳印的累積，我們專注於「We Share We
Link」品牌核心價值，將秉持此項精神，積極參與照顧弱勢團體、推動微型保險，已於2015年與宜蘭縣政
府共同合作照顧全縣境內低收入戶家庭，提供團體微型保險的保障，更持續推動公益活動，匯集更多力量
共襄盛舉，攜手扶助弱勢，讓更多關係人與弱勢族群受益。為強化社會參與的廣度與深度，中國人壽亦訂
定「企業社會責任實務守則」及「環保節能管理規範」，完成主要職場的ISO14064-1執行溫室氣體排放盤
查，以及資料中心導入ISO27001資訊安全認證。在在顯示中國人壽推動企業社會責任、進行永續經營的決
心。
回顧2015年，中國人壽能夠再次締造優異成績，仰賴全體股東與保戶的支持與信賴及全體員工戮力同心。
展望未來，中國人壽仍將持續推出人才培育計畫，延攬更多具有新思維的人才，突破既有框架，攜手打造
未來，讓更多傑出人才根留台灣。此外，我們亦將戮力於落實風險管理，強化公司治理，穩健的邁向永續
經營之路，成為社會大眾心目中最值得信賴的保險公司。
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e have been able to report record profit and sound business performance over
the past few years attributed by our sustainable approach to management and
good professional management teams. In 2015 first year premium was NT$ 83.1
billion, and the total premium income was about NT$ 162.2 billion. Pre-tax net profit
was NT$ 10.68 billion, and after-tax net income was NT$9.17 billion, hitting a record
high. The company's overall operating performance and profit continued strong
growth.
Throughout the years, we at China Life have maintained strict management of risks
and costs. We constantly strengthen corporate governance and develop diversified
marketing channels. With the coming of digital financial era, e-commerce and
information governance department established at China Life in 2015.Under the
premise of information security, we will continue to promote e-commerce, use of big
data and other innovative services. Taking advantages of immediacy, mobility and
interactivity of web services, we will spread the concept of security, products and
services to the various corners in the island, so that our policyholders can experience
the ubiquitous care and services of China Life. As Taiwan entered aging society with
highly-developed medical science and increased life expectancy, in addition to life
insurance, annuities, health insurance, accident insurance and other existing product
lines, China Life also promote the full range of multiple long-term care insurance and
retirement planning products. We also introduce health management mechanism and
distribute correct concept to help people enjoy a happy life. In financial aspects, we
continue to implement risk management, adhere to information transparency, and
take a prudent investment strategy to strengthen financial soundness.
China Life's has committed to corporate social responsibility in the long term. The
corporate social responsibility report of 2014 won silver award of "Taiwan TOP 50
Corporate Sustainability Report Award" in finance and insurance sector. Corporate
social responsibility needs to be sustained for long-term and be carried on step by
step. With focus on the core brand value of "We Share We Link", we will uphold this
spirit, actively participate in care of vulnerable groups and promote micro-insurance
policies. We cooperated with Yilan county government to take care of low-income
families within the county in 2015, providing group and micro-insurances for protection.
We also continued to promote charitable activities, bringing together more forces
to help the disadvantaged, so that more related parties and disadvantaged groups
can benefit. To strengthen the breadth and depth of community participation, China
Life also set "Corporate Social Responsibility Code of Practice" and "environmental
protection and energy-saving management practices," and completed ISO 14064-1
major workplace greenhouse gas emissions check. Our data center also introduced
ISO 27001 information security certification. These all show our resolution to promote
corporate social responsibility and carry out sustainable development at China Life.

■回顧2015年，中國人壽能夠再次
締造優異成績，仰賴全體股東與保
戶的支持與信賴及全體員工戮力同
心。展望未來，中國人壽仍將持續
推出人才培育計畫，延攬更多具有
新思維的人才，突破既有框架，攜
手打造未來，讓更多傑出人才根留
台灣。
■L ooking back the year of 2015,
China Life delivered excellent
performance once again because
of support and trust from our
shareholders and policyholders
and great efforts and cooperation
of our employees. Looking ahead,
China Life will continue to launch
personnel training program to
recruit more people with new
thinking, breaking the existing
framework, and work to build the
future, so that more outstanding
talents can stay in Taiwan.

Looking back the year of 2015, China Life delivered excellent performance once again
because of support and trust from our shareholders and policyholders and great efforts
and cooperation of our employees. Looking ahead, China Life will continue to launch
personnel training program to recruit more people with new thinking, breaking the
existing framework, and work to build the future, so that more outstanding talents can
stay in Taiwan. In addition, we will also do our best to implement risk management
and strengthen corporate governance. We will carry on sustainable development and
become the most trusted insurance company in our society.
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About China Life
公司概況

經營理念
Vision and Values

中

國人壽成立50餘年來致力於「創造保戶、股東、員工與社會最大的利益與價值，成為最值得信賴的
保險公司」。透過謹慎的風險管理及穩健的經營，積極回應利害關係人，從公司治理、社會、環境各

面向發展中國人壽的永續經營目標。為達此一目標，中國人壽極力於內部推廣企業願景並形塑企業文化，
要求每位員工在日常工作中予以落實。中國人壽一直保有腳踏實地、專業穩健的特質，並以健全的財務結
構與嚴謹的風險管理深得投資人信賴。未來我們將持續貫徹這樣的經營理念，發揮高度的執行力及團隊合
作、互助精神，與股東、保戶、中壽員工與整體社會一同邁向未來。
中國人壽的品牌精神強調「Share」&「Link」兩大核心價值。企業標誌上的三道弧線象徵中國人壽最重視
的保戶、股東與員工彼此緊密連結、共同與社會及環境邁向永續，並以開創與熱忱的紅色、沉穩專業的灰
色展現不斷躍進的企業特質。
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S

ince it was founded 50 years ago, China Life has devoted itself to generating maximum value for
policyholders, shareholders, employees and society, and becoming the most reliable insurance

company. Guided by a solid framework of risk management and operation management, China continues
to work for long-term sustainability through further development in aspects of corporate governance,
society, and environment. For the ultimate goal, we keep promoting the corporate vision internally and
ask all employees to realize it to daily works. With a prudent corporate culture, solid financial structure
and strictly risk management, China Life earns trusts from investors. Going forward, we will keep up the
management philosophy to build a better future with our shareholders, policyholders and employees.
“We share, We Link” is the core values of Chin life’s brand. The three curved lines with red and grey
colors on our corporate logo, presenting the strong connections between policyholders, shareholders and
employees, and it will lead the three parties to move forward to a sustainable future, with creative and
passionate spirits and a decent corporate culture.
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About China Life
公司概況

公司簡介
Company Profile

中

國人壽成立於1963年，並於1981年更名為「中國人壽保險股份有限公司」，總部設立於台北市敦化
北路122號，並於1995年正式於臺灣證券交易所掛牌上市，股票代碼：2823。為提供保戶更周全、快

速之服務，除在台北市敦化北路122號設置總公司外，亦在全台遍佈營業據點與銷售人員，以提供更即時、
便利與貼心的服務。現任董事長王銘陽先生以專業經理人的身分開始接手中國人壽，除倚重既有員工，亦
引進新經理人，建立以風險管理為核心競爭力的專業團隊，開啟了中國人壽經營之新頁。秉持長期經營理
念，透過合宜的投資策略，使中國人壽成為業界少數無負利差的上市壽險公司。
2007年購併瑞士商環球瑞泰人壽台灣分公司，尤其2009年掌握危機入市的精髓，併購英國保誠人壽台灣主
要資產與營運業務，除了讓中國人壽的資產突破五千億，業務通路亦由三千名業務同仁，迅速成長為萬人
部隊，強化核心通路，形成更平衡發展的多元通路。在2008年金融風暴中，中國人壽當時未投資任何次級
房貸及不良資產，故無任何資產減損，是台灣大型保險公司中唯一成功避開次貸風暴的保險公司，受到投
資人及外界高度肯定。中國人壽除了深耕台灣之外，並積極開拓大陸市場，2010年透過與全球市值第二大
銀行的建設銀行合作，參股建信人壽持股19.9%，並以專業壽險經營實力，全力提供技術支援，為中國人
壽西進大陸奠定良好基石。近十年中國人壽各項財務表現屢創新高，更於2014年第一季總資產突破新台幣
兆元且持續成長中。
中國人壽秉持「為保戶、股東、員工及社會創造最大利益及價值，以成為最值得信賴的保險公司」為願
景，重視保戶權益，開發多元化滿足顧客需求之商品，並拓展多元化與貼心服務，如推廣「全民健保健康
存摺」、開辦國際保險業務(OIU) ；亦推出微型保險商品服務經濟較弱勢的民眾。一直以來持續精進公司治
理與內控機制，近年設立的「企業社會責任委員會」及「環境保護委員會」制訂相關規範，落實企業社會
責任的承諾。未來，中國人壽將秉持著「We Share We Link」的核心精神，以前瞻的經營思維、強健的財
務清償能力、嚴謹的公司治理及風險管理機制，與利害關係人攜手合作，創造共同價值，實踐企業長期經
營的願景，成為壽險業之標竿品牌。
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ounded in 1963, China Life was renamed China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. in
1981 with its headquarter office located on No. 122, Tun Hwa North Road of
Taipei City. The common stock of China Life began trading on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange in 1995 under the ticker 2823. To provide more comprehensive and
fast services, we have business locations and sales staff throughout the island
besides headquarter on No. 122 Dunhua North Road, Taipei. These enable us
to provide more immediate, convenient and attentive services. The current
chairman, Alan Wang, joined China Life as professional manager. While he drew
on the skills and abilities of the employees, he also brought in managers from the
outside to overhaul the risk management function in an unprecedented move for
China Life. Upholding the long-term business philosophy with use of reasonable
investment strategy, Wang made China Life one of the few listed life insurance
companies that didn't suffer from negative spread issues.
We acquired Taiwan branch of Switzerland-based Winterthur Life in 2007. In
2009 we acquired the assets and liabilities of UK-based Prudential plc's agency
distribution business in Taiwan for a symbolic NT$1 in 2009, which was hailed as a
bold yet astute move in a period of global turmoil. These deals not only contributed
to the growth of China Life's assets to more than NT$500 billion and bolstered
the agent force to more than 10,000 from 3,000, but also led to a more diversified
distribution network. During the global financial crisis in 2008, China Life did not
suffer from any asset impairment losses as we did not hold any sub-prime assets.
As a result, we gained widespread recognition from our investors and wider
society. Besides consolidating our presence in the home market, we have been
expanding our market in China. In 2010, we acquired a 19.9% stake in CCB Life,
the insurance subsidiary of China Construction Bank, then the world's secondlargest bank by market capitalization. We supported CCB life by our industry
knowledge, experience and technology. This partnership has since served as a solid
foundation from which we expand the China business. In recent decade, financial
performance of China Life reached record highs, and our total assets exceeded NT
$1 trillion in the first quarter of 2014 and it continues growth.

■現任董事長王銘陽先生以專業經理
人的身分開始接手中國人壽，除倚
重既有員工，亦引進新經理人，建
立以風險管理為核心競爭力的專
業團隊，開啟了中國人壽經營之新
頁。秉持長期經營理念，透過合宜
的投資策略，使中國人壽成為業界
少數無負利差的上市壽險公司。
■The current chairman, Alan Wang,
joined China Life as professional
m a n a g e r. W h i l e h e d r e w o n
the skills and abilities of the
employees, he also brought in
managers from the outside to
overhaul the risk management
function in an unprecedented
move for China Life. Upholding
the long-term business philosophy
with use of reasonable investment
strategy, Wang made China Life
one of the few listed life insurance
companies that didn't suffer from
negative spread issues.

China Life upholds the vision of “creating the best interests and values for
policyholders, shareholders, employees and the community to become the
most trusted insurance company”. We value interests of policyholders by
developing diversified products that meet customer demand and expanding
diversified and attentive service, such as the promotion of "My Health Bank,"
and the establishment of international insurance business (OIU). We also
launched micro-insurance products to serve more economically disadvantaged
people. We continue to sophisticate our corporate governance and internal
control mechanism. We set up "Corporate Social Responsibility Committee" and
"Environmental Committee" in recent years and formulate relevant regulations to
implement our commitment to corporate social responsibility. In the future, China
Life will uphold the core spirit of "We Share We Link". With the combination of
a forward-thinking, strong financial position and rigorous regimes of corporate
governance and risk management mechanism, we will work together with our
interested parties to create common values, practice long-term business vision to
become a benchmark brand of life insurance.
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About China Life
公司概況

董事會成員
Board of Directors
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董事長
Chairman

董事
Executive Director

董事
Executive Director

王銘陽

郭瑜玲

許東敏

Alan Wang

Yu Ling Kuo

Tony T.M. Hsu

前排中 Front centre

前排左二 Second left, front row

前排左 Left, front row

董事
Executive Director

董事
Executive Director

董事
Executive Director

黃淑芬

黃光揚

彭金隆

Stephanie Hwang

Huang, Kuang Yang

Jin-Lung Peng

後排右 Right, back row

後排左 Left, back row

後排右二 Second right, back row

獨立董事
Independent Director

獨立董事
Independent Director

獨立董事
Independent Director

龔天益

潘維大

許文彥

Louis T. Kung

Wei-Ta Pan

Wen-Yen Hsu

前排右二 Second right, front row

前排右一 Right, front row

後排左二 Second left, back row

經營團隊
Management Team

董事長
Chairman & CEO

總經理
President

執行副總經理
Senior Executive Vice President

王銘陽

郭瑜玲

許東敏

Alan Wang

Yu Ling Kuo

Tony T.M. Hsu

前排中 Front centre

前排左二 Second left, front row

前排右二 Second right, front row

執行副總經理
Senior Executive Vice President

資深副總經理
Executive Vice President

副總經理
Senior Vice President

黃淑芬

張 銘

蘇錦姿

Johnny Chang

Anne Su

前排左 Left, front row

前排右一 Right, front row

後排左二 Second left, back row

風控長
Chief Risk Officer

總稽核
Chief Auditor

會計部副總經理
Accounting Department Senior Vice President

黃之寧

林麗娟

謝雪萍

Winnie Huang

Judith Lin

Hsueh Ping Hsieh

後排右二 Second right, back row

後排右 Right, back row

後排左 Left, back row

Stephanie Hwang
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營運概況

營運概況
Results of Operations
2015年中國人壽整體經營表現依然有卓越亮眼的績效，總營業收入為新台幣2,039億元，獲利再創新高，稅
前純益106.8億元，稅後純益達91.7億元，每股稅後盈餘為2.75元，總資產達1兆2仟26億元，淨值為826億
元，較去年成長11%。
Our financial results in 2015 were reassuringly strong. Pre-tax net profit set an all-time high of
NT$10.68 billion, after-tax net profit was NT$9.17 billion or NT$2.75 per share, on revenue of
NT$203.9 billion. Total assets crossed the NT$1 trillion mark to reach NT$1.2026 trillion. Net book
value was NT$82.6 billion at year-end 2015. This is 11% growth compared with last year.

年度盈餘 Net Profit

總資產 Total Assets

單位：新台幣百萬元(Unit：NT$ million)

9,172

單位：新台幣百萬元(Unit：NT$ million)

1,202,622

1,107,268
6,512
5,999

4,207

977,602
846,210
730,326

4,579

2011 2012

2015
2013 2014

初年度保費 First Year Premium

總保費 Total Premium

單位：新台幣百萬元(Unit：NT$ million)

單位：新台幣百萬元(Unit：NT$ million)

162,158
177,246
154,455

114,385
83,888

91,719

83,143
144,789

68,992

2011 2012
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2015
2013 2014

2011 2012

125,319

2015
2013 2014

2011 2012

2015
2013 2014

總市值 Market Capitalization
單位：新台幣百萬元(Unit：NT$ million)

82,209

84,339

79,860

62,562
53,885

2011 2012

2015
2013 2014

近13年財務成長率 2002-2015 Growth of Key Financial Indicators
單位(Unit)：%

1,579

1,800

1,340

1,500
1,200

1,039

1,079

900
600
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506

400
0

益
股東權 lder's
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註：以2002年為基期，統計至2015年度
Note: data period is 2002-2015
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卓越成就
Highlights of 2015
◆中國人壽2015年盈餘再創新高，稅前純益新台幣106.8億元，稅後純益達91.7億元，每股稅後盈餘為2.75
元。
◆從2003年迄今是中國人壽騰飛躍進的黃金年代，至2015年總資產達新台幣1兆2仟26億元外，市值成長約
16倍，初年度保費成長約6倍，稅後純益成長逾13倍，表現亮眼、屢創新高。
◆中國人壽多次獲得主管機關、媒體與專業機構的肯定，於2014及2015年連續入榜，獲選《富比士》全球
兩千大企業(Forbes Global 2000)，為台灣唯一入選之壽險業；臺灣證券交易所及中華民國證券櫃檯買賣
中心共同委託證券暨期貨市場發展基金會辦理之上市上櫃企業公司治理評鑑，於105年4月8日公布第2屆
公司治理評鑑排名，在超過 800家上市公司激烈競爭下，中國人壽連續2年獲前5%排名之殊榮，為中國
人壽積極推動公司治理成果之最佳肯定。
◆高度透明的財務信息、嚴謹的公司治理及優異的經營績效，中國人壽獲得外資法人持續的認同，2015年
外資持股比例已超過百分之五十。
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◆In 2015, net profit set an all-time high with pre-tax profit of NT$10.68 billion,
after-tax income of $9.17 billion or NT$2.75 per share.
◆We experienced break-through growth from 2003. Total assets reached
NT$1.2026 trillion in 2015, market capitalization grew 16 times, first-year
premium increased 6 times, and net profit grew 13 times, all reaching record
high.
◆We gain recognition from authorities, professional organizations and the
media repeatedly. We are Taiwan’s only life insurance company that has
made the Forbes Global 2000 list in 2014 and 2015 consecutively. Last year,
we performed strongly in corporate governance evaluation of publicly traded
companies held by Securities and Futures Institute and jointly commissioned
by Taiwan Stock Exchange and the OTC exchange. The ranking of the 2nd
evaluation of corporate governance was published on April 8, 2016. In the high
competition of more than 800 listed companies, China Life is the only insurer
ranked the top 5%. This is the best affirmation of corporate governance in
China Life.
◆We enjoy strong support from foreign institutional investors in recognition of
our transparent financial reporting, prudent risk management and excellent
operating performance. Foreign investors' share ownership reached more than

■中國人壽2015年盈餘再創新高，
稅前純益新台幣106.8億元，稅後
純益達91.7億元，每股稅後盈餘為
2.75元。
■I n 2015, net profit set an alltime high with pre-tax profit of
NT$10.68 billion, after-tax income
of $9.17 billion or NT$2.75 per
share.

50% at the end of 2015.
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商品策略
Product Strategy

對

社會大眾提供生、老、病、死的保障，一直是中國人壽努力的經營方向。尤其近年來台灣已步入高齡
化社會，在國人生活品質與醫療照護不斷進步的情況下，平均餘命日漸延長，個人的退休準備與高齡

化面臨的醫療需求與長期照護更加受到重視。再加上國際金融平台的開放與合作，多元資產配置已成必然
趨勢，以上皆是中國人壽2015年的市場與商品策略重點規劃方向。
◆持續秉持穩健經營的理念，並積極拓展分期繳商品業務，以提升公司隱含價值。
◆持續推動定期定額繳費的投資型壽險/年金（含附加醫療與意外保障），並強化投資型商品平台，提供更
多元的資產配置，以滿足不同屬性客戶的商品需求。
◆配合國人特性，持續提供保障型商品及退休型商品，積極滿足客戶各種資產規劃需求。
◆以嚴謹的資產負債管理及風險控管，開發符合市場需求的利率變動型商品。
◆針對人口老化趨勢及長壽所伴隨之相關議題，持續經營退休規劃、醫療保障、重大疾病、疾病及意外殘
廢扶助與長期照顧等市場，並著重於全方位的健康醫療保險商品開發。
◆持續推動團體保險、意外傷害商品，以滿足保戶多元化的保障需求。
◆針對社會弱勢團體與特定族群，提供個人、集體與團體投保之微型意外保險，以提供其基本保障，並善
盡社會責任。
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hina Life makes it a top priority to provide protection that covers people for
their entire life and help them in the event of unforeseen illness and injury.

Thanks to advances in public health and the quality of life, Taiwan's population
has aged steadily while life expectancy has increased, making it ever more
important to plan for retirement, manage medical needs and arrange long-term
care. Meanwhile, liberalization and cooperation in international markets is making
multi-asset allocation a popular trend. Our market and product strategies aligned
with these demographic and market trends, and below is a brief description of
our 2015 product strategies:
◆Adhering to the principle of sustainability and driving sales of regular premium
insurance products to increase the company's embedded value.
◆Continuing to promote regular premium investment-linked life insurance and
annuities with added health and accidence protection, and strengthening
the product platform through which to offer a wide range of asset allocation

■配合國人特性，持續提供保障型商
品及退休型商品，積極滿足客戶各
種資產規劃需求。
■C ontinuing to offer protection
products and retirement plans that
relate to their preferences and
financial goals.

options that meet clients' financial objectives.
◆Continuing to offer protection products and retirement plans that relate to their
preferences and financial goals.
◆Managing assets and risks prudently and developing interest sensitive policies
in line with market demand.
◆Continuing to focus on retirement solutions, health insurance, critical illness
insurance, personal accident disability insurance and managed long-term
care to address the trends of aging population and longer life expectancy and
strengthening the portfolio of health insurance products.
◆Continuing to promote group insurance and personal accident insurance to
meet policyholders' diverse needs of protection.
◆Providing basic protection to disadvantaged communities with individual or
group accident microinsurance products as part of our social responsibility
focus.
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通路策略
Distribution Channel Strategy
中國人壽長期深耕包含業務員通路、銀行保險、經紀代理、理財服務、電子商務及團體
保險等六大通路，並由專業、經驗豐富的商品設計團隊，量身打造符合通路特性及其客
戶屬性需求的保險商品。
We operate through six main distribution channels, including the agent force,
bancassurance, brokers, financial advisors, e-commerce and group insurance.
Insurance products developed by our highly professional and experienced product
team not only match the characteristics of the particular distribution channels
that they are marketed through, but also offer features tailored to customer
needs.

中

國人壽長期深耕經營包含業務通路、銀行保險、經紀代理、理財服務、電子商務及團體保險，未來將
秉持六大通路平衡發展策略，配合各通路獨有之特性，推出符合需求之差異化商品，以滿足客戶對於

投資、儲蓄、保障與醫療之多元需求，冀望締造公司、保戶雙贏的局面。
業務員通路目前擁有1.1萬名業務同仁，未來仍將以強化基層業務主管生產力及組織發展實力為重點目標，
將持續訂定增員目標，並規劃相關配套措施、增員計畫與獎勵方案，以提升業務人員定著率及實動率，並
以達成3萬名業務員為目標；在商品策略部分，著重於協助客戶進行「量身訂做」的保險保障規劃並推動多
幣別資產配置的保障規劃。配合市場需求，以協助業務主管開拓市場；亦透過落實在地服務，長期耕耘客
戶關係。
經紀代理通路持續著力於分期繳商品之推動，並提供多樣化的商品服務，以增加公司長期業績與利潤來
源，同時積極深耕經代公司，以確保業績來源的穩定性。
銀行保險通路依其通路的市場特性，主力商品類型為利變年金及利變壽險等以退休儲蓄與累積資產為主的
商品。為全面提升新契約價值，進一步在銀保通路推動分期繳策略，近年來積極推動銀行保險轉向提高保
障的分期繳費終身壽險，除滿足客戶財富管理之需求外，更可提高客戶的保障額度，以提供更完整的保險
規劃。
理財服務通路向來主要銷售利率變動型年金及退休型商品，但為提供保戶更多元化的理財管道，將擴大產
品銷售線，加入投資型保單等，以多元化的商品來滿足高資產客戶族群在資產配置上之需求，並持續加強
客戶拜訪，深耕客戶關係，以提升公司另一股業績動能。
隨著科技的進步與資訊技術快速發展，預期電子商務通路將為未來重要契機。因此中國人壽積極發展數位
金融業務，以期更能精準地對焦年輕族群目標市場、主動創造行銷機會，建構低成本與高效率的業務經營
管理模式，以掌握數位時代的致勝契機。同時，現有各傳統通路亦將進行全方位數位化、行動化工具之建
置與配備以提升數位競爭力。
團體保險通路主要針對企業客戶提供完善的團體保險規劃，今年持續鞏固並擴大中國人壽在團體保險市場
之市場領先地位。此外，今年加強職域市場開拓及職場服務，擴大提供團體保戶之員工享有更便捷多元的
商品與服務管道，更加提升客戶滿意度。
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e operate through main distribution channels, including the agent force, bancassurance, brokers,
financial advisors, e-commerce and group insurance. Going forward, we will balance these channels

and promote products that match the characteristics of the particular distribution channels that they are
marketed through and offer differentiating features tailored to customer needs. Our goal is to satisfy our
clients' diverse needs for investments, savings, and insurance and managed care while benefiting the
company and the policyholders at the same time.
We have an agent force of more than 11,000 agents currently. For 2015 and beyond, we will continue our
efforts to improve the accountability of managers who supervise day-to-day activities of insurance agents
and to support further franchise growth. We aim to increase the number of our agents to 30,000 in five years
alongside new compensation and reward programs aimed at increasing retention and driving new business.
On the front of product strategy, we focus on tailored solutions and advice on multi-currency asset allocation
to help clients meet their financial objectives. Our detailed product and market knowledge not only contributes
to market share gains, but also leads to long-standing client relationships through local service and support.
Our insurance brokers sell mainly regular premium insurance plans alongside a wide range of products and
services, thus providing a sustained source of premium growth and profit. Meanwhile, we continue to deepen
relationships with agents and brokers to ensure stable generation of premium income.
Our bancassurance channel focuses on sales of interest-sensitive annuities and interest-sensitive life
insurance designed to save for and create streams of payments during retirement and aligned to this
channel's unique characteristics. As China Life is not part of a financial holding company, nor does it own a
bank completely or partly, we have been promoting regular premium whole life insurance policies through our
banking partners to increase value of new contracts written. The regular premium whole life insurance not
only satisfies clients' wealth management needs, but also affords a high level of protection that is integral to
the delivery of our insurance solutions.
The channel of financial advisors focuses primarily on sales of interest-sensitive annuities and retirement
products. In order to provide our policyholders a diverse range of financial solutions, this year, we have
expanded the product range available for this channel to include investment-linked policies to better serve
the asset allocation needs of high-net-worth individuals. In addition, we increase the frequency of client visits,
recognizing that building deep client relationships is vital to the growth of China Life.
With the advancement of technology and the rapid development of information technology, e-commerce
channel is expected to become an important opportunity for the future. Therefore, China Life positively
develops its digital financial business in order to more accurately focus on target market of younger generation,
take initiative to create marketing opportunities, construct a low-cost and efficient business management
model to grasp the opportunity of winning in the digital age. At the same time, all existing traditional channels
will also become fully digitalized with mobile tools and features to enhance the digital competitiveness.
Through the group insurance channel, we provide corporations with comprehensive group insurance
solutions, and we are looking to cement and expand our leadership position in the group insurance market
this year. In addition to move deeper into the enterprise market and related services, we seek to increase
customer satisfaction by making products and services more accessible for employees covered by group
insurance plans.
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競爭優勢
Competitive Advantage
以多元化商品與貼心售後服務，再加上公司穩健的經營實力，提供客戶完整可靠的保險
規劃。
With a wide range of goods and intimate after-sale service, coupled with the
company's strong operating strength, China Life provides customers with
complete and reliable insurance planning.
◆提供多幣別保單配置與發展多元化通路，滿足不同客群的保險及理財規劃；並積極拓展藍海市場，配合
法令開放時程，推出網路投保商品。
◆持續提升售後服務，自2014年開始推出一系列到府服務措施，包含「藥師到府健康照護服務」、「到府
協助辦理理賠」、「保戶服務相關申請到府收件及送件」等貼心服務，使弱勢客戶在承保、續約、理賠
等環節更加便利。
◆透過建信人壽在大陸深耕化與在地化的投資與研究，相較於同業在大陸市場的發展，績效卓越，成就不
凡；2015年9月中國人壽與建信人壽簽署保險理賠服務協議，為旅居海峽兩岸的客戶能於當地及時獲得
良好的理賠服務。
◆擁有強健的財務清償能力、嚴謹的公司治理及風險管理機制，是資本適足率達到350%以上高標準的大型
壽險公司。

20

◆We offer multi-currency insurance policies and develop multiple channels that
allow clients to plan their insurance and retirement needs. We actively expand
the blue ocean market launching insurance products online with the progress
of relevant regulations.
◆We continue to improve our after-sale services. Since 2014, a series of "go
to house" service initiatives have been launched, including 'Pharmacists go
to house -health care services "," Go to house to assist claims, "and " Go to
house to receive and deliver claims "and other caring services so that it is more
convenient for vulnerable customers in underwriting, policies renewal and apply
for claims.
◆The industry and market knowledge gained through CCB Life's investment
and research activities in China gives us an unrivalled advantage over our
peers. China Life and CCB Life insurance signed claims service agreement in
September 2015 to provide good claims service so that customers living across
the Taiwan Strait can be served in a timely manner.
◆We are one of the few Taiwanese life insurers with capital adequacy ratios of
over 350% supported by our strong financial position and rigorous oversight of
corporate governance and risk management.

■擁有強健的財務清償能力、嚴謹的
公司治理及風險管理機制，是資本
適足率達到350%以上高標準的大
型壽險公司。
■We are one of the few Taiwanese
life insurers with capital adequacy
ratios of over 350% supported by
our strong financial position and
rigorous oversight of corporate
governance and risk management.
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營運概況

風險管理
Risk Management
重視風險管理文化的建立，在穩健成長及永續經營的理念下，強化質量兼備的風險管理
機制。
Guided by a risk-focused culture, we have established a risk governance
framework that meets both qualitative and quantitative objectives.

重視風險管理文化之建立
中國人壽為確保自身對所有保戶的承諾，積極投入大量的人物力資源發展公司整體的風險管理架構、機制
及專業技術，建立全體員工都能深刻體認及遵循的風險管理文化，並落實於每日公司的營運活動中，使各
層級在進行業務時皆能具備風險意識，建立各自之風險辨識、風險衡量、風險回應、風險監控與資訊溝通
傳遞方式。嚴謹的風險管理是中國人壽企業文化的一部分，落實基層人員風險意識的培養及教育訓練則為
各部門作業管理規範之最高指導原則。

穩健成長永續經營理念與獨立的風險組織架構
我們基於穩健成長永續經營理念，設定中國人壽風險管理目標如下：
◆確保所承擔風險控制在所設定風險胃納內之前提下，完成公司營運目標
◆確保公司營運不中斷
◆創造並提升公司價值
◆提升風險管理成本效益
◆降低公司收益發生大幅波動的機會
為了努力達成此一風險管理目標，中國人壽設立了專責的風險管理部與風控長，以及隸屬於董事會下的風
險管理委員會，以有效規劃與執行風險管理事務。由於風險管理部區隔於各業務單位與交易活動之外的部
門，因此可獨立完整地執行風險管理制度的各項規範，定期向風控長、總經理、董事長、風險管理委員會
與董事會進行報告公司的重要風險事項，如遇有市場或經濟環境異常或重大改變時，風險管理部得即時呈
報高階主管及董事會，以達即時有效之風險監控與回應。此外，我們亦整合法令遵循部及法律事務部、資
產負債管理小組等相關部門，以全面掌控各種營運潛在風險。
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A Strong Risk Culture
At China Life, we are dedicated to protecting the financial security of all our
policyholders. Therefore, we have committed considerable resources to the
development of the framework, mechanism and techniques for the management
of risks. Significant focus has been placed on embedding a risk culture in our dayto-day activities. Our risk management processes and procedures help facilitate
the understanding of potential exposures across all levels of the organization, with
each business unit held accountable for establishing its standards for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks as well as for communicating
information. As risk management is integral to China Life's corporate culture,
raising awareness of risks among rank-and-file staff and providing adequate
training to empower them are two key principles that guide the operations of
each business unit.

Sustainable Growth Focus and Independence of Risk
Management Organization
A robust risk governance framework is vital to the sustainable success of China
Life. Our main objectives include:

■重視風險管理文化的建立，在穩健
成長及永續經營的理念下，強化質
量兼備的風險管理機制。
■Guided by a risk-focused culture,
we have established a risk
governance framework that meets
both qualitative and quantitative
objectives.

◆achieving business objectives while ensuring that risks assumed by China
Life's businesses are in accordance with risk appetite
◆ensuring business continuity
◆building and enhancing corporate value
◆improving cost efficiency and returns
◆reducing volatility in the company's profit and loss
China Life's risk management is an independent control function. China Life's risk
management organization is structured to facilitate the planning and execution of
risk-related matters by the Risk Management Department, with oversight from
the Chief Risk Officer and the Risk Management Committee of the Board of
Directors. The department independently carries out its day-to-day activities and
provides regular reports on risk issues and their implications to the Chief Risk
Officer, President, Chairman, the Risk Management Committee and the Board
of Directors. The Risk Management Department identifies and monitors risks
continuously and reports to the senior management and the Board of Directors
any unusual or adverse events in the macroeconomic and market environments
to ensure that appropriate mitigating action is taken. Furthermore, the department
works collaboratively with the Compliance Department, the Legal Affairs
Department and the Asset and Liability Management Unit in order to identify,
assess and monitor risks on a company-wide basis.
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質化與量化並重的風險管理機制
在中國人壽完整的風險管理架構下，我們進一步發展質化與量化並重的風險管理與監控機制，主要如下：
◆考量公司經營目標及資本（清償能力）狀況，風險管理部與其他相關權責部門討論研擬未來年度之風險
胃納與限額，並在提報風險管理委員會後，經董事會核定施行。
◆透過交易前評估、合格交易對手名單及交易限制等內部規範，我們嚴格控管所持有資產或投資部位的品
質；另一方面亦藉由自行發展的量化模型，如市場風險值（VaR）、信用風險值（CaR）及資產負債管理
等，以預警系統及定期評估報表進行曝險狀況之監控，必要時發佈警示通知，或進行超限報告等回應措
施。
◆建置多種模型以衡量個別風險資本，以掌握公司整體風險的變動情形，作為風險管理、通路及商品發展
等公司策略擬定的重要資訊。
◆當新業務推展、從事新投資項目、法令或內部規範變更影響作業流程時，風險管理部即參與相關作業流
程與資訊系統之規畫，進行事前的風險評估與控制點的設計，以達到風險控制與防阻的積極功能。此
外，風險管理部門也與相關部門合作執行各項作業風險管理活動，除了每季定期進行風險與控制自行評
估作業（RCSA）檢視，以追蹤各項潛在作業風險外，風險管理部亦執行關鍵風險指標（KRI），以有效
管控金融犯罪及詐欺、流程、人員、法令遵循、客戶、商品及營業行為、系統與營運中斷等各項關鍵作
業風險。
◆除了現有風險控管機制外，我們也成立「自我風險及清償能力評估（ORSA）小組」，整合公司目前既
有風險管理及清償能力評估的相關機制、企圖發展出一套最適合中國人壽風險特性的執行架構和評估方
法，並將其內嵌於公司決策與實務流程之中，以再次強化企業風險管理（ERM）之深度及有效應用。
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A Risk Governance Framework that Meets Qualitative
and Quantitative Objectives
Under the complete risk management framework of China Life, we further
establish a risk management and control mechanisms that meets both qualitative
and quantitative objectives. The framework includes:
◆Considering the company's business objectives and capital (liquidity) situation,
the Risk Management Department and other related departments discuss and
establish risk appetite and limits for future years, which are proposed to the
Risk Management Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
◆Through pre-trade assessment, a list of eligible counterparties and trading
restrictions and other internal policies, we strictly control the quality of
assets or investments held by us. On the other hand, the department uses
self-developed quantitative models to calculate Value at Risk, Credit Valueat-Risk and other risks that arise from balance sheet activities. It monitors
risk exposures through its early-warning mechanism and regular risk data
assessment and reporting, which provide early warning of potential breaches
of risk limits.
◆The department has in place various models to calculate individual risk capital
in order to assess the changes in aggregate risk and to inform decision-making
regarding risk management, channels, and product development.
◆In the case where internal processes are affected by a new business,
investment, changes in regulations or internal specifications, the Risk
Management Department takes part in the design of operational processes
and information systems by providing risk pre-assessment and setting risk
control points. The department also collaborates with other control functions
to implement operational risk management. In addition to risk and control selfassessments performed quarterly to identify and monitor potential operational

■除了現有風險控管機制外，我們也
成立「自我風險及清償能力評估
(ORSA)小組」，整合公司目前既有
風險管理及清償能力評估的相關機
制、企圖發展出一套最適合中國人
壽風險特性的執行架構和評估方
法，並將其內嵌於公司決策與實務
流程之中，以再次強化企業風險管
理(ERM)之深度及有效應用。
■I n addition to our current risk
management framework, we have
formed a unit responsible for Own
Risk and Solvency Assessment
(ORSA). Its goals are assessing
the adequacy of current risk
management solvency positions;
designing a framework for ORSA
that is specific to China Life’s
risk profile; and ensuring that
the results of ORSA are used to
guide operational and strategic
decisions. All in all, ORSA serves
to strengthen the depth and
effective application of enterprise
risk management (ERM).

risks, the department also implements key risk indicators for measuring and
taking action on operational risks related to financial crimes, external and
internal fraud, processes and procedures, people, regulatory compliance,
clients, products, business practices, systems and business continuity.
◆In addition to our current risk management framework, we have formed a
unit responsible for Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA). Its goals
are assessing the adequacy of current risk management solvency positions;
designing a framework for ORSA that is specific to China Life’s risk profile; and
ensuring that the results of ORSA are used to guide operational and strategic
decisions. All in all, ORSA serves to strengthen the depth and effective
application of enterprise risk management (ERM).
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公司治理
Corporate Governance

中

國人壽本於公司治理的原則，持續提升資訊透明度、維護股東權益、強化董事會結構及運作、擴大利
害關係人參與、落實企業社會責任，並於2014年6月訂定本公司「公司治理守則」，建立明確標準以

為遵循。另，中國人壽為落實公司治理及實踐企業社會責任，多年來致力提升資訊揭露品質及時效性，以
提供保戶及投資人多元透明企業資訊，並於2016年4月再度榮獲「第二屆上市上櫃企業公司治理評鑑」排
名前5%，在維護股東權益、平等對待股東、提升資訊透明度、落實企業社會責任等公司治理評鑑構面皆受
到主管機關高度肯定，實乃本公司積極推動公司治理之成果。
◆提升資訊透明度
除法定揭露項目外，考量本公司有多數外資持股，為利其取得充分資訊，本公司現行已建置企業中、英文
網站，公司重大訊息以中英文方式同步上傳，於股東常會開會前上傳英文版年報、英文版開會通知、及英
文版議事手冊及會議補充資料等，俾滿足外資機構對英文資訊的需求，並提升公司資訊透明度。
◆維護股東權益
關於股東會及董事會之組成、召集、公告、決議等，本公司概依公司法、證券交易法等法令辦理。另，本
公司股東依法令規定每股均有一表決權，並依法定決議程度議決股東會議案。本公司自2012年開始提供股
東以電子方式行使其表決權，且各項議案皆採逐案票決，董事之選任亦採候選人提名制度，藉此維護股東
行使其表決權之權益並提高股東會開會效率。
◆強化董事會結構及運作
為健全董事會結構，本公司於董事會組成上，均審慎評估董事候選人在營運、財務、風險管理、金融等專
長，以強化董事會之專業性及多元性，9 席董事中專業經理人5人，外部董事1人及獨立董事3人，其中 2 席
為女性董事。為強化董事會結構，中國人壽自2008年起正式設立獨立董事制度，目前設有3席獨立董事；
本公司董事會下設有由全體獨立董事擔任成員之「審計委員會」及「薪資報酬委員會」，以及「風險管理
委員會」等功能性委員會，其中「審計委員會」、「薪資報酬委員會」及「風險管理委員會」皆由獨立董
事擔任召集人，俾發揮監督及強化管理機能，為市占率前幾大的壽險公司中，領先同業同時兼具審計委員
會、薪資報酬委員會及風險管理委員會之壽險公司。為持續強化公司治理並進一步提升效能，本公司除了
對董事會成員進行績效評估，並於2015年制定「董事會績效評估辦法」，作為辦理董事會、功能性委員會
績效考核評估以及個別董事績效考核自評及同儕評鑑之依據，透過定期績效評估以使每位董事明確了解其
責任，進而促進董事會運作效率之提昇。董事會成員名單如表一。
中國人壽深信一個企業的價值與長久，均奠定於誠信經營基礎上。為健全誠信經營之管理，中國人壽於
2015年3月成立「誠信經營委員會」，為直接隸屬董事會之誠信經營專責單位，負責誠信經營政策與防範
方案之制定及監督執行，並每年定期向董事會報告，期望建立誠信經營之企業文化，並健全誠信經營之管
理。
◆擴大利害關係人參與
本公司與保戶、員工等利害關係人概保持暢通之溝通管道，並尊重及維護其應有之合法權益，且鼓勵員工
與管理階層直接進行溝通，適度反映員工對公司經營、財務狀況、或涉及員工利益重大決策之意見。此
外，2015年更於本公司企業網站增置「利害關係人專區」，該專區除揭露本公司誠信經營守則等相關規定
並定期提供誠信經營及道德行為相關資訊外，亦提供利害關係人多元參與管道及專責聯繫窗口，藉利害關
係人意見回饋蒐集其意見，作為本公司決策之參考。
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onsistent with our commitment to corporate governance, we continue to promote corporate transparency,
protect shareholders’ interests, strengthen the leadership structure of the Board and implement corporate
responsibilities. In June 2014, we established the Corporate Governance Guidelines, which set out the best
practices in corporate governance to adhere to. China Life continues to be ranked the top 5% in “The second
corporate governance evaluation of publicly traded companies “in April 2016. Our achievements in the
maintenance of shareholders' equity, equal treatment to shareholders, greater transparency, implementation
of corporate social responsibility and other corporate governance evaluation facets were highly affirmed by the
regulator, that was attributed to our dedication to corporate governance.
◆Improve Information Transparency
In addition to corporate information for which disclosure is mandatory, other material information concerning
the company, prepared in both Chinese and English, is available on our bilingual corporate website, which
ensures equal access to information for our large base of foreign shareholders. We prepare and publish Englishlanguage annual report, notice of meeting, circular and supplementary information prior to each annual meeting of
shareholders to improve transparency and to make information more accessible for foreign institutional investors.
◆Protect rights of shareholders
The formation, meeting procedures, announcements and resolutions of the annual meetings of shareholders and
the board of directors are in accordance with the Company Law and the Securities and Exchange Act. Since 2012,
the company allows its shareholders to electronically exercise voting rights, and each proposal is voted one by
one. For board elections, shareholders vote on each nominee for the Board of Director. Thereby the mechanism
can safeguard the voting rights of shareholders and improve the efficiency of the shareholders' meeting.
◆Enhance the structure of the Board of Directors and its operation
To improve the structure of the Board of Directors, in evaluating the composition of the Board, director candidates
are carefully assessed in proficiency of operations, finance, risk management, and financial expertise. In this way
we can to strengthen the proficiency and pluralism of the Board. Of nine directors, there are five professional
managers, one outside director and three independent directors. Among them, there are two female directors.
To strengthen the structure of the Board of Directors, since 2008 China Life, formally established independent
director system. There are three seats of independent directors now. The Company has a Board of Directors
comprising all the independent directors as members of the "Audit Committee" and " Remuneration Committee",
and "Risk Management Committee" and other functions of the Committee, in which the "Audit Committee",
"Remuneration Committee" and "Risk Management Committee "all have independent directors as the convener. In
this way, oversight and management functions can be strengthened. Among the market-leading companies in the
life insurance sector, China Life is the only company that has the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Risk Management Committee in place. To continue to strengthen corporate governance and further improve
performance, the company set "Performance Evaluation Approach of Board of Directors” besides the regular
evaluation of board members. This approach serves as performance appraisal, self-assessment and peer-reviews
for Board of Directors, functional committees and individual directors. Through regular performance evaluation,
each director has a clear understanding of his/her responsibilities, thus contributing to enhance the operational
efficiency of the Board of Directors. Board members are shown in Table I.
China Life is convinced that a long-term value of an enterprise is based on the business integrity. For sound
management of business integrity, China Life set up a "Integrity Management Committee," directly under Board
of Directors, which is responsible for developing and overseeing the implementation of integrity management
policies and prevention programs in March 2015. The committee reports to the Board of Directors regularly. It
aims to establish the corporate culture of integrity management and improve management of business integrity.
◆Increase participation of interested parties
The company keeps open channels of communication with its policyholders, employees and other interested
parties and respects and safeguards their legitimate rights. It also encourages its employees to communicate
directly with management-level staff, so that they can reflect their opinions about the operations, financial
conditions, or major decisions involving employee benefits. In addition, the "interested parties section" was added
to the company's corporate web site in 2015.The section not only discloses codes of integrity management and
other relevant provisions it also provides information about integrity management and ethical behavior. In addition,
it provides multiple participation channels for stakeholders and a dedicated contact person. In doing so, opinions of
interested parties can be used as references for decision-making in the company.
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◆落實企業社會責任
本公司已制定企業社會責任政策，並設置「企業社會責任委員會」，負責推動公司治理、發展永續環境、維護
社會公益及強化企業社會責任資訊揭露等，相關成效已揭露於各年度企業社會責任報告書及公司年報等，供投
資人等參閱。
(表一)

◆董事會成員及重要學經歷

職稱

姓名

董事長

王銘陽

美國德州大學達拉斯分校管理科學研究所碩士

－

董事

郭瑜玲

國立台灣大學財務金融研究所碩士

－

董事

許東敏

中國政法大學法學博士

－

董事

黃淑芬

美國威斯康辛大學統計及精算研究所雙碩士

－

董事

黃光揚

國立台灣大學商學研究所碩士

－

彭金隆

1.國立政治大學企業管理博士
2.國立政治大學風險管理與保險學系專任副教授
暨商學院 Cardif銀行保險研究發展中心主任
3.財團法人金融消費評議中心董事
4.財團法人汽車交通事故特別補償基金監察人

風險管理委員會委員

龔天益

1.美國紐約聖約翰大學財務研究所碩士
2.紐約銀行上海分行總經理、董事總經理兼中國
區總經理
3.台灣大學國際企業學系兼任實務教師
4.廈門大學王亞南經濟研究院金融實務講座教授

1.薪資報酬委員會召集人
2.審計委員會委員

潘維大

1.美國內布拉斯加州立大學法學博士
2.東吳大學校長暨法學院專任教授
3.行政院中央選舉委員會委員
4.台北市政府採購申訴審議委員會諮詢委員

1.審計委員會召集人
2.薪酬報酬委員會委員
3.風險管理委員會委員

許文彥

1.美國喬治亞州立大學風險管理與保險博士
2.逢甲大學風險管理與保險學系專任教授暨金融
博士學位學程主任
3.財團法人保險事業發展中心董事
4.台灣風險與保險學會理事

1.風險管理委員會召集人
2.審計委員會委員
3.薪酬報酬委員會委員

董事

獨立董事

獨立董事

獨立董事
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備註

◆Corporate Citizenship
We established a corporate social responsibility guideline and formed the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
The Committee provides oversight of the company's operations and initiatives regarding corporate governance,
environmental sustainability, philanthropy and the reporting of corporate social responsibility-related matters. Results of
the performance evaluation of the Committee are published in the CSR report and the corporate annual report each year.
◆Board of Directors

(Table I)

Position

Name

Education and Business Experience

Note

Chairman

Alan Wang

Master of Science in Management and Administrative
Sciences, University of Texas at Dallas

－

Executive
Director

Yu-Ling Kuo

Master in Finance, National Taiwan University

－

Executive
Director

Tony T.M. Hsu

Ph. D. in Law, China University of Political Science and
Law

－

Executive
Director

Stephanie Hwang

1.Master of Science in Actuarial Science, University of
Wisconsin-Madison
2.Master of Science in Statistics, University of
Wisconsin-Madison

－

Executive
Director

Huang, Kuang Yang

Master of Business Administration, National Taiwan
University

－

Executive
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Independent
Director

Jin-Lung Peng

1.Ph. D. in Business Administration, National Chengchi
University
2.Associate Professor, Department of Risk
Management and Insurance, National Chengchi
University; Director, CARDIF Bancassurance
Research Center
3.Director, Financial Ombudsman Institution
4.Supervisor of the Board, Motor Vehicle Accident
Compensation Fund

Louis T. Kung

1.Master of Business Administration with
Concentration in Finance, St. John's University
2.Managing Director and General Manager of the
Shanghai Branch; China Country Manager, Bank of
New York Mellon
3.Adjunct Lecturer, Department of International
Business, National Taiwan University
4.Adjunct Professor, Wang Yanan Institute for Studies
in Economics, Xiamen University

Wei-Ta Pan

1.J.D., University of Nebraska
2.President and Professor of Law, Soochow University
3.Commissioner, Central Election Commission,
Executive Yuan
4.Board Member, Complaint Review Board for
Government Procurement, Taipei City Government

Wen-Yen Hsu

1.Ph. D. in Risk Management and Insurance, Georgia
State University
2.Professor, Department of Risk Management and
Insurance; Director, Ph.D. Program of Finance, Feng
Chia University
3.Director, Taiwan Insurance Institute
4.Director, Taiwan Risk and Insurance Association

Risk Management
Committee Member

1.Remuneration
Committee Chair
2.Audit Committee
Member

1.Audit Committee Chair
2.Remuneration
Committee Member
3.Risk Management
Committee Member

1.Risk Management
Committee Chair
2.Audit Committee
Member
3.Remuneration
Committee Member
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企業社會責任(CSR)
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

大

企業，大責任。「永續發展」已是全球各企業傳遞企業社會責任倡議和精神的目標，如何將CSR結合
本業內化為企業核心文化，更是永續發展之趨勢。做為企業公民，中國人壽秉持永續發展理念，結合

本業，以人為企業根本，落實到企業內外層面，透過內部治理將企業外部各利害關係人關注議題連結，以
協同效應共同創造治理績效、社會績效和環境績效（ESG）的企業綜合價值，展現中國人壽大責任精神及
永續發展決心，以自身經營建立永續典範，成為社會向上的力量。

公司治理：嚴謹治理 強化組織運作
中國人壽除設有「審計委員會」、「薪資報酬委員會」及「風險管理委員會」等功能性委員會外，另為健
全誠信經營之管理，於2015年成立「誠信經營委員會」，為直接隸屬董事會之誠信經營專責單位，負責誠
信經營政策與防範方案之制定及監督執行，並定期向董事會報告，以建立誠信經營之企業文化，並健全誠
信經營之管理。
本公司另設有企業社會責任委員會、環保委員會、投資管理委員會、授信審查委員會、資產負債風險管理
小組、保險商品評議小組、保險商品管理小組、核保委員會、理賠委員會、保戶申訴委員會等組織，以完
備與強化組織運作之機制，有效制定、監督並落實公司各項政策及目標。
而因應金融保險產業數位趨勢，提供資訊透明且多元之訊息，以「行動優先（Mobile First）」為導向，
2015年完成企網改版，導入網頁主動適應化技術，並於企業網站建置利害關係人專區，積極回應利害關係
人之需求。
為讓企業社會責任落實在企業價值鏈的各個環節，視供應商管理為企業永續管理重要的一環，於2015年制
定「供應商企業社會責任辦法」，整合通路及供應商，使之產生協同效應，共同善盡企業社會責任。
中國人壽投資政策首先排除軍火、菸草、農藥生產等破壞環境及人類社會安全之公司，同時針對環境保
育、安全衛生、人權和勞工權益等面向有疑慮之投資標的予以過濾，並揭露於相關研究報告中。各投資部
門也將參考國內外金融業責任投資之趨勢，包含聯合國責任投資原則及法規修正等，以落實投資相關應盡
之企業社會責任。2015年中國人壽積極參加投資對象股東會或臨時會，以電子投票或親自出席股東會之投
資對象共102家，出席比率達97%。
針對投資風險的控管，中國人壽也藉由投資多角化（Diversification）與集中控管來調整公司投資組合。一
來將極端氣候對中國人壽投資及財務造成的不利影響降到最低，確保公司具備足夠因應氣侯變遷趨勢所間
接施加的給付壓力，更主動關懷且協助保戶快速處理理賠，並即時提供服務措施。
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B

ig business, big responsibility. "Sustainable development" is the initiative that delivers spirit of corporate
social responsibility proposed by global enterprises. How to combine CSR into the core culture of the

enterprise is also the trend of sustainable development. As a corporate citizen, China Life upholds sustainable
development concept combining with our operation and deeming people as the fundamental element. This
spirit is spread into the internal and external levels of our company. Through internal corporate governance, we
link concerned issues of its external stakeholders so that we can work together to create synergies in overall
values of governance performance, social performance and environmental performance (ESG). In doing so, we
not only display big responsibilities and the spirit of commitment to sustainable development at China Life but
also establish a business model which is an upward force in the society.

Corporate governance: strengthen the organization through and strict
management of the operation
Besides "Audit Committee", "Remuneration Committee" and "Risk Management Committee", and other
functional committees, "Integrity Management Committee" is established for the sound management of
integrity in 2015, which is directly under the Board of Directors. The committee is responsible for formulating
policy of integrity management and supervision of the implementation of prevention programs and reports
regularly to the Board of Directors. It aims to establish a corporate culture of integrity management and improve
management of business integrity.
The company also has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Environment Protection Committee,
Investment Management Committee, Credit Review Committee, Assets and Liabilities Risk Management
Team, Insurance Product Review Team, Insurance Product Management Team, Underwriting Committee,
Claims Committee, and Appeals of policyholders Committee. These committees aim to complete and
strengthen the mechanisms of operations of the organization and to effectively develop, monitor and
implement policies and goals of the company.
And in response to digital trends of the financial and insurance industry by providing information transparency
and pluralism of the messages. With "Mobile First" as the guide, the company completed the revision
of corporate website in which technology of automatic adaption of web pages was introduced. Also the
"interested parties section" was added to the company's corporate website so that we can actively respond to
the needs of interested parties.
To implement corporate social responsibilities in all aspects of the value chain, we deem management of our
suppliers an important part for business continuity management. The "Supplier Corporate Social Responsibility
Code of Conduct Operating Standard" was established in 2015 so that we can integration our channels and
suppliers to jointly fulfill corporate social responsibilities synergistically.
Companies that bring damages to our environment and societies such as arms, tobacco, pesticide productions
are excluded from our investment policies at China Life while environmental conservation, health and safety,
human rights and labor rights and other investment-oriented subjects of doubts are filtered and disclosed in
research reports. Each investment sector will also refer to SRI trend of domestic and foreign financial sectors,
including the United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment and regulatory amendments, to implement
their share of investment-related corporate social responsibility. In 2015, China Life participated actively in
shareholders’ meeting and interim shareholders’ meetings of the companies we invested in. We attended 102
companies' shareholders' meetings or voted electronically with 97% attendance rate.
About investment risk controls, China Life adjusts the company's investment portfolios through investment
diversification and centralized controls. Doing so we can minimize adverse effects on insurance and financials
caused by extreme weather and ensure that the company can response sufficiently to payment pressure
applied directly by climate changes of trends. Besides, we can provide active care and assist policyholders with
rapid claims processing as well as immediate services measures.
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社會：人本服務 用諸社會
因應社會趨勢及生活型態的轉變，開發切合保戶需求之多元產品，如提供網路投保及開辦國際保險業務
（OIU），亦推出微型保險商品服務經濟較弱勢的民眾，達到服務人數為5,000位被保險人之目標，並榮獲
金融監督管理委員會「2015年度微型保險競賽業務績優獎」殊榮；更提升服務便捷性與品質，推廣全民健
保健康存摺及保戶服務相關申請到府收件及送件等各項關懷服務措施，並強化保戶個資的保護與管理，導
入ISO27001國際標準，建立嚴謹的資訊安全控管。
中國人壽建構溫情和富活力的企業文化，推動重點人才發展計畫、完整教育練習體系及多元的社團活動，
以平衡工作與生活，促進組織的活化，讓每位同仁都樂在中國人壽工作，並在未來職涯取得良好發展。
因應「人口結構改變」、「氣候變遷」及「弱勢族群」三大關鍵的社會議題，中國人壽鼓勵同仁投身社會
參與，從公益、友善環境及扶持弱勢及三大倡儀面向，執行公益投入計畫，持續推動「愛就GO 319行動學
堂」及「食安綠學堂」向偏鄉學童推廣閱讀、理財及健康飲食觀念；舉辦愛心展售會推動購買友善環境產
品，鼓勵同仁購買當地當令的食材，減少碳足跡及各項節能減碳措施；進行「二手電腦捐贈」、「愛心發
票箱」等行其他多元的公益活動以實際行動回饋社會及環境創造共同價值，達到企業長期經營的永續發展
目標。
中國人壽秉持關懷與服務精神，我們自2012年增訂「售服風災各項保戶服務關懷措施作業規範」後，為符
合需求相繼調整內容，2014年修訂規範訂定「售服保戶服務辦法」，做為重大災害時處理規範。因此我們
得以在2015年間不幸發生重大天然及意外災害時迅速有效的啟動該機制，讓受災保戶最需要的時刻予以關
懷，並獲得全方位的保障。

環境：關懷地球 節能減碳
因應全球氣候變遷，中國人壽重視並持續落實環境保護措施，積極推動節能、減碳，訂定「環保節能管理
規範」，執行主要職場的ISO14064-1溫室氣體排放盤查與認證導入。針對廢棄物與水資源管理，啟動廢棄
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Social: Human focus and serve our societies
In response to changing social trends and lifestyles, diversified products that meet the needs of
policyholders, such as buying insurance online and international insurance business (OIU) were launched.
We also launched micro-insurance products to serve more economically disadvantaged people. We
reached the goal of 5,000 insured people for the service and won the "Micro-insurance Business
Competition Merit award of 2015" held by Financial Supervisory Commission. To enhance the
convenience and quality of our services, we promoted "My Health Bank," and a series of "go to house"
service initiatives such as" Go to house to assist claims, "and” Go to house to receive and deliver claims
"and other caring services. We also strengthen the protection of customer information, introducing ISO
27001 international standards and establishing strict information security controls. China Life construct
warm and dynamic corporate culture and promote development programs for internal talents as well as
complete educational training system and diverse community activities. Doing so, we help our employees
to achieve work-life balance and activate our organization so that each of our employee is happy to work
here and achieves good development in his/her career.
In response to "demographic change", "climate change" and "disadvantaged groups" three key social
issues, China Life encourage our employees to join community activities. From three initiatives of
public service, a friendly environment and supporting the disadvantaged, our employees can participate
charitable activities. Through the “Read across 319 Townships “and “Food safety workshop” initiative,
we travel across the country to promote reading, financial management and healthy lifestyles among
schoolchildren. Each year, we hold charity fairs such as promoting purchase of environmentally-friendly
products and local seasonal ingredients to reduce carbon footprints. We also held multiple charitable
activities such as “second-hand computer donations, “and “charitable invoices box", etc. so that we can
contribute to the community and the environment and create a common value, reaching the goals of
sustainable development in a long run.
We uphold the spirit of care and service. We updated the "operational specifications for after-sale service
and care measures of hurricane" in 2012. The content was adjusted to be in line with the needs of
customers. In 2014, we revised "Service approaches for after-sale services" as specifications when a
major disaster happens. As a result, we could quickly and effectively start the mechanism when a major
natural disaster and accident happened in 2015. Doing so we can provide all-round protection and care to
our affected policyholders as they most needed.

Environment: Care the earth and carbon reduction
In response to global climate change, China Life continues to implement environmental protection
measures and actively promote energy saving, carbon reduction by setting "environmental protection
and energy management practices,” implementing ISO 14064-1 greenhouse gas emissions check-up
and introducing its certification. For waste and water management, we launched waste management
operation by installing water-saving washers and adjusting the amount of water to save water and
enhance the efficiency of resource usage. Efforts to make our operations more energy efficient were
initiated both internally and externally. Across the organization, we implemented environmentally sound
practices concerning the use of paper, equipment purchase and replacement, commuting-to-work
programs and other office processes in order to reduce the environmental impact of our day-to-day
business. We also encouraged our policyholders to help reduce the carbon footprint by using electronic
documents instead of paper. We work together with our policyholders to contribute to environmental
sustainability and fulfill corporate social responsibility.
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物管理作業並透過安裝省水墊片及調
整出水量的方式來節水，致力提升資
源利用效率。
在節能減碳上，針對「內部流程」
及「外部倡議」進行改善，「內部
流程」包括紙張使用、設備採購與汰
換、通勤及其他作業流程優化等面
向，以減少日常營運的環境衝擊；
「外部倡議」則提供保戶各項電子化
表單的節能減碳措施，與保戶共同攜
手，為環境永續盡一份力量，善盡企
業社會責任。

員工照顧
★人才培育與發展
◆藉由適當之培訓課程提升員工之工
作能力，為中壽長期以來堅持之信念，2015年總受訓人次約13,539人次，受訓總時數665,289小時，總
訓練費用16,876,333元，平均每人受訓時數約49.1小時，訓練覆蓋比率約達100%。近年因應數位化趨
勢，除傳統課程講授外，建置數位學習平台，提供同仁隨到隨上、跨載具之多元課程，鼓勵隨時自我學
習，以因應數位時代之挑戰。
◆內勤同仁的培訓主要著重「新人培育」、「一般技巧／知識」、「專業能力」及「管理能力」四大區
塊，透過實體課程、數位學習、在職訓練、外派訓練、專案指派與歷練及員工園地電子月刊等管道進行
培育。外勤同仁培訓部分，則藉由「中壽大學」五大學院(行銷、經營、管理、金融、綜合) 進行系統化
人才培訓。
◆為協助員工提升績效，發揮潛力，設有完整的績效管理制度，由主管透過新人試用考核、工作指導及定
期績效評估，進行溝通、回饋與教導，協助同仁增強能力以面對工作挑戰，並與同仁討論未來發展方
向，以協助其訂定未來發展計畫。
◆為利企業永續經營，儲備未來人才，持續推動人才儲備計畫，除於內部進行重點人才識別，盤點能力缺
口外，再針對各重點人才展開發展培育計畫，為培育未來管理人才做準備。
◆為提高新人之定著率並為組織注入新血，設計青年實習計畫及數位金融資訊人才培育方案，透過適當之
技能培訓及提高財務誘因，有效降低新人之脫退比率。
★薪酬與福利
◆薪酬政策採績效導向，確保同仁整體獎酬水準具同業競爭優勢，以吸引並留任優秀人才。
◆經營績效與員工共享，視公司營運情況發放年終獎金、辦理員工無償配股或優惠認股活動，增進同仁凝
聚力，並視公司前一年度獲利狀況發放員工酬勞，讓員工分享公司之經營成果。
◆薪資核敍不因性別而有所差異，本公司男女薪資水準大致平衡，一般女性員工的平均薪資水準與男性大
致相當，足見本公司並未有性別歧視。以2015年為例女性員工之平均全年薪資達男性之115%。
◆重視員工福利和保障，除依勞基法保障員工權益，如：合宜工時、年度休假、產檢假、產假、陪產假、
幼兒撫育之育嬰假、家庭照顧假、退休金提撥、最低薪資保障等，更藉由多樣化的設計，促進員工工作
與生活平衡，例如：定期壽險、意外傷害險、意外醫療險及住院醫療險等完整團保方案、年節禮金及年
終晚會、子女教育獎學金、婚喪喜慶致禮、住院慰問金、員工自用住宅優惠貸款、生育及結婚津貼、空
中花園、員工交誼廳、咖啡廳、健身房、更衣室、淋浴間、桌球室等，並為臺北市政府勞動局頒發之
「幸福企業」獲獎公司。
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Employee Care
★Personnel training and development
◆Enhancing our employees' abilities to work with appropriate training courses is the long-term faith of China
Life. A total of about 13,539 people were trained with a total training hours of 665,289 in 2015. Total training
costs is NT $16,876,333, and the average number of hours of training per person is about 49.1 hours with
training coverage ratio of approximately 100%. In response to the digital trend in recent years, besides
traditional courses, we built digital-learning platform that offers courses to our employees across carriers. In
this way, we encourage self-learning at any time to cope with challenges in the digital age.
◆The main focus of the training for internal colleagues is on four areas including "new employees’ training",
"general skills / knowledge", "proficiency" and "management ability". Trainings are carried out through channels
such as entity courses, e-learning, job training, training assignment, project assignment and electronic
newsletters of staff corner. Trainings for field colleagues are carried out by five colleges of “China Life
University” in areas of marketing, management, administration, and finance.
◆We have a complete performance management system to help employees improve their performance and
potentials. Through new assessment of trial, work instructions and regular performance evaluation, we can
communicate, teach and assist our colleagues through feedbacks enhancing their ability to face challenges at
work. We also discuss with colleagues about their future directions and set future development plans for them.
◆To achieve business continuity, we not only reserve future talents but continue to promote talents pool
plan. In addition to focusing on internal talent identification, and inventory capability gaps, we also have
development plans of fostering key personnel with an aim to prepare future management talents.
◆In order to increase retention ratio of new employees and inject new blood to the organization, we offer
internship program for young people and digital financial information personnel training programs. Through
appropriate skills training and improving financial incentives, we hope to increase retention ratio of new
employees.
★Compensation and Welfare
◆Our compensation policy is performance-oriented. We ensure that our compensation is competitive in the
industry so that we can attract and keep our talents.
◆We share our business performance with our employees. Year-end bonuses is paid depending on the
operating conditions of the company. We also offer unpaid stock allotment and subscription activities to
enhance the cohesion of colleagues. We also pay employee bonus with the amount based on net profit
earned by the company so that our employees can participate in the success of the company.
◆Payrolls of our company do not vary by gender. Compensation level of men and women is balanced, and
the average salary level of female employees is nearly equal to that of male employees, which shows there
is no gender discrimination at the company. For example, in 2015, the average annual salary level of female
employees is approximately 115% of that of male employees.
◆We value welfare and protection of our employees. Besides what is listed in Labor Standards Law such as:
appropriate working hours, annual leave, check-up leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, parental leave,
family care leave, pension charges, minimum wage security, etc., we also provide a variety of designs and
programs to promote employee work-life balance. For example, we provide a complete group insurance
program that includes term life insurance, accident insurance, accident medical insurance and hospitalization
insurance. We also offer new-year gifts, year-end party, children's education scholarships, wedding gifts,
hospitalization condolence payments, employees house lending, fertility and marriage allowances, sky
gardens, saloon, cafe, gym, locker/shower/restroom facilities, and table tennis rooms. We are also winner of
"happiness business" awarded by Bureau of Labor of Taipei City Government.
◆Each year, the Employee Welfare Committee provides varied benefits depending on its annual budget,
which may include cash gifts for birthdays and major festivals, sponsored group travel or fun activities such
as the employee sports day. In this way we can improve the balance of work and leisure and employees
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Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)
企業社會責任(CSR)

◆福委會每年度依預算訂定不同之員
工福利計畫，例：生日禮金、三節
禮金、員工旅遊或運動會等活動，
並舉辦多元的社團活動，重視並提
升工作與休閒的平衡、減輕員工的
壓力，提高其績效表現。
◆設有設備完善之集(哺)乳室，提供女
性員工集(哺)乳之舒適空間，並與托
育中心合作辦理企業托育服務優惠
專案，協助員工之幼兒托育問題，
讓其能就近得到品質優良、價格合
理的托育照顧服務，降低員工之身
心壓力，兼顧工作與家庭。
★任用政策與人權保障
◆提供多元及平等的就業機會為本公司之員工任用政策，不因種族、階級、語言、思想、宗教、黨派、籍
貫、出生地、性別、性傾向、年齡、婚姻、容貌、五官、身心障礙或以往工會會員身分，予以歧視。任
用政策重視平等及多元性，並持續經營維護一個相互尊重的職場環境，讓同仁擁有正確、客觀和包容的
品德。
◆提供身障者就業機會，以2015年為例，身障同仁僱用比例為1.2％，於公司各部門運用其能力展現其才
能。其中有57%為任職1-5年者，43%為5年以上，其中更不乏有任職12、13年以上者。因進用身心障礙
者績效優異，並多次榮獲臺北市勞動局評選為「企業足超額進用身心障礙者認證標章友善職場獎之優等
單位」。
◆重視勞資溝通管道，設有勞資會議，由勞資雙方代表組成，會中議題包含勞工動態、業務概況等，使雙
方代表得以瞭解公司營運狀況，並針對勞資雙方關注之議題進行溝通。
◆為維護兩性工作平等及提供本公司員工及求職者免受性騷擾之工作及服務環境，設有性騷擾防治辦法及
防治委員會。如遭受性騷擾時，提供其申訴受理單位、申訴專線等資訊，並訂有調查及懲戒之規定，讓
員工都能藉由了解兩性相處規範，保全自身權益並防止及杜絕性騷擾事件的發生。
◆於2015年之內勤人員結構部分，共計有新進員工471人、離職員工302人，員工平均年資6.59年、平均
年齡38.36歲、大專以上學歷佔率為92％、男女性別比例為34％：66％、主管與非主管比例為18％：
82％。
★職業安全與健康維護
◆為強化工作安全，設有「職業安全衛生委員會」、「職業安全衛生管理單位」、「職場暴力預防及處置
小組」三重組織，由各級職業安全衛生業務主管、職業安全衛生管理員、醫師、護理人員及急救人員等
組成，針對各項安全衛生事務進行規劃、督導、執行、評估及改善。
◆為確保工作安全，訂有「安全衛生工作守則」，令同仁於工作時應注意之安全衛生、設備使用與維護、
教育訓練、健康管理、急救與搶救、事故通報與處理等事項有所依循；另訂有「執行職務遭受不法侵害
預防計畫」，針對員工執行職務時之危害辨識及評估、工作場所安全配置、工作適性安排、行為規範建
構、危害預防、事件通報及處理程序等均有完備之規範，以確保員工工作安全。
◆為確保員工身體健康，訂有優於法令之定期健康檢查頻率與項目，每年依據同仁年齡層及工作性質，安
排員工定期健康檢查方案，以早期發現危害健康及潛在的致病因子；並規劃員工健康管理計畫，辦理各
項健康促進活動及講座，包含健康自主管理、良好的飲食行為、規律的運動習慣及適當的紓壓方式等，
協助員工養成良好生活型態及健康行為，以增進員工健康、提升員工向心力及士氣、提升企業形象和競
爭力。
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performance as well as reduce the pressure on staff.
◆We provide feeding room for our female employees. We also work with Taiwan's leading day-care centers
to give employees access to high-quality, reasonably-priced day care programs so that our employees can
balance work and family responsibilities and better focus on their work.
★Appointment Policy and Human Rights Protection
◆Offering diverse and equal employment opportunity is our staff appointment policy. We don't have
discrimination because of race, class, language, thought, religion, party, place of birth, gender, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, appearance, facial features, disability or previous union membership. Our
appointment policy emphasis on equality and diversity, and we continue to maintain a respectful workplace
environment in which colleagues can have correct, objective and inclusive characters.
◆We provide employment opportunities for disabled people. In 2015, for example, employment rate of
disabled colleagues is 1.2% and these people can show their talents in each department. Of which 57 %
work for one to five years, 43% work for over five years, and some of whom have worked for more than
twelve and thirteen years or above. Because of excellent performance of employing disabled people, we
won the "Friendly workplace with enough amounts of disabled" awarded by Bureau of Labor of Taipei City
Government.
◆We value labor-management communication channels and hold labor meetings attended by representatives
of employers and employees. Topics discussed at meetings include labor dynamics and business profiles so
that the representatives of both parties can understand the company operating conditions and communicate
about issues of concern for both employers and employees.
◆To provide gender equality and working environment free of sexual harassment, we have sexual harassment
prevention measures and control committee. When subjected to sexual harassment, we provide unit
that receives harassment complaints, complainant line and other information as well as investigation and
disciplinary provisions. Doing so, employees understand gender norms to preserve their rights and the
occurrence of sexual harassment can be prevented and eliminated.
◆About the back office structure of the staff in 2015, there is a total of 471 new employees, 302 former
employees. The average employee seniority is 6.59 years, and the average age is 38.36 years old.
Employees with college education account for 92%, sex ratio (male vs female) is 34%: 66%, executives and
non-executives ratio of 18%: 82%.
★Occupational Safety and Health Maintenance
◆To enhance workplace safety, we have three organizations of "Occupational Safety and Health Committee",
"Occupational safety and health management unit", "workplace violence prevention and disposal teams'
composed by the occupational safety and health business managers at all levels, occupational safety and
health administrators, physicians, nurses and emergency personnel, etc.,. These people carry out planning,
supervision, implementation, evaluation and improvement of the safety and health affairs.
◆To ensure safety, we set "Code of Practice of Safety and Health “so that colleagues at work have something
to follow and pay attention to health and safety, equipment use and maintenance, education and training,
health management, emergency and rescue, and incident reporting and handling. We also set "illegal invasion
prevention plan" as well as complete specifications for hazard identification and assessment of staff when
performing their duties, the workplace security configuration, suitable work arrangements, and construction
of conducts, hazard prevention, incident reporting and handling procedures. These all used to ensure
employees' workplace safety.
◆To ensure the health of employees, we have regular health check-up frequency and projects better than
those stated in the regulation. Based on age and nature of work, we arrange employees' regular health
screening programs so that health hazards and potential virulence factors can be detected at early stage.
We plan staff health management program and health promotion activities and seminars, including the selfmanagement of health, good eating behaviors and regular exercise habits and proper pressure relieving
programs to help employees develop good lifestyle and healthy behaviors and enhance employee health,
staff morale and cohesion as well as corporate image and competitiveness.
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Company History
公司沿革

公司沿革
Company History

◆稅前純益新台幣106.8億元，稅後純益達91.7億元，淨值達826億元，創中國人壽歷
史新高。
◆市值達新台幣1,053億元，創中國人壽歷史新高。
2015年

◆新契約保費收入達831億元，市場排名由上年度第六名躍升至第四名。
◆資本適足率350%以上為大型保險公司最高。
◆設置「誠信經營委員會」，負責誠信經營政策與防範方案之制訂及監督執行。
◆訂定中國人壽企業社會責任守則，促成經濟、環境及社會之進步，達永續發展之目
標。

◆2014年第一季，總資產突破新台幣兆元，成為國內壽險業兆元俱樂部之成員。
2014年

◆訂定企業社會責任政策，做為永續發展的明確目標。
◆訂定公司治理守則，強化暨落實公司治理。
◆實收資本額突破新台幣300億元。

◆取得臺北學苑地上權，預計新建為中國人壽企業總部，為中國人壽下一個五十年奠
2013年

定基石。
◆首年保費收入突破千億，達到新台幣1,144億元，創中國人壽歷史新高。

2011年

2010年
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◆企業社會責任報告書率先取得SGS國際認證，中國人壽CSR成為保險業領航者。
◆辦理現金增資3億股，成功募集新台幣75億元，資本額突破200億元。

◆與全球市值第二大之中國建設銀行策略合作共同投資「建信人壽」，為兩岸首宗銀
行保險跨業合作。

2015

◆Pre-tax net profit was NT $ 10.68 billion , net income amounted to NT$ 9.17 billion ,
net book value reached NT$82.6 billion , creating a record high at China Life.
◆Market capitalization hits a record high of NT $ 105.3 billion.
◆First year premium reached NT$83.1 billion, the market rank jumped to fourth place
from sixth of the previous year.
◆Capital adequacy ratio is above 350% being the highest for large insurance companies.
◆China Life set the "integrity management committee" responsible for developing and
overseeing the implementation of integrity management policies and prevention
programs.
◆China Life set Corporate Social Responsibility Code and contribute to the progress
of the economy, environment and community, reaching the goal of sustainable
development.

2014

◆China Life's assets reach the NT$1 trillion milestone in the first quarter of 2014,
marking the company's entry into the “Trillion NT Dollar Club＂ of life insurance
companies.
◆China Life set corporate social responsibility policy as specific goal of sustainable
development.
◆China Life set corporate governance codes to strengthen the implementation of
corporate governance.
◆Paid-in capital is more than NT $ 30 billion.

2013

◆China Life obtained superficiary rights of Taipei Academy which is expected to build a
new corporate headquarters, laying the cornerstone for the next fifty years.
◆First-year premium sets an all-time high of NT$114.4 billion.

2011

◆China Life's corporate social responsibility report is verified to comply with the social
responsibility reporting standards of SGS, making China Life the first Taiwanese
insurance company to be awarded this reporting certification.
◆China Life raises NT$7.5 billion from the sale of 300 million new shares, with its paidin capital exceeding NT$20 billion for the first time.

2010

◆China Life agrees to make a strategic investment in CCB Life, the insurance subsidiary
of China Construction Bank, then the world's second-largest bank by market
capitalization. This marks the first ever joint venture between a mainland Chinese
bank and a Taiwanese life insurer.
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Company History
公司沿革

2009年

2008年

◆併購英國保誠人壽台灣主要資產與營運業務，壯大中國人壽規模為壽險業前五大。

◆全球金融海嘯發生，中國人壽當時未投資任何次級房貸及不良資產，故無任何資產
減損，為台灣中大型保險公司中唯一成功避開次貸風暴的保險公司。

2007年

◆概括承受瑞商瑞泰人壽保險公司台灣分公司。

2006年

◆經行政院金管會核准可赴大陸設立合資子公司。

2005年

◆設立北京代表處，積極前進大陸市場。

2004年

◆提出「We Share」為企業標語，展現中國人壽堅持與保戶分享的精神。

2003年

1999年

1995年

◆王章清先生擔任董事長，王銘陽先生擔任總經理。
◆率先業界推出首張分紅保單，成為分紅保單市場先趨品牌。

◆首創業界「癌症診療再諮詢」服務。
◆保戶服務通過「ISO 9002國際品質認證」。

◆正式於臺灣證券交易所掛牌上市(股票代號 2823)，實收資本額為新台幣26.74億
元。

1981年

◆更名成立「中國人壽保險股份有限公司」。

1974年

◆辜振甫先生擔任董事長，辜濂松先生擔任總經理。

1963年
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◆王銘陽先生擔任董事長，郭瑜玲小姐擔任總經理。

◆四月二十五日奉准成立，原名「華僑人壽股份有限公司」，資本額新台幣2,000萬
元。

2009

◆China Life appointed Alan Wang as the chairman and Yu Ling Kuo as the president
◆China Life obtained main assets and operating businesses of Prudential Life in
Taiwan through M & A, expanding its scale to become the top five in the industry.

2008

◆During the global financial crisis in 2008, China Life is the only Taiwan-listed
financial company without impairment losses of assets because it didn't invest in
any subprime and non-performing assets.

2007

◆China Life acquires the Taiwan branch of Switzerland-based Winterthur Life.

2006

◆China Life receives approval from the Financial Supervisory Commission to form
joint ventures in China.

2005

◆China Life inaugurates its representative office in Beijing, marking the first step in
its expansion into China.

2004

◆China Life creates a new corporate motto “We Share＂ to convey its
commitment to sharing the company's success with its policyholders.

2003

◆Mr. Zhang Qing Wang served as chairman, and Mr. Alan Wang served as general
manager.
◆China Life becomes the first Taiwanese insurance company to offer participating
policies.

1999

◆China Life announces the industry's first-of-its-kind second opinion service for
policyholders suspected of having cancer.
◆The Policyholder Service Department obtains the ISO 9002 International Quality
Certificate.

1995

◆China Life is listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange under the ticker of 2823 with an
authorized share capital of NT$2.674 billion.

1981

◆The company was renamed as "China Life Insurance Company Limited."

1974年

◆Mr. Koo served as chairman, and Mr. Jeffrey Koo served as general manager.

1963年

◆Overseas Life Insurance Corp., the predecessor of China Life, obtains approved
for incorporation on April 25 with a share capital of NT$20 million.
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Awards and Recognitions
榮耀與肯定

榮耀與肯定
Awards and Recognitions
2015年 ◆獲選《富比士雜誌》全球兩千大企業(Forbes Global 2000)，為臺灣唯一入選之壽險業。
◆中國人壽企業社會責任報告書榮獲「台灣TOP 50 企業永續報告獎」金融及保險業銀獎。
◆榮獲金融監督管理委員會2015年度微型保險競賽業務績優獎殊榮。
◆榮獲臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司及中華民國證券櫃檯買賣中心共同委託證券暨期貨市場發
展基金會辦理之「第二屆上市上櫃企業公司治理評鑑」名列上市公司TOP 5%。
◆榮獲臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司2015年4月公佈之「第十二屆上市(櫃)公司資訊揭露評鑑報
告」評鑑A++級。
◆連續六年入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
2014年 ◆獲選《富比士雜誌》全球兩千大企業(Forbes Global 2000)。
◆榮登中華徵信所2014年版台灣地區大型企業排名TOP5000，不分業混合營收排名第25名。
◆連續三年獲得臺北市勞動局頒發「企業足超額進用身心障礙者優等認證標章」。
◆榮獲臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司及中華民國證券櫃檯買賣中心共同委託證券暨期貨市場發
展基金會辦理之「第一屆上市上櫃企業公司治理評鑑」名列上市公司TOP 5%。
◆入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
2013年 ◆獲權威雜誌《機構投資者》選為2013亞洲最受尊崇企業及台灣最佳公司。
◆總公司敦北大樓，獲頒臺北市產業發展局「臺北市商業大樓節能標示書」。
◆入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
◆獲臺北市政府勞動局「幸福企業獎」，為壽險業中評等最高者。
◆連續二年獲頒臺北市政府勞動局「企業足超額進用身心障礙優等認證」標章。
2012年 ◆獲頒臺北市政府勞工局「企業足超額進用身心障礙者優等認證標章」，唯一獲獎的壽險公
司。
◆榮登中華徵信所2012年版台灣地區大型企業排名TOP5000，不分業混合營收排名第30名。
◆入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
2011年 ◆榮獲《天下雜誌》評選為「天下企業公民TOP30」。
◆榮獲第四屆保險卓越獎肯定，入圍「公益關懷創新卓越獎」。
◆獲頒「台灣併購金鑫獎-年度最具代表性併購獎」-保險與銀行異業結盟典範。
◆天下雜誌標竿企業聲望調查，中國人壽獲評為保險類第三名。
◆榮獲第八屆《壹週刊》服務大獎-保險類組第三名。
◆入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
2010年 ◆榮獲《富比士雜誌》(Forbes Asia)亞洲最佳50企業，為台灣唯一上榜之金融機構。
◆連續三年蟬聯《遠見雜誌》之「CSR企業社會責任獎」，為唯一上榜的壽險公司。
◆連續三年獲得中華徵信所服務業組營收排名TOP 20。
◆入選臺灣證券交易所股份有限公司「臺灣就業99指數」成分股。
2009年 ◆榮獲保發中心第三屆保險卓越獎「公益關懷特別獎」並入圍「風險管理卓越獎」。
◆蟬聯《遠見雜誌》「CSR企業社會責任獎」，名列上市企業前40強，為壽險業唯一上榜者。
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2015 ◆China Life is elected "Forbes Global 2000" by Forbes, the only selected life insurance company in Taiwan.

◆China Life's Corporate Social Responsibility Report won silver award of the "Taiwan TOP 50 Corporate
Sustainability Report Award".
◆China Life won the "Micro-insurance Business Competition Merit award of 2015" held by Financial Supervisory
Commission.
◆China Life ranked top 5% in the 2nd corporate governance evaluation of publicly traded companies held by
Securities and Futures Institute and jointly commissioned by Taiwan Stock Exchange and the OTC exchange.
◆China Life received the highest score of A++ in the 12th Information Transparency and Disclosure Ranking by
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The result was announced in April 2015.
◆China Life was included in the Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index" for six consecutive
years.

2014 ◆China Life was named a Forbes Global 2000 company.

◆China Life was ranked No. 25 on China Credit Information Service's Top 5000, a composite ranking of the 5,000
largest Taiwanese companies by revenue.
◆China Life was recognized for excellence in disability employment practices by the Department of Labor of
Taipei City Government for three consecutive years.
◆China Life ranked top 5% in the first corporate governance evaluation of publicly traded companies held by
Securities and Futures Institute and jointly commissioned by Taiwan Stock Exchange and the OTC exchange.
◆China Life was included in the Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index."

2013 ◆China Life was recognized among Asia's Best IR Professionals in the insurance sector as well as Best
Companies by Country in Institutional Investor's 2013 All-Asia Executive Team.
◆China Life's headquarters building received the Energy Performance Certificate for commercial property from
the Department of Economic Development of Taipei City Government.
◆China Life was included in the Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index."
◆China Life won "Happy Enterprise Award" with the highest score in the life insurance industry awarded by
Labor Bureau of Taipei City Government.
◆China Life was recognized for excellence in disability employment practices by the Department of Labor of
Taipei City Government for two consecutive years.

2012 ◆China Life was the only life insurance company recognized for excellence in disability employment practices by
the Department of Labor of Taipei City Government.
◆China Life ranked No. 30 on China Credit Information Service's Top 5000 list, a composite ranking of the 5,000
largest Taiwanese companies by revenue.
◆China Life was included in Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index."

2011 ◆China Life was named as one of CommonWealth Magazine's Top 30 Corporate Citizens.

◆China Life was nominated for the Excellence Award for Innovative Philanthropic Practices at the 4th Insurance
Excellence Awards.
◆China Life is awarded the "Taiwan M & A Jinxin Award - the most representative annual M & A Award" -setting
a model of different industry alliances( insurance and banking)
◆China Life ranked No.3 on CommonWealth Magazine's Taiwan's Most Admired Companies list within the
insurance category.
◆China Life won the Bronze prize in the insurance category at the 8th Next Magazine Service Awards.
◆China Life was included in Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index."

2010 ◆China Life was the only Taiwanese financial company named among Forbes Asia's Fab 50.

◆China Life was the only life insurance company to receive the CSR Award from Global Views Magazine for
three consecutive years.
◆China Life ranked TOP 20 in revenue of service group held by China Credit Information for three consecutive
year.
◆China Life was included in Taiwan Stock Exchange's "Taiwan RAFI® EMP 99 Index."

2009 ◆China Life received the Special Award for Philanthropy and was nominated for the Excellence Award for Risk

Management at the 3rd Insurance Excellence Awards by Taiwan Insurance Institute.
◆China Life received the CSR Award from Global Views Magazine for the second consecutive year. The
company was among the top 40 of listed companies and the only life insurance company in the list.
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會計師查核報告
Independent Auditor's Report
中國人壽保險股份有限公司 公鑒：
中國人壽保險股份有限公司民國一○四年十二月三十一日、一○三年十二月三十一日及一○三年
一月一日之資產負債表，暨民國一○四年一月一日至十二月三十一日及民國一○三年一月一日至
十二月三十一日之綜合損益表、權益變動表及現金流量表，業經本會計師查核竣事。上開財務報
表之編製係管理階層之責任，本會計師之責任則為根據查核結果對上開財務報表表示意見。
本會計師係依照會計師查核簽證財務報表規則暨一般公認審計準則規劃並執行查核工作，以合理
確認財務報表有無重大不實表達。此項查核工作包括以抽查方式獲取財務報表所列金額及所揭露
事項之查核證據、評估管理階層編製財務報表所採用之會計原則及所做之重大會計估計，暨評估
財務報表整體之表達。本會計師相信此項查核工作可對所表示之意見提供合理之依據。
依本會計師之意見，第一段所述財務報表在所有重大方面係依照保險業財務報告編製準則及經金
融監督管理委員會認可之國際財務報導準則、國際會計準則、國際財務報導解釋及解釋公告編製，
足以允當表達中國人壽保險股份有限公司民國一○四年十二月三十一日、一○三年十二月三十一
日及一○三年一月一日之財務狀況，暨民國一○四年一月一日至十二月三十一日及民國一○三年
一月一日至十二月三十一日之財務績效與現金流量。

安永聯合會計師事務所
金管會核准辦理公開發行公司財務報告
核准簽證文號：(90) 台財證 ( 六 ) 字第 100690 號
金管證 ( 六 ) 字第 0930133943 號
傅文芳
會計師：
徐榮煌

中華民國一○五年二月二十六日
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders
China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) as of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2014, and the related
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Rules Governing Auditing and Certification of
Financial Statement by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China (“R.O.C.”). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014 and 1
January 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended in
conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Insurance Enterprise and International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
26 February 2016
Notice to Readers:
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdiction. The
standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally
accepted and applied in the Republic of China.
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中國人壽保險股份有限公司
資產負債表
2015年12月31日、2014年12月31日及2014年1月1日
資產

2014年12月31日

2014年1月1日

金額

%

金額

%

$52,426,711

4

$61,223,512

6

$112,702,457

11

11,220,392

1

14,384,897

1

11,169,076

1

1,975,975

0

1,326,043

0

936,683

0

357,944

0

1,605,826

0

1,935,591

0

備供出售金融資產

439,274,726

37

435,292,552

39

427,706,046

44

無活絡市場之債務工具投資

504,141,924

42

440,007,443

40

290,884,414

30

持有至到期日金融資產

42,124,302

4

-

-

-

-

投資性不動產

24,273,542

2

23,553,058

2

22,873,268

2

放款

30,933,445

3

31,083,479

3

32,139,338

3

340,209

0

264,209

0

296,817

0

6,988,198

1

6,973,988

1

5,663,139

1

98,836

0

53,806

0

42,350

0

4,251,116

0

3,235,637

0

859,868

0

其他資產

19,252,055

1

19,091,114

2

5,592,005

1

分離帳戶保險商品資產

64,962,278

5

69,172,331

6

64,800,681

7

會計項目
現金及約當現金
應收款項
本期所得稅資產
透過損益按公允價值衡量之金融資產

再保險合約資產
不動產及設備
無形資產
遞延所得稅資產

資產總計
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2015年12月31日

單位：新台幣仟元

$1,202,621,653

100

$1,107,267,895

100

%

金額

$977,601,733

100

單位：新台幣仟元

負債及權益

2015年12月31日

2014年12月31日

2014年1月1日

會計項目

金額

%

金額

%

應付款項

$8,055,698

1

$9,999,089

1

$5,628,375

1

3,984,347

0

5,847,792

1

3,008,375

0

-

-

-

-

11,104

0

831,031,223

85

透過損益按公允價值衡量之金融負債
其他金融負債
保險負債

1,025,712,952

85

934,190,724

84

金額

%

-

-

-

-

446,490

0

7,695,824

1

5,263,545

0

2,773,740

0

277,491

0

266,651

0

237,795

0

遞延所得稅負債

8,082,606

1

6,738,484

1

1,487,544

0

其他負債

1,266,589

0

1,464,786

0

5,686,893

1

64,962,278

5

69,172,331

6

64,800,681

7

1,120,037,785

93

1,032,943,402

93

915,112,220

94

33,401,467

3

30,364,970

3

27,221,478

3

2,289,273

0

4,414,821

0

6,454,129

1

法定盈餘公積

6,083,247

1

4,780,855

0

3,835,906

0

特別盈餘公積

19,795,287

1

16,777,327

2

6,807,982

1

8,885,246

1

6,167,092

1

12,736,664

1

其他權益

12,129,348

1

11,819,428

1

5,433,354

0

權益總計

82,583,868

7

74,324,493

7

62,489,513

6

100

$977,601,733

100

具金融商品性質之保險契約準備
外匯價格變動準備
負債準備

分離帳戶保險商品負債
負債總計
權益
股本
普通股股本
資本公積
保留盈餘

未分配盈餘

負債及權益總計

$1,202,621,653

100

$1,107,267,895
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China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Audited balance sheets
As at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2014
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Assets

2014/12/31

2014/1/1

Amount

%

Amount

%

Amount

%

$52,426,711

4

$61,223,512

6

$112,702,457

11

11,220,392

1

14,384,897

1

11,169,076

1

1,975,975

0

1,326,043

0

936,683

0

357,944

0

1,605,826

0

1,935,591

0

Available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets

439,274,726

37

435,292,552

39

427,706,046

44

Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists

504,141,924

42

440,007,443

40

290,884,414

30

Held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets

42,124,302

4

-

-

-

-

Investment property

24,273,542

2

23,553,058

2

22,873,268

2

Loans

30,933,445

3

31,083,479

3

32,139,338

3

340,209

0

264,209

0

296,817

0

6,988,198

1

6,973,988

1

5,663,139

1

98,836

0

53,806

0

42,350

0

4,251,116

0

3,235,637

0

859,868

0

Other assets

19,252,055

1

19,091,114

2

5,592,005

1

Separate account product assets

64,962,278

5

69,172,331

6

64,800,681

7

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Current tax assets
Financial assets at fair value
through proﬁt or loss

Reinsurance assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Total assets
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2015/12/31

$1,202,621,653

100

$1,107,267,895

100

$977,601,733

100

Liabilities and equity
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value
through proﬁt or loss
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
Insurance liabilities

2015/12/31

2014/12/31

2014/1/1

Amount

%

Amount

%

$8,055,698

1

$9,999,089

1

$5,628,375

1

3,984,347

0

5,847,792

1

3,008,375

0

-

-

-

-

11,104

0

831,031,223

85

1,025,712,952

85

934,190,724

84

Amount

%

Reserve for insurance contracts
with feature of ﬁnancial instruments

-

-

-

-

446,490

0

Foreign exchange valuation reserve

7,695,824

1

5,263,545

0

2,773,740

0

277,491

0

266,651

0

237,795

0

Deferred tax liabilities

8,082,606

1

6,738,484

1

1,487,544

0

Other liabilities

1,266,589

0

1,464,786

0

5,686,893

1

64,962,278

5

69,172,331

6

64,800,681

7

1,120,037,785

93

1,032,943,402

93

915,112,220

94

Common stock

33,401,467

3

30,364,970

3

27,221,478

3

Capital surplus

2,289,273

0

4,414,821

0

6,454,129

1

6,083,247

1

4,780,855

0

3,835,906

0

19,795,287

1

16,777,327

2

6,807,982

1

8,885,246

1

6,167,092

1

12,736,664

1

Other equity

12,129,348

1

11,819,428

1

5,433,354

0

Total equity

82,583,868

7

74,324,493

7

62,489,513

6

Provisions

Separate account product liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital stock

Retained earnings
Legal capital reserve
Special capital reserve
Unappropriated retained
earnings

Total liabilities and equity

$1,202,621,653

100

$1,107,267,895

100

$977,601,733

100
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中國人壽保險股份有限公司
綜合損益表
2015年及2014年1月1日至12月31日
會計項目

單位：新台幣仟元

2015年度
金額

2014年度
金額

%

變動百
分比(%)

%

營業收入：
$151,225,046

74

$144,674,089

75

5

(0)

0

(34)

0

(100)

151,225,046

74

144,674,055

75

5

(1,052,610)

(1)

(1,027,796)

(1)

2

(219,676)

0

(272,173)

0

(19)

149,952,760

73

143,374,086

74

5

再保佣金收入

155,521

0

206,524

0

(25)

手續費收入

981,941

0

1,000,458

0

(2)

31,759,072

16

27,652,402

14

15

(12,469,945)

(6)

(17,686,010)

(9)

(29)

13,437,577

7

9,763,657

5

38

1,704,328

1

2,107,244

1

(19)

19,944

0

-

-

-

兌換(損)益

14,722,831

7

18,681,389

10

(21)

外匯價格變動準備淨變動

(2,432,279)

(1)

(2,489,805

(1)

(2)

532,476

0

1,097,790

1

(51)

(126,247)

0

(192,329)

0

(34)

46

0

48

0

(5)

5,687,483

3

10,115,736

5

(44)

203,925,508

100

193,631,190

100

5

(83,090,765)

(41)

(64,445,890)

(33)

29

589,774

0

536,724

0

10

自留保險賠款與給付

(82,500,991)

(41)

(63,909,166)

(33)

29

其他保險負債淨變動

(87,630,055)

(43)

(99,554,389)

(52)

(12)

-

-

(606

0

(100

承保費用

(7,758)

0

(8,384)

0

(7)

佣金費用

(13,587,394)

(7)

(9,503,709)

(5)

43

財務成本

(8,656)

0

(18,301)

0

(53)

(187,725)

0

(161,265)

0

16

(5,687,483)

(3)

(10,115,736)

(5)

(44)

(189,610,062)

(94)

(183,271,556)

(95)

3

簽單保費收入
再保費收入
保費收入
減：再保費支出
未滿期保費準備淨變動
自留滿期保費收入

淨投資損益
利息收入
透過損益按公允價值衡量之金融資產及負債損益
備供出售金融資產之已實現損益
無活絡市場之債務工具投資損益之已實現損益
持有至到期日金融資產之已實現損益

投資性不動產(損)益
投資減損損失及迴轉利益
其他營業收入
分離帳戶保險商品收益
營業收入合計
營業成本：
保險賠款與給付
減：攤回再保賠款與給付

具金融商品性質之保險契約準備淨變動

其他營業成本
分離帳戶保險商品費用
營業成本合計
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單位：新台幣仟元

會計項目

2015年度
金額

%

2014年度
金額

%

變動百
分比(%)

營業費用：
業務費用

(2,458,016)

(1)

(2,294,923)

(1)

7

管理費用

(1,222,466)

(1)

(1,203,578)

(1)

2

(25,253)

0

(22,707)

0

11

營業費用合計

(3,705,735)

(2)

(3,521,208)

(2)

5

營業利益(損失)

10,609,711

4

6,838,426

3

55

70,753

0

185,507

0

(62)

繼續營業單位稅前純益(純損)

10,680,464

4

7,023,933

3

52

所得稅(費用)利益

(1,508,562)

(1)

(511,127)

0

195

繼續營業單位本期淨利(淨損)

9,171,902

3

6,512,806

3

41

本期淨利(淨損)

9,171,902

3

6,512,806

3

41

(9,455)

0

6,396

0

(248)

重估增值

142,089

0

48,136

0

195

與不重分類之項目相關之所得稅

(11,032)

0

(4,016)

0

175

備供出售金融資產之未實現評價利益(損失)

(903,906)

0

8,732,844

5

(110)

與可能重分類之項目相關之所得稅

1,084,376

1

(2,357,005)

(1)

(146)

302,072

1

6,426,355

4

(95)

$9,473,974

4

$12,939,161

7

(27)

員工訓練費用

營業外收入及支出

其他綜合損益
不重分類至損益之項目
確定福利計畫之再衡量數

後續可能重分類至損益之項目

本期其他綜合損益(稅後淨額)
本期綜合損益總額
每股盈餘
基本每股盈餘

$2.75

$1.96

稀釋每股盈餘

$2.75

$1.95
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China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Audited statements of comprehensive income
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Thousand, except Earnings per Share)
Item

2015
Amount

2014
Amount

%

Percent
Change(%)

%

Operating revenue
Direct premium income

$151,225,046

74

$144,674,089

75

5

(0)

0

(34)

0

(100)

151,225,046

74

144,674,055

75

5

(1,052,610)

(1)

(1,027,796)

(1)

2

(219,676)

0

(272,173)

0

(19)

149,952,760

73

143,374,086

74

5

Reinsurance commission earned

155,521

0

206,524

0

(25)

Handling fees earned

981,941

0

1,000,458

0

(2)

31,759,072

16

27,652,402

14

15

(12,469,945)

(6)

(17,686,010)

(9)

(29)

13,437,577

7

9,763,657

5

38

Realized gains on debt instrument
investments for which no active market exists

1,704,328

1

2,107,244

1

(19)

Realized gains from held-to-maturity ﬁnancial
assets

19,944

0

-

-

-

Foreign exchange gains (losses)

14,722,831

7

18,681,389

10

(21)

Net changes in foreign exchange valuation
reserve

(2,432,279)

(1)

(2,489,805

(1)

(2)

532,476

0

1,097,790

1

(51)

(126,247)

0

(192,329)

0

(34)

Reinsurance premium income
Premium income
Deduct:Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Net changes in unearned premium reserve
Retained premium earned

Net investment proﬁts and losses
Interest income
Gains (losses) on ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Realized gains on available-for-sale ﬁnancial
assets

Gains on investment property
Impairment losses and gains on reversal of
impairment losses
Other operating revenue

46

0

48

0

(5)

5,687,483

3

10,115,736

5

(44)

203,925,508

100

193,631,190

100

5

(83,090,765)

(41)

(64,445,890)

(33)

29

589,774

0

536,724

0

10

Retained claim payments

(82,500,991)

(41)

(63,909,166)

(33)

29

Net changes in insurance liabilities

(87,630,055)

(43)

(99,554,389)

(52)

(12)

-

-

(606

0

(100

(7,758)

0

(8,384)

0

(7)

(13,587,394)

(7)

(9,503,709)

(5)
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Separate account product revenue
Subtotal
Operating costs
Insurance claim payments
Deduct: Claims recovered from reinsures

Net changes in reserve for insurance contracts
with feature of ﬁnancial instruments
Brokerage expenses
Commission expenses
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Item
Finance costs

2015
Amount

%

2014
Amount

%

Percent
Change(%)

(8,656)

0

(18,301)

0

(53)

(187,725)

0

(161,265)

0

16

(5,687,483)

(3)

(10,115,736)

(5)

(44)

(189,610,062)

(94)

(183,271,556)

(95)

3

Business expenses

(2,458,016)

(1)

(2,294,923)

(1)

7

Administrative and general expenses

(1,222,466)

(1)

(1,203,578)

(1)

2

(25,253)

0

(22,707)

0

11

Subtotal

(3,705,735)

(2)

(3,521,208)

(2)

5

Operating income (loss)

10,609,711

4

6,838,426

3

55

70,753

0

185,507

0

(62)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income tax

10,680,464

4

7,023,933

3

52

Income tax beneﬁt (expense)

(1,508,562)

(1)

(511,127)

0

195

Net income (loss) from continuing operations

9,171,902

3

6,512,806

3

41

Net income (loss)

9,171,902

3

6,512,806

3

41

(9,455)

0

6,396

0

(248)

Gains on revaluation

142,089

0

48,136

0

195

Income taxes relating to items that are not be
reclassiﬁed

(11,032)

0

(4,016)

0

175

Unrealized valuation gains (losses) on
available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets

(903,906)

0

8,732,844

5

(110)

Income taxes relating to items that are or may
be reclassiﬁed subsequently to proﬁt or loss

1,084,376

1

(2,357,005)

(1)

(146)

302,072

1

6,426,355

4

(95)

$9,473,974

4

$12,939,161

7

(27)

Other operating costs
Separate account product expenses
Subtotal
Operating expenses

Employee training expenses

Non-operating income and expenses

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassiﬁed subsequently to
proﬁt or loss
Remeasurements of the net deﬁned beneﬁt
liability or asset

Items that are or may be reclassiﬁed subsequently
to proﬁt or loss

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share (In New Taiwan Dollars)
Basic earnings per share

$2.75

$1.96

Diluted earnings per share

$2.75

$1.95
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中國人壽保險股份有限公司
權益變動表
2015年及2014年1月1日至12月31日

項目
2014年1月1日餘額

普通股股本
$27,221,478

資本公積
$6,454,129

依金管保財字第10402501001號令提列特別盈餘公積
2013年度盈餘指撥及分配
提列法定盈餘公積
提列特別盈餘公積
普通股現金股利
普通股股票股利

1,104,184

其他資本公積變動
1,656,271

(1,656,271)

-

-

383,037

(383,037)

2014年12月31日餘額

$30,364,970

$4,414,821

2015年1月1日餘額

$30,364,970

$4,414,821

資本公積配發股票股利
2014年度淨利(調整後)
2014年度其他綜合損益(調整後)
2014年度綜合損益總額(調整後)
可轉換公司債轉換
特別準備淨變動

2014年度盈餘指撥及分配
提列法定盈餘公積
提列特別盈餘公積
普通股現金股利
普通股股票股利

910,949

其他資本公積變動
資本公積配發股票股利

2,125,548

(2,125,548)

-

-

$33,401,467

$2,289,273

2015年度淨利
2015年度其他綜合損益
2015年度綜合損益總額
特別準備淨變動
2015年12月31日餘額
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單位：新台幣仟元

保留盈餘
法定盈餘公積
$3,835,906

其他權益項目

特別盈餘公積

未分配盈餘

$6,807,982

$12,736,664

8,394,443

(8,359,328)

944,949
1,188,799

備供出售金融資產
未實現損益
$5,398,239

重估增值

權益總額

$35,115

$62,489,513

(35,115)

-

(944,949)

-

(1,188,799)

-

(1,104,181)

(1,104,181)

(1,104,184)

-

6,512,806

-

-

6,512,806

5,166

6,375,839

45,350

6,426,355

6,517,972

6,375,839

45,350

12,939,161
-

386,103

(386,103)

$4,780,855

$16,777,327

$6,167,092

$11,774,078

$45,350

$74,324,493

$4,780,855

$16,777,327

$6,167,092

$11,774,078

$45,350

$74,324,493

1,302,392
2,721,158

-

(1,302,392)

-

(2,721,158)

-

(1,214,599)

(1,214,599)

(910,949)

-

9,171,902

-

$6,083,247

9,171,902

(7,848)

180,470

129,450

302,072

-

9,164,054

180,470

129,450

9,473,974

296,802

(296,802)

$19,795,287

$8,885,246

$11,954,548

$174,800

$82,583,868
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China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Audited statements of changes in equity
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Thousand)

Summary

Balance on 1 January 2014

Common stock

$27,221,478

Capital surplus

$6,454,129

Special capital reserve recognized in accordance with
Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Insurance-Corporate-10402501001
Appropriation and distribution of earnings for the year 2013
Legal capital reserve
Special capital reserve
Cash dividends
Stock dividends

1,104,184

Changes in other capital surplus
Capital surplus used to distribute stock dividends

1,656,271

(1,656,271)

-

-

383,037

(383,037)

Balance on 31 December 2014

$30,364,970

$4,414,821

Balance on 1 January 2015

$30,364,970

$4,414,821

Net income for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Adjusted)
Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Adjusted)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Adjusted)
Conversion of convertible bonds
Net changes in special reserve

Appropriation and distribution of earnings for the year 2014
Legal capital reserve
Special capital reserve
Cash dividends
Stock dividends

910,949

Changes in other capital surplus
Capital surplus used to distribute stock dividends

2,125,548

(2,125,548)

-

-

$33,401,467

$2,289,273

Net income for the year ended 31 December 2015
Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015
Net changes in special reserve
Balance on 31 December 2015
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Retained earnings
Legal capital
reserve
$3,835,906

Other equity

Special capital Unappropriated
reserve
retained earnings
$6,807,982

$12,736,664

8,394,443

(8,359,328)

944,949
1,188,799

Unrealized valuation
gains (losses) on
Revaluation surplus
available-for-sale
ﬁnancial assets
$5,398,239

Total

$35,115

$62,489,513

(35,115)

-

(944,949)

-

(1,188,799)

-

(1,104,181)

(1,104,181)

(1,104,184)

-

6,512,806

-

-

6,512,806

5,166

6,375,839

45,350

6,426,355

6,517,972

6,375,839

45,350

12,939,161
-

386,103

(386,103)

$4,780,855

$16,777,327

$6,167,092

$11,774,078

$45,350

$74,324,493

$4,780,855

$16,777,327

$6,167,092

$11,774,078

$45,350

$74,324,493

1,302,392
2,721,158

-

(1,302,392)

-

(2,721,158)

-

(1,214,599)

(1,214,599)

(910,949)

-

9,171,902
$6,083,247

9,171,902

(7,848)

180,470

129,450

302,072

-

9,164,054

180,470

129,450

9,473,974

296,802

(296,802)

$19,795,287

$8,885,246

$11,954,548

$174,800

$82,583,868
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中國人壽保險股份有限公司
現金流量表
2015年及2014年1月1日至12月31日
單位：新台幣仟元

2015年度
金額

2014年度
金額

$10,680,464

$7,023,933

折舊費用

94,489

82,411

攤銷費用

27,790

17,276

(14,726)

(64,404)

透過損益按公允價值衡量之金融資產及負債之淨損益

12,469,945

17,724,690

備供出售金融資產之淨損失（利益）

(8,272,681)

(6,035,027)

無活絡市場之債務工具投資損益之淨損失（利益）

(1,704,328)

(2,107,244)

(19,944)

-

利息費用

8,656

18,301

利息收入

(31,759,072)

(27,652,401)

股利收入

(5,164,896)

(3,767,091)

各項保險負債淨變動

91,506,984

103,171,715

-

(446,490)

外匯價格變動準備淨變動

2,432,279

2,489,805

其他各項負債準備淨變動

(3,632)

5,400

653

299

(10,967)

(3,589)

14,629

-

111,547

176,196

(33,531,854)

(10,445,002)

(45,717)

(648,402)

(13,100,878)

(14,577,820)

62,122

32,513

4,209,766

(2,643,643)

371,566

(14,169,621)

1,991

1,148,065

(60,755)

20,393

其他資產（增加）減少

(1,628)

2,416

應付票據增加（減少）

(167,798)

177,439

(23,973)

8,617

(1,954,906)

4,289,092

項目
營業活動之現金流量：
本期稅前淨利（淨損）
調整項目：
收益費損項目

呆帳費用提列（轉列收入）數

持有至到期日金融資產之淨損失（利益）

具金融商品性質之保險契約準備淨變動

處分及報廢不動產及設備損失（利益）
處分投資性不動產投資損失（利益）
金融資產減損損失
非金融資產減損迴轉利益
未實現外幣兌換損失（利益）
投資性不動產公允價值調整利益
與營業活動相關之資產/負債變動數
透過損益按公允價值衡量之金融資產（增加）減少
應收票據（增加）減少
其他應收款（增加）減少
預付費用及其他預付款（增加）減少
存出保證金（增加）減少
再保險合約資產（增加）減少

應付保險賠款與給付增加（減少）
其他應付款增加（減少）
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2015年度
金額

2014年度
金額

14,830

31,153

應付佣金增加（減少）

136,907

(146,752)

預收款項增加（減少）

93,845

(1,038,832)

7,675

7,632

(299,717)

(3,190,906)

5,017

29,852

營運產生之現金流入（流出）

26,113,683

49,519,974

收取之利息

45,200,951

17,977,639

收取之股利

5,124,538

3,730,334

支付之利息

(8,656)

(18,301)

(702,298)

(386,275)

75,728,218

70,823,371

取得備供出售金融資產

(132,677,941)

(210,915,464)

處分備供出售金融資產

137,659,313

222,673,401

備供出售金融資產減資退回股款

25,682

52,849

取得無活絡市場之債務工具投資

(167,366,057)

(225,807,454)

處分無活絡市場之債務工具投資

117,814,362

89,856,439

4,000,000

3,400,000

取得持有至到期日金融資產

(42,793,703)

-

處分持有至到期日金融資產

681,895

-

(400,848)

(1,412,004)

取得無形資產

(63,534)

(28,732)

放款(增加)減少

164,119

1,120,244

取得投資性不動產

(458,606)

(266,127)

處分投資性不動產

104,898

128,713

(83,310,420)

(121,198,135)

(1,214,599)

(1,104,181)

籌資活動之淨現金流入（流出）

(1,214,599)

(1,104,181)

本期現金及約當現金增加（減少）數

(8,796,801)

(51,478,945)

期初現金及約當現金餘額

61,223,512

112,702,457

期末現金及約當現金餘額

$52,426,711

$61,223,512

項目
應付再保往來款項（減少）

存入保證金增加（減少）
其他負債增加（減少）
員工福利負債準備增加（減少）

退還（支付）之所得稅
營業活動之淨現金流入（流出）
投資活動之現金流量：

無活絡市場之債務工具投資到期還本

取得不動產及設備

投資活動之淨現金流入（流出）
籌資活動之現金流量：
發放現金股利
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China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Audited statements of cash ﬂows
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
2015
Amount

2014
Amount

$10,680,464

$7,023,933

94,489
27,790
(14,726)

82,411
17,276
(64,404)

Net losses (gains) on ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
proﬁt or loss

12,469,945

17,724,690

Net losses (gains) on available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets

(8,272,681)

(6,035,027)

Net losses (gains) on debt instrument investments for which no active
market exists

(1,704,328)

(2,107,244)

(19,944)
8,656
(31,759,072)
(5,164,896)
91,506,984

18,301
(27,652,401)
(3,767,091)
103,171,715

-

(446,490)

2,432,279
(3,632)
653
(10,967)
14,629
111,547
(33,531,854)
(45,717)

2,489,805
5,400
299
(3,589)
176,196
(10,445,002)
(648,402)

(13,100,878)
62,122
4,209,766
371,566
1,991
(60,755)
(1,628)
(167,798)
(23,973)
(1,954,906)

(14,577,820)
32,513
(2,643,643)
(14,169,621)
1,148,065
20,393
2,416
177,439
8,617
4,289,092

Item
Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Net income (loss) before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile proﬁt (loss)
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Provision (reversal of provision) for bad debt expense

Net losses (gains) on held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets
Interest expenses
Interest income
Dividend income
Net changes in insurance liabilities
Net changes in reserve for insurance contracts with feature of ﬁnancial
instruments
Net changes in foreign exchange volatility reserve
Net changes in provisions
(Gains) losses on disposal or scrapping of property and equipment
(Gains) losses on disposal of investment property
Impairment losses on ﬁnancial assets
Reversal of impairment losses on non-ﬁnancial assets
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains)
Gains on valuation of investment property
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable
Decrease (increase) in other receivables
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other prepayments
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Decrease (increase) in reinsurance assets
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in notes payable
Increase (decrease) in life insurance proceeds payable
Increase (decrease) in other payables
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Item

2015
Amount

2014
Amount

14,830

31,153

136,907
93,845
7,675
(299,717)
5,017
26,113,683
45,200,951
5,124,538
(8,656)
(702,298)
75,728,218

(146,752)
(1,038,832)
7,632
(3,190,906)
29,852
49,519,974
17,977,639
3,730,334
(18,301)
(386,275)
70,823,371

(132,677,941)
137,659,313
25,682

(210,915,464)
222,673,401
52,849

(167,366,057)

(225,807,454)

117,814,362

89,856,439

4,000,000

3,400,000

Acquisition of held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets
Disposal of held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Decrease (increase) in loans
Acquisition of investment property
Disposal of investment property
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(42,793,703)
681,895
(400,848)
(63,534)
164,119
(458,606)
104,898
(83,310,420)

(1,412,004)
(28,732)
1,120,244
(266,127)
128,713
(121,198,135)

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Cash dividends paid
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancing activities

(1,214,599)
(1,214,599)

(1,104,181)
(1,104,181)

(8,796,801)
61,223,512
$52,426,711

(51,478,945)
112,702,457
$61,223,512

Increase (decrease) in due to reinsurers and ceding companies
Increase (decrease) in commissions payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts collected in advance
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in provision for employee beneﬁts
Cash generated from operations activities
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes refunded (paid)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Acquisition of available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets
Disposal of available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets
Return of capital from available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets
Acquisition of debt instrument investments for which no active
market exists
Disposal of debt instrument investment for which no active market
exists
Maturity principal from debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

I. Organizations and business scope
China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Taiwan on 25 April 1963,
previously known as Overseas Life Corp. The Company was renamed China Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. and authorized by Ministry of Finance, R.O.C. and Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. in
January 1981. The registered office address of the Company is 5F., No.122, Dunhua N. Rd.,
Songshan Dist., Taipei City, Taiwan (R.O.C.). The Company’s shares were listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. The Company mainly engages in the business of life insurance. The Company is
headquartered in Taipei City, and has branches in Taoyuan City, Taichung City, Chiayi City,
Tainan City, Kaohsiung City, Pintung County, Hualien County and Penghu County.
To enhance operation synergy, the Company accomplished the acquisition of major assets and
liabilities from Prudential Corporation Asia Life Taiwan on 19 June 2009. The deal was approved
by Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) under Order No. Financial-Supervisory
-Securities-Corporate-09802552211 on 16 June 2009.
The Company established an offshore insurance unit (OIU) on 14 September 2015 following
resolution of the board of directors and receiving approval from FSC.
II. Date and procedures of authorization of financial statements for issue
The financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were
authorized to issue in accordance with a resolution of the Company’s board of directors on 26
February 2016.
III. Newly issued or revised standards and interpretations
1. Changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of certain standards and
amendments
The Company initially applied for International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are endorsed by
FSC and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The
nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment that has a material effect on the
Company are described below:
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(1) IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
The revised IAS 19 brought about the following changes to defined benefit plans which
are summarized below:
(a) The interest cost and expected return on plan assets used in the previous version of
IAS 19 are combined into a net-interest amount under the revised IAS 19, which is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset at
the start of each annual reporting period.
(b) In the previous version of IAS 19, past service cost is recognized as an expense
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, or on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. Under the revised
IAS 19, all past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or
curtailment occurs or when the related restructuring costs are recognized. Therefore
unvested past service cost is no longer deferred over future vesting periods. Since
the Company has no unallocated past service costs, the amendment has no impact on
the Company.
(c) The revised IAS 19 required more disclosure. Please refer to Note VI.
(d) The Company applied the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits retrospectively in the
current period in accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the revised
standard except that the carrying amount of assets was not adjusted for changes in
employee benefit cost that were included in the carrying amount before 1 January
2014. The figures of the earliest comparative period presented and the comparative
period have been accordingly restated. Since the Company has no retrospective
issue, the amendment has no impact on the Company.
The Company determines the net interest by multiplying the net defined benefit
liability (asset) by the discount rate, which replaces the interest cost and the
expected rate of return on plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19. The
impact on the adjusted items and amounts during each period are as follows:
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Impact on the statement of comprehensive income
For the years ended 31 December
2015
Decrease in operating expenses
Other comprehensive income
Increase in Remeasurements of defined
benefit plans

2014

$728

$847

$(728)

$(847)

(2) IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities sets out the requirements for
disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and structured entities. The requirements in IFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the
previously existing disclosure requirements. The Company discloses information about
interests in unconsolidated structured entities in accordance with IFRS 12. Please refer
to Note XVII for more details.
(3) IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements”
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value
measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but
provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS. The Company re-assessed
its policies for measuring fair values. Application of IFRS 13 has no materially impact on
the fair value measurements of the Company.
Additional disclosures required under IFRS 13 are provided in the individual notes
relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair values were determined. Fair value
hierarchy is provided in Note VIII. According to the transitional provisions of IFRS 13,
IFRS 13 is applied prospectively as of 1 January 2015; the disclosure requirements of
IFRS 13 need not be applied in comparative information before 1 January 2015.
(4) IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements – Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”
Beginning on 1 January 2014, the Company presented its items of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to profit or loss separately from items that will not be
reclassified in accordance with the amendments to IAS 1. The amendments affect
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presentation of statement of comprehensive income only and have no impact on the
Company’s financial position or performance.
(5) IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements – Clarification of the requirement for
comparative information”
Beginning on 1 January 2014, according to the amendments to IAS 1, when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements,
the opening statement of financial position does not have to be accompanied by
comparative information in the related notes. The amendments affect notes
accompanying the financial statements only and have no impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.
2. The impact of standards or interpretations issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by FSC.
Standards or interpretations issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by FSC at the date when
the Company’s financial statements were authorized for issue are listed below:
Adoption Date
Contents of Standards or interpretations

(Note1)

(1) IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (Amendment)

1 January 2014

(2) IFRIC 21 “Levies”

1 January 2014

(3) IAS 39 “Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting”

1 January 2014

(4) IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” (Defined benefit plans: employee contributions)

1 July 2014

(5) Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2010-2012
cycle):
IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”

Note2

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

Note3

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

1 July 2014
Note4

IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”

1 July 2014

IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

1 July 2014

IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”

1 July 2014

(6) Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2011-2013
cycle):
IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards”

1 July 2014
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Adoption Date
Contents of Standards or interpretations

(Note1)

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

1 July 2014

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

1 July 2014

IAS 40 “Investment Property”

1 July 2014

(7) IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

1 January 2016

(8) IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

1 January 2016

Joint Operations)
(9) IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” — 1 January 2016
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
(10) IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

1 January 2018

(11) IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 “Agriculture” —

1 January 2016

Agriculture: Bearer Plants
(12) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

1 January 2018

(13) IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” — Equity Method in Separate

1 January 2016

Financial Statements
(14) IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28“Investments in

Note5

Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventures
(15) Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2012-2014
cycle):
IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

1 January 2016

IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

1 January 2016

IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

1 January 2016

IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”

1 January 2016

(16) IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” (Amendment)

1 January 2016

(17) IFRS 10“Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of

1 January 2016

Interests in Other Entities”, and IAS 28“Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” — Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(18) IFRS 16 “Leases”

1 January 2019

(19) IAS 12 “Income Taxes” — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

1 January 2017

Unrealized Losses
(20) Disclosure Initiative — Amendment to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”

1 January 2017

Note1: Except otherwise noted, the newly issued standards and interpretations above are effective for
annual periods subsequent to the date of issue.
Note2: Apply to share-based payments whose vesting dates take place after 1 July 2014.
Note3: Apply to business combinations whose acquisition dates take place after 1 July 2014.
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Note4: Effective immediately following amendment.
Note5: The effective date of this amendment has been postponed indefinitely, but early adoption is
allowed.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by
FSC at the date when the Company’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local
effective dates are to be determined by FSC. As the Company is still currently determining
the potential impact of the standards and interpretations listed below, it is not practicable to
estimate their impact on the Company at this point in time. All other standards and
interpretations have no material impact on the Company.
IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (Amendment)
This amendment relates to the amendment issued in May 2011 and requires entities to
disclose the recoverable amount of an asset (including goodwill) or a cash-generating unit
when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. The amendment
also requires detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been
measured when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed, including valuation
techniques used, level of fair value hierarchy of assets and key assumptions used in
measurement.
IFRIC 21 “Levies”
This interpretation provides guidance on when to recognize a liability for a levy imposed by a
government (both for levies that are accounted for in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and those where the timing and amount of the
levy is certain).
IAS 39 “Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting”
Under the amendment, there would be no need to discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging
derivative was novated, provided certain criteria are met.
IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” (Defined benefit plans: employee contributions)
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The objective of the amendments is to provide a policy choice for a simplified
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accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service,
for example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of
salary.
Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2010-2012 cycle)
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
The amendment to the Basis for Conclusions of IFRS 13 clarifies that when deleting
paragraph B5.4.12 of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and paragraph AG79 of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as consequential amendments from
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, the IASB did not intend to change the measurement
requirements.
IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”
The amendment clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset.
IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”
The amendment clarifies that when an intangible asset is revalued, the accumulated
amortization at the date of revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset.
Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2011-2013 cycle)
IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
The amendment clarifies that paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes a scope exception for
measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis.
The objective of this amendment is to clarify that this portfolio exception applies to all
contracts within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, regardless of whether they meet the definitions of financial
assets or financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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IAS 40 “Investment Property”
The amendment clarifies the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property; in determining whether a
specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in IFRS 3
Business Combinations and investment property as defined in IAS 40 Investment Property,
separate application of both standards independently of each other is required.
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
The IASB has issued the final version of IFRS 9, which combines classification and
measurement, the expected credit loss impairment model and hedge accounting. The standard
will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous
versions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (which include standards issued on classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hedge accounting).
Classification and measurement: Financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value
through profit or loss, or fair value through other comprehensive income, based on both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost or fair value
through profit or loss. Furthermore there is requirement that ‘own credit risk’ adjustments
are not recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment: Expected credit loss model is used to evaluate impairment. Entities are required
to recognize either 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Hedge accounting: Hedge accounting is more closely aligned with risk management activities
and hedge effectiveness is measured based on the hedge ratio.
Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2012-2014 cycle)
IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing
involvement in a financial asset and therefore the disclosures for any continuing involvement
in a transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
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Disclosures is required. The amendment also clarifies that whether the IFRS 7 disclosure
related to the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities are required to be included
in the condensed interim financial report would depend on the requirements under IAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting.
IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
The amendment clarifies the requirement under IAS 19.83, that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located.
IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
The amendment clarifies what is meant by “elsewhere in the interim financial report” under
IAS 34; the amendment states that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial report. The
other information within the interim financial report must be available to users on the same
terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time.
Disclosure Initiative — Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
The amendments contain (1) clarifying that an entity must not reduce the understandability of
its financial statements by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by
aggregating material items that have different natures or functions. The amendments
reemphasize that, when a standard requires a specific disclosure, the information must be
assessed to determine whether it is material and, consequently, whether presentation or
disclosure of that information is warranted, (2) clarifying that specific line items in the
statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated, and how an entity shall present additional subtotals, (3) clarifying that entities
have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements, but also
emphasize that understandability and comparability should be considered by an entity when
deciding on that order, (4) removing the examples of the income taxes accounting policy and
the foreign currency accounting policy, as these were considered unhelpful in illustrating
what significant accounting policies could be, and (5) clarifying that the share of OCI of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented in
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aggregate as a single line item, classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
IFRS 16 “Leases”
The new standard requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model (subject to certain exemptions). Lessor accounting still uses the dual classification
approach: operating lease and finance lease.
IAS 12 “Income Taxes” — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
The amendment clarifies how to account for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses.
Disclosure Initiative — Amendment to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
The amendment relates to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and to require
a reconciliation of the carrying amount of liabilities at the beginning and end of the period.
IV. Summary of significant accounting policies
1. Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Insurance Enterprises (“the Regulations”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised
or amended which are endorsed by FSC.
2. Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial
instruments and investment property that have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless otherwise
stated.
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3. Foreign currency transactions
The Company’s financial statements are presented in functional currency, NT$. Foreign
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated using the closing rate of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is measured. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date of initial transactions.
Apart from the items mentioned below, the exchange differences due to settlement or
translation are recognized in profit or loss for the period.
(1) The foreign currency items which are applicable to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurements should be dealt with the accounting policy of financial
instruments.
(2) Exchange differences of monetary items arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations are recognized in other comprehensive income. When the
investment is disposed of or sold, exchange differences are reclassified from other
comprehensive income into profit or loss.
If a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income, any
foreign exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognized in other comprehensive
income. If a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any foreign
exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognized in profit or loss.
4. Product categories
Insurance contract means the insurer accepts the transfer of significant insurance risk from
insurance policyholder, and agrees to compensate the policyholder for any damages when a
particular uncertain event (insured event) occurs in the future. The definition of a significant
insurance risk means any insured event occurs and causes the Company to pay additional
significant fees.
Insurance contract with features of financial instruments is the contract that transfers the
significant financial risk. The definition of the financial risk refers to one or more specific
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interest rates, product prices, exchange rates, price index, rate index, credit ratings and
indicators, and other variables related to risks of possible changes in the future. If the above
variables are non-financial variables, then the variables exist in both sides under the contract.
When the original judgment meets the criteria of the policy under the insurance contract,
before the right of ownership and obligations expires or extinguishes, the policy will still be
considered as an insurance contract; even if the exposure to insurance risk during the policy
period has been significantly reduced. However, if insurance risk following the renewal of an
insurance contract with features of financial instruments is transferred to the Company, the
Company will reclassify the contract as an insurance contract.
Insurance contracts and insurance contracts with feature of financial instruments can be
further broken down into separate categories depending on whether the contracts have
discretionary participation feature or not. To have discretionary participation feature means a
guaranteed payment from the contract plus contractual rights to receive additional payments.
These contractual rights have the following characteristics:
(1) Additional payments as a percentage of total contractual payments may be more
significant and take up a bigger portion.
(2) In accordance with the contract, the amount and date of additional payments are at the
Company’s discretion.
(3) In accordance with the contract, additional payments are handed out based on one of the
following matters:
a. Performance of a specific combination of contracts or specific type of contract
b. The investment return of a specific asset portfolio the Company holds
c. Profit and loss from the Company, funds, or other entities
When embedded derivative products’ economic characteristics and risks are no longer closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the primary contracts, it should be listed
separately from the primary contracts and use fair value method to determine its fair value.
Also the profit or loss determined by the fair value method should be recognized in the
current period. However, if the embedded derivative product meets the definition of an
insurance contract or the whole contract is measured by the fair value method and the profit
or loss is recognized in the current period, the Company will not need to separately list the
embedded derivative product and the insurance contract.
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5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The Company classifies time deposits as
cash equivalents when they have maturities of less than 12 months and can be readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
6. Financial assets and liabilities
(1) Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provision of financial instrument.
Pursuant to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, financial
assets are categorized as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”,
“available-for-sale financial assets”, “held-to-maturity financial assets”, and “loans and
receivables”. Financial liabilities are categorized as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss”, and “financial liabilities measured at amortized cost”.
Financial assets designated as at fair value are recognized and derecognized using trade
date accounting, and financial assets designated as at amortized cost are recognized and
derecognized using settlement date accounting on a regular way purchase or sale basis.
Subsequent measurement of each category of financial assets and liabilities is listed
below:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss. Dividends or interests on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss.
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Apart from derivatives and financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, financial instruments may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or
loss category if the financial instruments are no longer held for the purpose of selling
them in the near term, and the following requirements are met:
j Financial assets that would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be
reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category if the entity has the
intention and ability to hold the financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.
k Financial instruments that would not have met the definition of loans and receivables
may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category only in rare
circumstances.
The fair value of the financial instrument on the date of reclassification becomes its new
cost or amortized cost, as applicable. Any gain or loss already recognized in profit or
loss shall not be reversed. Financial instrument shall not be reclassified into the fair value
through profit or loss category after initial recognition.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets or loans and receivables. After
initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in equity, except for impairment losses and gains or
losses arising from the translation of monetary financial assets. When the financial assets
are derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recorded in equity are
recognized in profit or loss. The interest income calculated by effective interest method
of available-for-sale financial assets and dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognized in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets meeting the definition of loans and receivables may be
reclassified out of the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivables category if
the entity has the intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future
or until maturity. Upon reclassification, the fair value on the date of reclassification
becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable. Any previous gain or loss on the
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asset that has been recognized in equity shall be amortized to current profit or loss over
the remaining life of the asset.
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets if the Company has both the positive
intention and ability to hold the financial assets to maturity. Such investments are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Gains or losses on changes in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss when the investments are derecognized or impaired. The
amortized cost is computed as the cost amount initially recognized minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate
arising from the difference between the cost and the maturity amount, and minus
impairment. Contracts related to the financial instruments, transactions costs, fees and
premiums/discounts are taken into consideration when calculating the effective interest
rate.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Company
upon initial recognition classified as at fair value through profit or loss, designates as
available-for-sale, and those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its
initial investment because of credit deterioration.
Loans and receivables are separately presented on the balance sheet as receivables, debt
instrument investments for which no active market exists or loans. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or transaction costs. The
effective interest method amortization is recognized in profit or loss.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value subsequently measured at fair value with changes
recognized in profit or loss which includes all interest payments the financial liabilities
disburse.
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Such liabilities measured at cost on the end of the reporting period are reported as
financial liabilities measured at cost on the balance sheet if there are no fixed or
determinable payments quoted in an active market.
(2) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
The Company derecognizes all or part of the financial assets when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset or when it loses its
controls to the assets.
When the Company transfers all or part of the financial assets and abandons its controls
to the assets, it is regarded as sale within the scope of charging in exchange.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes all or part of the financial liabilities when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instrument investments
with substantially different terms or a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the liability extinguished and the liability recognized is recognized in profit or
loss.
(3) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(4) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired when, and only when, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset. The carrying amount of the financial asset impaired, other
than receivables and loans impaired which are reduced through the use of an allowance
account, is reduced directly and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.
A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
instrument below its cost is considered a loss event.
Other loss events may include:
j significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor ; or
k a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or
l it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or
m the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
Impairment methods of financial assets the Company adopts in accordance with different
measurements as below:
For held-to-maturity financial assets and loans and receivables measured at amortized
cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial asset that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exits for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
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the financial assets original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
Interest income is accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.
In addition, in accordance with the regulation of “Guidelines for Handling Assessment of
Assets, Loans Overdue, Receivable on Demand and Bad Debts by Insurance
Enterprises”, the Company is required to record the minimum amounts based upon each
of the following category for allowance of uncollectible accounts:
1. Total amount of 0.5% of the ending balance for the first category of loan assets
excluding life insurance loans, automatic premium loans and holding government
debts, 2% of the ending balance for the second category of loan assets that should be
paid attention, 10% of the ending balance for the third category of loan assets that are
expected to recover, 50% of the ending balance for the fourth category of loan assets
that are difficult to recover and 100% of the ending balance for the fifth category of
loan assets that are not expected to recover are aggregated .
2. 1% of the ending balance for all the five categories of loan assets excluding life
insurance loans, automatic premium loans and holding government debts.
3. Total unsecured portion of loans overdue and receivable on demand.
4. If total amount of minimum allowance of uncollectible accounts measured from the
categories above are less than the amount in accordance with GAAP, it should refer
to the amount in accordance with GAAP as minimum allowance of uncollectible
accounts.
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In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognized in profit or loss – is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed
through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income.
In the case of debt instrument investments classified as available-for-sale, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the
amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognized in profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recognized in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a
debt instrument investment increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
(5) Derivative financial instruments and hedging transactions
The Company engages in derivative financial instrument transactions, such as forward
foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, options and
futures, to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations.
These derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the day a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.
7. Loans
Loans include automatic premium loans, policy loans and secured loans. Among them,
automatic premium loans are premiums paid on behalf of the insured in accordance with the
insurance contract, policy loans are secured by policies issued by the Company, and secured
loans are secured by stocks, chattel, real estate and other loans and overdue receivables
approved by the authority.
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Loan principal or interest arrears more than three months after the settlement period, or less
than three months but has executed recourse to the primary and secondary debtor or disposed
the collateral, listing under overdue loans.
Collateral received from the overdue loans by actively dunning is recorded at the fair value
listed in the related account depending on the nature of the collateral, and measured in the
applicable method of that account.
8. Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
(1) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(2) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible for the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
9. Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and removing the item,
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restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for construction in progress if
the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost
that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. When
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Company recognizes such parts as individual assets separately with specific useful lives and
depreciation. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in
accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.
When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the
following assets:
Buildings and construction
Computer equipment
Communication and transportation equipment
Other equipment
Leased assets

15～60 years
3~15 years
5~10 years
3~5 years
Depend on the age or the durable
life of lease, whichever is shorter

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively as a change in accounting estimate, if
appropriate.
10. Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing of an investment property.
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The Company’s investment properties are measured at fair value, and gains or losses are
recognized in profit or loss in accordance with the requirements of IAS 40 Investment
Property, other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or are
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and paragraph 53 of IAS 40
Investment Property.
Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
Assets are transferred to or from investment properties when there is a change in use.
11. Leases
The Company as a lessee
Finance leases which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognized in profit or loss.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
The Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental incomes incurred from the
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operating leases are recognized over the lease term under straight-line method. Contingent
rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
12. Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired through merger, is its fair value as at the acquisition date.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognized in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.
Other intangible assets are computer software and are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life (3 to 5 years).
13. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that an asset in the scope of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such
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indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which
in turn increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.
The cash generating unit or group which belongs to goodwill should periodically make an
impairment test whether it has a sign of impairment. If the impairment test result suggests
recognizing an impairment loss, then first deducting goodwill and the remaining deficiencies
should be amortized to other assets depending on the relative proportions of the carrying
amount of the asset. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in the future
periods for any reason.
An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.
14. Investment-linked insurance products
The Company sells investment-linked insurance products, of which the applicant pays the
premium according to the agreed amount less the expenses incurred by the insurer. In
addition, the investment distribution is approved by the applicant and then transferred to
specific accounts as requested by the applicant. The value of these specific accounts is
determined based on their fair value on the applicable date and the net worth is computed in
accordance with the relevant regulations and the IFRSs.
In accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Insurance
Enterprises, assets and liabilities representing the rights and obligations of the applicants,
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whether arising from an insurance contract or insurance policy with features of financial
instruments, are recognized separately as “separate account product assets” and “separate
account product liabilities”. The revenues and expenses of separate account insurance
products in accordance with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, separately recognized as “separate
account product revenues” and “separate account product expenses.”
15. Post-employment benefits
The Company set up a pension plan and an independently administered pension fund
committee according to Labor Standards Act. The Company deposits retirement reserve
according to a certain percentage of wages to the specific account of Bank of Taiwan every
month. As the retirement reserves are deposited under the committee’s name in the specific
bank account, the reserves are not associated with the Company. Therefore, retirement
reserve is not included in the Company’s financial statements.
After the Labor Pension Act became effective, employees can choose to be subject to the
pension mechanism under Labor Standards Act or Labor Pension Act. The seniority prior to
the enforcement of Labor Pension Act shall be maintained and the Company deposits 6% of
the monthly allocated wage based on the monthly wage allocation classification schedule to
employees’ personal pension accounts in Bureau of Labor Insurance if employees choose to
be subject to the pension mechanism under Labor Pension Act.
For the defined contribution plan, the Company recognizes expenses in the period in which
the contribution becomes due. For the defined benefit plan, expenses are recognized based on
actuarial assumptions at the end of reporting period. Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (asset) comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets and any
change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset), is recognized as other comprehensive income with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings when it occurs. Past service cost is the
change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a plan amendment
or curtailment, and recognized as an expense at the earlier of the following dates:
(1) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and
(2) when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is determined by multiplying the net
defined benefit liability (asset) by the discount rate, both as determined at the start of the
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annual reporting period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.
16. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, which probably leads to an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits that is required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability.
17. Insurance liabilities and reserve for insurance contracts with feature of financial instruments
The Company’s reserved funds for insurance contracts and financial instruments whether with
or without discretionary participation feature are made in accordance with “Regulations
Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance Enterprises.” Furthermore,
they have been validated by the certified actuarial professionals approved by Financial
Supervisory Commission. The required amount to be reserved for short-term group insurance
is based upon the greater of premium received or calculated premium following the
regulations established by the authorities. Reserved amount for the rest of other provisions is
addressed below:
Moreover, an insurance contract with discretionary participation feature is classified as
liability.
(1) Unearned premium reserve
For the insurance policy whose term is within one year and has not met the due date or
for the injury insurance policy whose term is over one year, the amount of reserve
required is based upon the unexpired risk calculation.
(2) Reserve for claims
It is a reserve mainly for the reported but not paid claims and unreported claims. The
reported but not paid claims reserve is assessed based on relevant information of each
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case and the amount deposited is further classified by the type of insurance. Unreported
claims reserve is calculated and deposited based on the past experiences and expenses
occurred and in accordance with the actuarial principles.
(3) Reserve for life insurance liabilities
Based on the life table and projected interest rates in the manual provided by the
authority for each type of insurance, the dollar amount of life insurance reserve is
calculated and deposited according to the calculation method listing on Article 12 of
“Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance Enterprises”
and the manual published by each authority of insurance products.
Starting from policy year of 2003, for valid insurance contract whose dividend
calculation is stipulated by the regulations established by the authorities, the downward
adjustments of dividend due to the offset between mortality saving (loss) and loss (gain)
from difference of interest rates should be recognized and recorded as the increase of
reserve for long-term valid contract.
When an insurer that opts to measure investment property at fair value, the value of its
insurance liabilities at the same time must also be measured at fair value. If the results of
the measurements indicate that the fair value of the insurance liabilities exceeds book
value, the life insurer must set aside the difference to reserve for life insurance liabilities.
The Company changes its accounting policy for subsequent measurement of investment
property from cost to fair value starting from year of 2014. The value of insurance
liabilities at the same time is measured at fair value in accordance with rules issued by the
FSC on 21 March 2014. The results of the measurements indicate that the fair value of
the insurance liabilities doesn’t exceed book value, therefore insurance liabilities does not
have to be increased.
(4) Special reserve
j For the retained businesses with policy period within 1 year, the special reserve is
classified into 2 categories, “Special Capital Reserve－Special Reserve for Major
Incidents” and “Special Capital Reserve－Special Reserve for Fluctuation of Risks.”
The dollar amount of reserve required is addressed as follows:
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A. Special capital reserve－Special reserve for major incidents
All types of insurance should follow the special catastrophe reserve rates set by
authorities. Upon occurrence of the catastrophic events, actual claims on retained
business in excess of NT$30,000 thousand can be withdrawn from the reserve. If
the reserve has been set aside for over 15 years, the Company could have its plan
of the recovering process of the reserve assessed by certified actuaries and submit
the plan to the authority for reference.
B. Special capital reserve—Special reserve for fluctuation of risks
When the actual amount paid for indemnity minus the offsetting amount from
special reserve for major incidents is less than the anticipated dollar amount need
to be paid, the 15% of this difference should be reserved in special reserve for
fluctuation of risks. When the actual amount paid for indemnity minus the
offsetting amount from special reserve for major incidents is greater than the
anticipated dollar amount need to be paid, the exceeded amount can be used to
write down the special reserve for fluctuation of risks. If the special reserve for
fluctuation of risks for specified type of insurance is not enough to be written
down, special reserve for fluctuation of risks for other types of insurance can be
used. Also, the type of insurance and total dollar amount written-down should be
reported to the authority for inspection purpose. When accumulative dollar amount
of special reserve for fluctuation of risks exceeds 30% of self-retention earned
premium within one year, the exceeded amount will be recovered.
For special reserves for major incidents and special reserve for fluctuation of risks
addressed previously, the balance of the annual reserve net of tax, the post-tax
amount of appropriated and written-down or recovery would be recorded in the
special capital reserve under equity.
k The Company sells participating life insurance policy. According to the “Rule
Governing application of revenue and expenses related to participating /
non-participating policy”, the Company is required to set aside special reserve for
dividend participation based on income before tax and dividend. On the date of
declaration, dividend should be withdrawn from this account. The excess dividend
should be accounted as special reserve for dividend risks.
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l The net impact from first adoption of fair value in subsequent measurement has been
appropriated into dividend reserve for participating policy which relates to investment
property. That reserve can only be used to recover the shortage of valid contract
according to the fair value of the liability reserve assessment approved by the
authority and replenish the liabilities under the stage two of IFRS 4 “Insurance
Contracts” for the sustainable of financial structure. By the time the related assets
dispose, the reserve which comes from the changes of fair value due to the cumulative
net value-added benefits can be processed according to the related distribution
provision of participating policy.
(5) Premium deficiency reserve
For the contracts over one year of life, health, or annuities insurance commencing on 1
January 2001, the following rules apply: When the gross premium is less than the
valuation net premium, a deficiency reserve is required to be set aside with the value of
an annuity, the amount of which shall equal the difference between such premiums and
the term of which in years shall equal the number of future annual payments due on such
insurance at the date of the valuation.
In addition, for the insurance policy which period is within one year and has not met the
due date or accidental insurance policy over one year, the following rules apply: If the
probable indemnities and expenses are greater than the aggregate of unearned premium
reserves and collectable premiums in the future, the premium deficiency reserve is set
aside based on the difference thereof.
(6) Liability adequacy reserve
This is the reserve that is set aside based on the adequacy test of liability required by
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.
Liability adequacy test is based on integrated insurance contract and related regulations.
This test compares net of reserve for insurance contract, deferred acquisition cost and
related intangible assets with anticipated present value of insurance contract cash flow at
each reporting date. If net book value is insufficient, recognize all insufficient amounts as
liability adequacy reserve.
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(7) Reserves for insurance contracts with feature of financial instruments
Financial products without discretionary participation features follows “Regulations
Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance Enterprises” and
Depository Accounting.
18. Foreign exchange valuation reserve
Foreign exchange valuation reserve was appropriated or written-down from the foreign
investment assets (do not include foreign currency non-investment-linked life insurance
product assets) in accordance with “Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various
Reserves by Insurance Enterprises” and “Directions for Foreign Exchange Valuation Reserve
by Life Insurance Enterprises”. The beginning balance of foreign exchange valuation reserve
is NT$1,745,679 thousand which has to recognize special reserve within three years since
2012 according to the provision. The recognized amount should not be less than one third of
the beginning balance net of tax for the first year. The cumulative recognized amount of the
first two years should not be less than two thirds of the beginning balance net of tax. In
addition, the saving of hedging costs is transferred to special reserve each year. If the annual
earning is not enough for transfer, then replenish in the later year. The related special reserve
may be used to increase the share capital or offset deficit at least once in the following three
years. According to “Directions for Foreign Exchange Valuation Reserve by Life Insurance
Enterprises” Article 9, if the Insurance company has annual net tax earning, then it should
appropriate 10% of that earning to special reserve after shareholders' meeting.
19. Insurance premium income and expenses
For the Company’s insurance contract and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features, the initial and renewal premium are only recognized as revenue after
collection and underwriting procedures, and subsequent session of collection are completed,
respectively. In terms of the acquisition cost such as commission expenses and brokerage
expenses, the related expenses will be recognized in that period after commencement of the
insurance contract.
For non-separate account insurance product that is also classified as financial products
without discretionary participation features, the insurance revenue collected is recognized on
the balance sheet as “reserves for insurance contracts with feature of financial instruments.”
The related acquisition costs will be written-down in that period after commencement of the

China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

insurance contract under “reserves for insurance contracts with feature of financial
instruments.”
20. Reinsurance
The Company limits exposure to some events that may cause a certain amount of loss and
engages in reinsurance in accordance with business needs and the insurance laws and
regulations. For reinsurance ceded, the Company may not refuse to fulfill its obligations to
the insured because the reinsurer fails to fulfill their responsibility.
Premiums ceded to reinsurers and reinsurance commission income generated from ceded
reinsurance business and due to reinsurers and ceding companies are recognized in the same
period with income or expense of the related insurance contract. As the net right of holding
reinsurance contract includes reinsurance reserve assets, claims recoverable from reinsurers
and due from reinsurers and ceding companies, they are recognized according to the method
of signed reinsurance contract and related insurance contract liabilities. The assets, liabilities,
income and expense of reinsurance contract cannot offset with the income and expense of
related insurance liabilities and insurance contract.
The Company holds the right over re-insurer for reinsurance reserve assets, claims
recoverable from reinsurers-net and due from reinsurers and ceding companies, and regularly
assess if impairment has occurred to such rights or the rights can no longer be recovered.
When objective evidences demonstrate that such rights after initial recognition may lead to
the Company not recovering all contractual terms of the amount due; and the above events
can be recovered from reinsurers at the impacted amount, then the Company can retrieve an
amount that is less than the carrying value of the aforementioned rights, and recognize
impairment losses.
For the classification of reinsurance contracts, the Company assesses whether the transfer of
significant insurance risk to the re-insurer has occurred. If the transfer of significant insurance
risk is not apparent, then the contract is recognized and evaluated with deposit accounting.
For reinsurance contracts that have their significant insurance risk transferred, if the Company
can separate the individual elements and measure their savings, then the reinsurance contracts
need to be recognized separately as the insurance’s element and the saving’s element. That is,
the Company receives (or pays) the contract’s value minus the insurance element, recognizing
it as either financial liabilities (or assets), and not as incomes (or expenses). The financial
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liabilities (or assets) are recognized with the fair value method and uses the present value of
future cash flow as the basis for the fair value method.
21. Income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) is the aggregate amount in respect of current tax and deferred
tax which included in profit or loss for the period.
Current income tax
Current income tax asset (liability) for the current and prior period is measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax and the tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity shall be recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
rather than the profit and loss.
The 10% income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the
subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved at the shareholders’ meeting.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheets.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax consequences generated from expected
recovery of assets or settlement of liabilities at the end of reporting date. Deferred tax is not
recognized in the profit and loss if the related item is not recognized in the profit and loss.
Rather, it is recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity according to their
transaction. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized
accordingly.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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22. Unconsolidated structured entities
Securitization vehicles such as real estate investment trust and beneficiary certificates of
financial asset securitization, asset-backed financings and some investment funds such as
private funds are unconsolidated structured entities, and the related information should be
disclosed in accordance with IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.
V. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.
1. Judgment
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:
(1) Categories of financial assets
The Company classification of financial assets is based on the nature and purpose of the
assets at the initial recognition. The management has to use its judgment to categorize
financial assets. Different categories applied will affect measurements of the financial
assets, which could have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position and
performance.
(2) Categories of insurance contracts
The Company identifies the composition of the issued insurance product contracts,
decides whether it can be measured individually and determines whether the contract
should be separately recognized. In addition, the Company examines whether the
insurance contract has a significant insurance risk through review of the effective period
of additional payment ratio, to decide the category of insurance products. If the
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additional payment ratio reach the pre-set significant standard at any policy period, such
contract should be considered having a significant insurance risk. If a single contract
provides payment of multiple different insurance events, additional payment will be
calculated by the greatest difference between the payment of each insurance event if
occurs and the payment of each insurance event if not occurs.
(3) Operating lease commitment－the Company as the lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Company has determined, based on evaluation of the terms for the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership for these
properties and takes the contracts as operating leases.
(4) Judgment for interests in structured entities
The Company determines whether to disclose related information about unconsolidated
structured entities in accordance with IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
depending on purpose and design of each entity, including consideration of risks from
design of unconsolidated structured entities, risks designed to pass to the parties of
unconsolidated structured entities and the Company’s exposure to some or all risks.
2. Estimates and assumptions
The assumptions about the future and primary sources of uncertainty estimation at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
(1) Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair value of the financial instruments recognized in the balance sheet cannot
be derived from an active market or a quoted price, it is determined using a valuation
technique. In applying valuation techniques, the Company adopts pricing models in
accordance with its procedure for valuation, and uses observable market data as possible.
The changes in assumptions of these models will affect the fair value of reported financial
instruments. Please refer to Note VIII.
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(2) Fair value of investment property
The fair value of investment property is derived from valuation techniques, including the
income approach (such as discounted cash flow model) and market method, etc., and
assumptions used in applying valuation techniques will have influence on the fair value of
investment property.
(3) Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash
flows projections are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being
tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes.
(4) Pension benefits
The costs of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation
under defined benefit pension plans are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include determination of
the discount rate, increase in future salaries, mortality rates and increase in future pension
payment.
(5) Insurance contract liabilities (including investment contract liabilities with discretionary
participation feature of financial instruments)
The liability for insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation feature of financial instruments is either based on current assumptions or on
assumptions established at the inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at
the time. All contracts are subject to a liability adequacy test, which reflect
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management’s best current estimate of future cash flows. The main assumptions used
relate to mortality, morbidity, investment returns, and expenses and surrender rates. The
Company bases its assumptions on the standards published by the Actuarial Institute of
the Republic of China, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s unique risk
exposure, product characteristics and experiences from target markets.
The best estimates of future investment income from the assets are based on current
market returns, as well as expectation about future economic development. Assumptions
on future expense are based on current expense level, adjusted for expected expense
inflation, if appropriate. Surrender rates are based on the Company’s historical
experience.
(6) Income taxes
Uncertainty of income taxes exists on interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. The differences between the actual results
and the assumptions, or future changes to such assumptions could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes
provision, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequence of audits by the tax
authorities at the each county where it operates. The amount of provision is based on
various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and different interpretation of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused
tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences
against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be
recognized is based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and
taxable temporary differences together with future tax planning strategies.
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VI. Description of significant accounting items
1. Cash and cash equivalents
Item
Cash on hand
Revolving funds
Cash in banks
Time deposits
Cash equivalents－bond with resale
agreement
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$1,777
4,555
11,124,260
18,718,877

$1,386
4,390
20,309,870
31,258,003

$1,992
4,420
24,126,962
58,178,420

22,577,242

9,649,863

30,390,663

$52,426,711

$61,223,512

$112,702,457

2. Receivables
Item
Notes receivable - Net
Other receivables - Net
Interest receivable
Rent receivable
Financial instruments settlement
receivable
Separate accounts receivable
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for bad debts -Other
receivables
Overdue receivables
Less: Allowance for bad debts Overdue receivables
Subtotal
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$417,919

$480,040

$512,554

9,082,009
-

8,571,489
3,900

8,000,337
6,794

190,935
1,020,819
508,710

2,822,688
1,808,044
695,145

193,883
1,705,563
746,347

756

7,427

(2)
7,454

(756)

(3,836)

(3,854)

10,802,473

13,904,857

10,656,522

$11,220,392

$14,384,897

$11,169,076
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3. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Item
Held for sale:
Derivative financial assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts
IRS contracts
Subtotal

2015.12.31

$181,840
-

$183,037
3,077

22,615

181,840

186,114

-

811,755

246,906
870,298

-

811,755

1,117,204

335,329

612,231

632,273

$357,944

$1,605,826

$1,935,591

Subtotal

Total

2014.1.1

$22,615
-

Non-derivative financial assets
Government bonds
Domestic listed stocks
Designated financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Convertible bonds

2014.12.31

4. Available-for-sale financial assets
Item

2015.12.31

Domestic listed stocks

$72,807,607

Domestic beneficiary certificates
Domestic real estate investment trust
Domestic government bonds
Domestic corporate bonds
Domestic financial debentures
Domestic unlisted stocks
Overseas listed stocks
Overseas beneficiary certificates
Overseas government bonds
Overseas corporate bonds
Overseas financial debentures
Overseas preferred stocks
Overseas unlisted stocks
Less: Refundable deposits

1,555,087
190,765,178
3,282,833
1,232,730
2,648,151
16,384,512
8,467,305
3,131,596
37,379,636
75,608,268
7,901,252
19,684,307
(1,573,736)

Total

$439,274,726

2014.12.31
$80,701,910
1,535,172
190,355,494
6,012,423
5,877,480
2,307,657
7,711,611
6,209,172
2,461,262
19,792,198
88,992,639
6,591,218
18,243,697
(1,499,381)
$435,292,552

2014.1.1
$62,823,080
68,151
1,479,085
203,133,361
9,927,969
8,616,975
1,727,450
3,901,094
10,515,180
3,285,705
10,664,364
102,024,070
11,042,188
(1,502,626)
$427,706,046
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5. Debt instrument investments for which no active market exists
Item
Domestic government bonds
Domestic corporate bonds
Domestic financial debentures
Domestic time deposits
Overseas government bonds
Overseas corporate bonds
Overseas financial debentures
Overseas real estate mortgage bonds
Overseas structured notes
Less: Refundable deposits
Total

2015.12.31
$10,109,830
41,109,413
31,304,987
12,792,773
74,655,112
312,972,980
24,951,715
(3,754,886)

2014.12.31
$10,179,958
51,110,209
29,708,151
1,500,000
7,487,941
55,596,390
264,544,894
21,273,190
1,903,080
(3,296,370)

2014.1.1
$10,358,909
50,671,574
17,511,264
1,500,000
9,299,807
46,108,884
150,937,827
7,309,306
(2,813,157)

$504,141,924

$440,007,443

$290,884,414

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

6. Held-to-maturity financial assets
Item
Domestic government bonds
Overseas government bonds
Overseas corporate bonds
Overseas financial debentures
Total

$2,472,447
2,458,633
24,418,565
12,774,657

$-

$-

$42,124,302

$-

$-

7. Loans
Item
Policy loans
Automatic premium loans
Secured loans－net
Secured loans－non-related parties
Less: Allowance for bad debts
Overdue receivables－net
Overdue receivables
Less: Allowance for bad debts
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$23,118,699
4,929,303

$22,783,741
4,462,868

$22,943,143
4,097,988

2,914,591

3,769,521

4,856,292

2,929,378
(14,787)

3,788,966
(19,445)

4,881,656
(25,364)

(29,148)

67,349

241,915

(29,148)

105,924
(38,575)

338,956
(97,041)

$30,933,445

$31,083,479

$32,139,338
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The movements in the provision for impairment of secured loans and overdue receivables are
as follows:
For the years ended 31
December
2015

2014

Beginning balance
Charge (reversal) for the current period
Write off

$58,020
(14,085)
-

$122,405
166,233
(230,618)

Ending balance

$43,935

$58,020

The above impairment is assessed collectively.
8. Investment property
The reconciliations from the beginning book value balances to the ending book value
balances for investment property measured at fair value model in subsequent period are as
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Land
Costs:
Beginning balance
Additions
Gains (losses) generated
from fair value
adjustments
Disposals
Transfers
Transfers from (to)
property and equipment
Ending balance

$14,908,068
384,227

Buildings
$5,894,607
74,379

Prepayments
for buildings
$-

Total
$20,802,675
458,606

204,664
(35,119)
(16,985)

(158,947)
(45,631)
-

-

45,717
(80,750)
(16,985)

320,080

104,290

-

424,370

$15,764,935

$5,868,698

$-

$21,633,633

China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Prepayments
Land

for buildings

Buildings

Total

Costs:
Beginning balance

$13,977,456

$5,953,100

$-

$19,930,556

170,963

95,164

-

266,127

744,786

(96,384)

-

648,402

Disposals

(50,908)

(74,229)

-

(125,137)

Transfers

65,771

16,956

-

82,727

$14,908,068

$5,894,607

$-

$20,802,675

Additions
Gains (losses) generated
from fair value
adjustments

Ending balance

Development of the vacant land and prepayments for buildings without construction license is
measured at cost because its fair value cannot be reliably determined. The reconciliations
from the beginning book value balances to the ending book value balances are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Prepayment for
Land

Buildings

buildings

Total

Costs:
Beginning balance

$4,135,804

$-

$-

$4,135,804

Transfers

16,985

-

-

16,985

Disposals

(16,985)

-

-

(16,985)

$4,135,804

$-

$-

$4,135,804

$1,385,421

$-

$-

$1,385,421

111,617

-

-

111,617

-

-

$-

$-

Ending balance
Accumulated impairment :
Beginning balance
Charge (reversal) for the
current period
Disposals
Ending balance

(1,143)
$1,495,895

(1,143)
$1,495,895
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Land

Prepayment for
buildings

Buildings

Total

Costs :
Beginning balance

$4,135,804

$-

$-

$4,135,804

Ending balance

$4,135,804

$-

$-

$4,135,804

$1,193,092

$-

$-

$1,193,092

192,329

-

-

192,329

$1,385,421

$-

$-

$1,385,421

Net carrying amount :
2015.12.31

$18,404,844

$5,868,698

$-

$24,273,542

2014.12.31

$17,658,451

$5,894,607

$-

$23,553,058

2014.1.1

$16,920,168

$5,953,100

$-

$22,873,268

Accumulated impairment :
Beginning balance
Charge (reversal) for the
current period
Ending balance

A major part of the Company’s buildings includes main plants, air conditioning, electrical and
elevator equipment.
Valuation has been performed by appraisers from professional valuation agencies based on
Regulations on Real Estate Appraisal. Valuation reports are issued every six months and
evaluated the effectiveness of the fair value at the balance sheet date quarterly to determine
whether to issue new valuation reports. The valuation dates of the valuation reports for the
reporting period are 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014. Please
refer to original financial reports for detail information of the appraisers and agencies.
The decision of fair value is supported by observable evidence in the market. The appraisal
approaches mainly used are the comparison approach, income approach, cost approach and
land development analysis of cost approach. Commercial office buildings and residences are
valued mainly by comparison approach and income approach because of the market liquidity
and comparable sales and rental cases in neighboring areas. Income approach does not use
discounted cash flow analysis, so no inputs of the discount rate.
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The inputs mainly used are as follows:

Income capitalization rate

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Mainly
1.30%~4.46%

Mainly
1.30%~4.51%

Mainly
1.43%~4.62%

The Company recognized its investment property at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and fair value is categorized in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
investment property will decrease as the main input, income capitalization rate of direct
capitalization method, increases. On the contrary, the fair value of investment property will
increase if the main input decreases.
The investment properties are held mainly for lease business. All the lease agreements are
operating leases. The primary terms of lease agreements are the same as general lease
agreements. Rents from property investment are received annually, semi-annually, quarterly,
monthly or in lump sum.
Rents from investment properties were NT$475,792 thousand and NT$445,799 thousand for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. Related direct operating expenses were
NT$63,264 thousand and NT$69,924 thousand. The direct operating expenses of investment
properties generating no rents were NT$2,146 thousand and NT$4,293 thousand.
As at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, no investment properties
were pledged as collateral.
9. Reinsurance assets
Item

2015.12.31

Claims recoverable from reinsurers
Due from reinsurers and ceding
companies
Reinsurance reserve assets
Ceded unearned premium reserve
Ceded reserve for claims
Subtotal
Total
The above reinsurance assets are not impaired.

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$214,261

$113,874

$127,625

29,652

69,283

75,925

44,928
51,368

42,973
38,079

40,494
52,773

96,296

81,052

93,267

$340,209

$264,209

$296,817
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10. Property and equipment
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Prepayments
for buildings
and
Computer

Transportation

Other

construction in

Land

Buildings

equipment

equipment

equipment

$5,807,871

$1,754,400

$317,518

$14,819

$267,454

Additions

-

-

44,196

2,222

56,267

Disposals

-

-

(16,558)

Leased assets

progress

Total

$20,987

$357,831

$8,540,880

109

298,054

400,848

-

-

(17,864)

-

(281,713)

Cost:
1 January 2015

(525)

(781)

Transfers from (to)
investment property
Transfers

(217,036)

(64,677)

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,477

1,436

-

-

$5,590,835

$1,689,723

$352,633

$17,952

$322,940

$21,096

$637,686

$8,632,865

$-

$344,227

$214,133

$10,986

$230,244

$20,499

$-

$820,089

Depreciation

-

39,323

36,747

1,603

16,425

391

-

94,489

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(17,211)

-

567

-

-

-

-

-

567

$-

$384,117

$234,975

$12,064

$245,888

$20,890

$-

$897,934

$741,560

$5,243

$-

$-

$-

$-

$-

$746,803

-

-

-

-

-

$-

$-

$-

$-

$-

31 December 2015

(18,199)

(9,286)

Accumulated
Depreciation:
1 January 2015

(15,905)

(525)

(781)

Transfers from (to)
investment property
31 December 2015
Accumulated impairment:
1 January 2015
Reversal of impairment
loss
31 December 2015

(3)
$741,557

(67)
$5,176

(70)
$746,733
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Prepayments
for buildings
and
Computer

Transportation

Other

construction in

Land

Buildings

equipment

equipment

equipment

Leased assets

progress

Total

$5,187,963

$1,392,860

$301,146

$12,676

$243,322

$20,987

$12,371

$7,171,325

Additions

643,247

376,674

20,026

2,192

24,405

-

345,460

1,412,004

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(3,976)

(38,473)

Cost:
1 January 2014

(3,654)

(49)

(273)

Transfers from (to)
investment property
31 December 2014

(23,339)

(15,134)

-

-

-

-

-

$5,807,871

$1,754,400

$317,518

$14,819

$267,454

$20,987

$357,831

$8,540,880

$-

$316,517

$183,412

$10,280

$215,108

$19,933

$-

$745,250

Depreciation

-

31,605

34,077

754

15,409

566

-

82,411

Disposals

-

-

(3,356)

(48)

-

-

(3,677)

(3,895)

Accumulated
Depreciation:
1 January 2014

(273)

Transfers from (to)
investment property
31 December 2014

-

(3,895)

-

-

-

-

-

$-

$344,227

$214,133

$10,986

$230,244

$20,499

$-

$820,089

$744,753

$18,183

$-

$-

$-

$-

$-

$762,936

(12,940)

-

-

-

-

-

$741,560

$5,243

$-

$-

$-

$-

$-

$746,803

2015.12.31

$4,849,278

$1,300,430

$117,658

$5,888

$77,052

$206

$637,686

$6,988,198

2014.12.31

$5,066,311

$1,404,930

$103,385

$3,833

$37,210

$488

$357,831

$6,973,988

2014.1.1

$4,443,210

$1,058,160

$117,734

$2,396

$28,214

$1,054

$12,371

$5,663,139

Accumulated impairment:
1 January 2014
Reversal of impairment
loss

(3,193)

31 December 2014

(16,133)

Net book value:

Property and equipment held by the Company are not pledged.
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11. Other assets
Item
Prepayments
Prepayment－surface rights
Other prepayments
Subtotal
Refundable deposits
Insurance industry deposits
Lawsuit deposits
Other deposits
Subtotal
Other assets－others
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$13,787,436
104,085

$13,990,040
273,047

$93,465

13,891,521

14,263,087

93,465

5,309,535
19,087
19,298

4,774,240
21,511
21,289

4,295,982
19,801
1,169,354

5,347,920

4,817,040

5,485,137

12,614

10,987

13,403

$19,252,055

$19,091,114

$5,592,005

Prepayment－the surface rights are land use rights for 13 government properties, including
Taipei Academy and ZHONG-LUN Housing that were acquired on 28 November 2013. The
execution date of the contract was 20 January 2014 for a term of 70 years. The expiration
date is 19 January 2084.
12. Payables
Item
Notes payable
Life insurance proceeds payable
Commissions payable
Due to reinsurers and ceding companies
Other payables
Salary payable
Accrued expenses
Tax payable
Collection payable
Payable on investments
Payable on insurance policies
Others
Subtotal
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$90,075
104,040
1,407,307
222,447

$257,872
128,013
1,270,400
207,617

$80,434
119,396
1,417,152
176,464

565,889
2,019,258
61,400
42,291
499,913
2,888,525
154,553

523,434
1,260,495
37,755
3,999,315
2,213,899
100,289

380,523
1,003,457
40,114
707,901
1,621,897
81,037

6,231,829

8,135,187

3,834,929

$8,055,698

$9,999,089

$5,628,375
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13. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Held for trading:
Derivative financial instruments
Forward foreign exchange contracts

$3,984,347

$5,847,792

$3,008,375

Total

$3,984,347

$5,847,792

$3,008,375

14. Other financial liabilities
Item
First unsecured subordinated
mandatory convertible bonds for 2009

2015.12.31
$-

2014.12.31
$-

2014.1.1
$11,104

(1) In order to strengthen the capital structure, the Company was approved to place and
issue domestic first unsecured convertible bonds by the FSC on 23 March 2009 with
Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-09802044820. The convertible
bonds were issued privately, amounting to NT$1.3 billion and 4% of coupon rate. The
issuing period is five years, from 27 March 2009 to 27 March 2014.
(2) The Company separated the conversion option from liabilities in accordance with IAS
39. As at 1 January 2014, the Company recognized NT$230,140 thousand of paid-in
capital－stock option. Because the convertible bonds expired on 27 March 2014 were
fully converted to common shares, paid-in capital－stock option were completely written
off.
Convertible bond liabilities consist of:
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Primary debt instrument
First unsecured subordinated
mandatory convertible bonds for 2009
Add: Premium on convertible bonds

$-

$-

$11,104

Total

$-

$-

$11,104

China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

(3) The convertible bonds are unsecured, subordinated, and have no agreement to buy or sell
back. Upon maturity, all outstanding bonds are mandatorily converted to common shares
of the Company at current conversion price.
(4) The conversion price of the convertible bonds is adjusted in accordance with the method
set in conversion arrangement. As at 1 January 2014, the total amount of bonds
converted to common shares was NT$1.02 billion, and all bonds were converted to
118,881,113 common shares. On maturity date of 27 March 2014, the residual bonds
with face value of NT$280 million were converted to 38,303,693 common shares at
conversion price of NT$7.31.
15. Insurance contracts and provision for financial instruments with discretionary participation
feature
As at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, movement in reserves of
insurance contracts and financial instruments with discretionary participation feature is as
follows:
(1) Reserve for life insurance liabilities:
2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Life insurance
Health insurance
Annuity insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$680,341,792

$80,876,923

$761,218,715

85,126,882

-

85,126,882

767,663

157,203,645

157,971,308

1,900,260

-

1,900,260

$768,136,597

$238,080,568

$1,006,217,165

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Life insurance
Health insurance
Annuity insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$597,669,901

$100,839,759

$698,509,660

75,257,687

-

75,257,687

811,767

142,243,194

143,054,961

1,921,524

-

1,921,524

$675,660,879

$243,082,953

$918,743,832
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2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Life insurance
Health insurance
Annuity insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$519,310,629

$113,071,417

$632,382,046

65,901,664

-

65,901,664

884,643

117,577,097

118,461,740

1,947,993

-

1,947,993

$588,044,929

$230,648,514

$818,693,443

Note: There is no ceded liability reserve for the above insurance contracts.
Movement in reserve for life insurance liabilities is summarized below:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$675,660,879

$243,082,953

$918,743,832

Reserve

124,766,160

30,801,816

155,567,976

Recover

(35,859,095)

(35,804,201)

(71,663,296)

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange
Ending balance

3,568,653

-

3,568,653

$768,136,597

$238,080,568

$1,006,217,165

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$588,044,929

$230,648,514

$818,693,443

Reserve

112,773,291

38,056,355

150,829,646

Recover

(28,395,795)

(25,621,916)

(54,017,711)

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange
Ending balance

3,238,454

-

3,238,454

$675,660,879

$243,082,953

$918,743,832
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(2) Unearned premium reserve:
2015.12.31

Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Individual injury insurance
Individual health insurance
Group insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Annuity insurance
Total

Financial instruments
with discretionary
participation feature

Total

$1,495
906,739
1,759,903
388,842
51,142

$-

$1,495
906,739
1,759,903
388,842
51,142

-

60

60

$3,108,121

$60

$3,108,181

$14,085

$-

$14,085

1,157
23,369
1,372
4,945

-

1,157
23,369
1,372
4,945

$44,928

$-

$44,928

$3,063,193

$60

$3,063,253

Less ceded unearned premium
reserve:
Individual life insurance
Individual injury insurance
Individual health insurance
Group insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Total
Net amount

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Individual injury insurance

with discretionary
participation feature

Total

$1,546
833,000

$-

$1,546
833,000

1,646,021
356,229
49,679
-

74

1,646,021
356,229
49,679
74

$2,886,475

$74

$2,886,549

Less ceded unearned premium
reserve:
Individual life insurance
Individual injury insurance

$13,798
1,130

$-

$13,798
1,130

Individual health insurance
Group insurance
Investment-linked insurance

21,559
1,419
5,067

-

21,559
1,419
5,067

$42,973

$-

$42,973

$2,843,502

$74

$2,843,576

Individual health insurance
Group insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Annuity insurance
Total

Total
Net amount
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2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance

participation feature

Total

$1,531

$-

$1,531

Individual injury insurance

763,792

-

763,792

Individual health insurance

1,467,676

-

1,467,676

330,461

-

330,461

48,345

-

48,345

-

91

91

$2,611,805

$91

$2,611,896

$13,749

$-

$13,749

Individual injury insurance

923

-

923

Individual health insurance

19,514

-

19,514

Group insurance

1,241

-

1,241

Investment-linked insurance

5,067

-

5,067

$40,494

$-

$40,494

$2,571,311

$91

$2,571,402

Group insurance
Investment-linked insurance
Annuity insurance
Total
Less ceded unearned premium
reserve:
Individual life insurance

Total
Net amount

Movement in unearned premium reserve is summarized below:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$2,886,475

$74

$2,886,549

Reserve

3,108,121

60

3,108,181

Recover

(2,886,475)

(74)

(2,886,549)

Ending balance

$3,108,121

$60

$3,108,181

$42,973

$-

$42,973

Increase

44,928

-

44,928

Decrease

(42,973)

-

(42,973)

Ending balance

$44,928

$-

$44,928

$3,063,193

$60

$3,063,253

Less ceded unearned premium reserve:
Beginning balance

Net amount
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$2,611,805

$91

$2,611,896

Reserve

2,886,474

74

2,886,548

Recover

(2,611,805)

(91)

(2,611,896)

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange

1

-

1

$2,886,475

$74

$2,886,549

$40,494

$-

$40,494

Increase

42,973

-

42,973

Decrease

(40,494)

-

(40,494)

Ending balance

$42,973

$-

$42,973

$2,843,502

$74

$2,843,576

Ending balance
Less ceded unearned premium reserve:
Beginning balance

Net amount

(3) Reserve for claims:
2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Individual life insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

$233,983

$12,283

$246,266

460

-

460

103,326

-

103,326

82,480

-

82,480

－Reported but not paid claim

148,018

-

148,018

－Unreported claim

347,858

-

347,858

78,501

-

78,501

214,119

-

214,119

－Unreported claim
Individual injury insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
Individual health insurance

Group insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
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2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Investment-linked insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

21,917

-

21,917

-

-

-

915

41,792

42,707

-

154

154

$1,231,577

$54,229

$1,285,806

Individual life insurance

$9,139

$-

$9,139

Individual injury insurance

23,300

-

23,300

Individual health insurance

8,916

-

8,916

Group insurance

9,013

-

9,013

Investment-linked insurance

1,000

-

1,000

$51,368

$-

$51,368

$1,180,209

$54,229

$1,234,438

－Unreported claim
Annuity insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
Total
Less ceded reserve for claims:

Total
Net amount

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Individual life insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

$245,728

$6,900

$252,628

585

-

585

83,291

-

83,291

101,364

-

101,364

－Reported but not paid claim

155,176

-

155,176

－Unreported claim

322,433

-

322,433

49,404

-

49,404

234,041

-

234,041

－Unreported claim
Individual injury insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
Individual health insurance

Group insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
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2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Investment-linked insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

49,309

-

49,309

-

-

-

－Reported but not paid claim

-

16,367

16,367

－Unreported claim

-

120

120

$1,241,331

$23,387

$1,264,718

$456

$-

$456

Individual injury insurance

21,300

-

21,300

Individual health insurance

9,294

-

9,294

Group insurance

1,669

-

1,669

Investment-linked insurance

5,360

-

5,360

$38,079

$-

$38,079

$1,203,252

$23,387

$1,226,639

－Unreported claim
Annuity insurance

Total
Less ceded reserve for claims:
Individual life insurance

Total
Net amount

2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Individual life insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

$291,388

$-

$291,388

104

-

104

69,472

-

69,472

116,690

-

116,690

－Reported but not paid claim

149,720

-

149,720

－Unreported claim

310,912

-

310,912

80,447

-

80,447

199,232

-

199,232

－Unreported claim
Individual injury insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
Individual health insurance

Group insurance
－Reported but not paid claim
－Unreported claim
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2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Investment-linked insurance
－Reported but not paid claim

28,870

-

28,870

-

-

-

－Reported but not paid claim

-

800

800

－Unreported claim

-

30

30

$1,246,835

$830

$1,247,665

$25,614

$-

$25,614

Individual injury insurance

10,800

-

10,800

Individual health insurance

9,859

-

9,859

Group insurance

3,500

-

3,500

Investment-linked insurance

3,000

-

3,000

$52,773

$-

$52,773

$1,194,062

$830

$1,194,892

－Unreported claim
Annuity insurance

Total
Less ceded reserve for claims:
Individual life insurance

Total
Net amount

Movement in reserve for claims is summarized below:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$1,241,331

$23,387

$1,264,718

Reserve

1,230,552

54,229

1,284,781

Recover

(1,241,331)

(23,387)

(1,264,718)

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange

1,025

-

1,025

$1,231,577

$54,229

$1,285,806

$38,079

$-

$38,079

Increase

51,368

-

51,368

Decrease

(38,079)

-

(38,079)

Ending balance

$51,368

$-

$51,368

$1,180,209

$54,229

$1,234,438

Ending balance
Less ceded unearned premium reserve:
Beginning balance

Net amount
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance

participation feature

Total

$1,246,835

$830

$1,247,665

Reserve

1,241,338

23,387

1,264,725

Recover

(1,246,835)

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange
Ending balance

(7)

(830)
-

(1,247,665)
(7)

$1,241,331

$23,387

$1,264,718

$52,773

$-

$52,773

Increase

38,079

-

38,079

Decrease

(52,773)

-

(52,773)

Ending balance

$38,079

$-

$38,079

$1,203,252

$23,387

$1,226,639

Less ceded unearned premium reserve:
Beginning balance

Net amount

Reported but not paid claims are reserved according to insurance type and claims
department’s estimates based on each individual case’s related information without
exceeding promised insurance amount for covered accidents. Those reported but not
paid reserve is reasonably assessed, sufficient to reflect actual claims paid. In addition,
some types of claims are not expected to close shortly because these claims usually
depend on court judgments before the closure. The legal department tracks the
development of these claims and reasonably estimates claims reserve. The actuarial
department assesses final unreported claims based on past claims experience with
consideration of claims development trends for past closed cases, and then develop the
final claims based on homogeneous features of each insurance through
Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method. Reserve for unreported and unclosed claims changes
according to external environment. For example, actual loss rate will lead to fluctuations
of claims. The actuarial department will evaluate periodically to make reasonable
estimate of claims reserve.
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(4) Special reserve:
2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Participating policies dividend reserve
Dividend risk reserve
Total

participation feature

Total

$5,251,212

$-

$5,251,212

345,255

-

345,255

$5,596,467

$-

$5,596,467

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Participating policies dividend reserve
Dividend risk reserve
Total

participation feature

Total

$4,714,736

$-

$4,714,736

345,255

-

345,255

$5,059,991

$-

$5,059,991

2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Participating policies dividend reserve
Total

participation feature

Total

$1,306,408

$-

$1,306,408

3,460,733

-

3,460,733

$4,767,141

$-

$4,767,141

Movement in special reserve is summarized below:
For the years ended 31 December
2015

2014

Insurance contract

Insurance contract

Beginning balance
Reserve for participating policy dividend reserve
Recover for participating policies dividends reserve
Reserve for dividend reserve
Others

$5,059,991
2,652,129
(2,115,653)
-

$4,767,141
3,151,106
(1,897,103)
345,255
(1,306,408)

Ending balance

$5,596,467

$5,059,991
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(5) Special capital reserve for major incidents and fluctuation of risks
2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance

participation feature

Total

$2,692

$-

$2,692

Individual injury insurance

805,640

-

805,640

Individual health insurance

1,986,489

-

1,986,489

Group insurance

2,279,839

-

2,279,839

-

538

538

$5,074,660

$538

$5,075,198

Annuity insurance
Total

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance

participation feature

Total

$2,674

$-

$2,674

Individual injury insurance

769,533

-

769,533

Individual health insurance

1,832,836

-

1,832,836

Group insurance

2,173,081

-

2,173,081

-

272

272

$4,778,124

$272

$4,778,396

Annuity insurance
Total

2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance

participation feature

Total

$2,553

$-

$2,553

Individual injury insurance

735,759

-

735,759

Individual health insurance

1,682,064

-

1,682,064

Group insurance

1,971,829

-

1,971,829

-

88

88

$4,392,205

$88

$4,392,293

Annuity insurance
Total
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(6) Premium deficiency reserve:
2015.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Individual health insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$9,410,410

$-

$9,410,410

94,923

-

94,923

$9,505,333

$-

$9,505,333

2014.12.31
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Individual health insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$6,159,855

$-

$6,159,855

75,779

-

75,779

$6,235,634

$-

$6,235,634

2014.1.1
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Individual life insurance
Individual health insurance
Total

participation feature

Total

$3,655,645

$-

$3,655,645

55,433

-

55,433

$3,711,078

$-

$3,711,078

Note : Premium deficiency reserve was not ceded in the above insurance contracts.
Movement in premium deficiency reserve is summarized below:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments
with discretionary

Beginning balance
Reserve

Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

$6,235,634

$-

$6,235,634

4,495,547

-

4,495,547
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Recover
Losses (gains) on foreign exchange
Ending balance

participation feature

(1,313,423)

Total

-

(1,313,423)

87,575

-

87,575

$9,505,333

$-

$9,505,333

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Financial instruments
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Beginning balance
Reserve
Recover
Losses (gains) on foreign exchange
Ending balance

participation feature

Total

$3,711,078

$-

$3,711,078

2,827,025

-

2,827,025

(411,597)

-

(411,597)

109,128

-

109,128

$6,235,634

$-

$6,235,634

(7) Liability adequacy reserve:
Insurance contract and financial instruments with
discretionary participation feature
2015.12.31
Reserve for life insurance
liabilities
Unearned premium reserve
Premium deficiency reserve
Special reserve
Book value of insurance
liabilities
Estimated present value of
cash flows
Balance of liability adequacy
reserve

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$1,006,217,165

$918,743,832

$818,693,443

3,108,181
9,505,333
5,596,467

2,886,549
6,235,634
5,059,991

2,611,896
3,711,078
4,767,141

$1,024,427,146

$932,926,006

$829,783,558

$831,682,675

$753,795,231

$672,503,239

$-

$-

$-
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Liability adequacy testing methodology is listed as follows:
2015.12.31
Gross premium valuation method
Test method
(GPV)
Groups
Integrated testing
Adopt the best estimated scenario
investment return on the most
recent actuary report (the actuary
Assumptions report of 2014), and discount rates
should be evaluated with
consideration of current
information.

2014.12.31 and 2014.1.1
Gross premium valuation method
(GPV)
Integrated testing
Adopt the best estimated scenario
investment return on the most
recent actuary report (the actuary
report of 2013 and 2012), and
discount rates should be evaluated
with consideration of current
information.

16. Reserve for insurance contracts with feature of financial instruments
The Company issues non-investment-linked insurance policies and financial instruments
without discretionary participation feature. As at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and
1 January 2014, movement in reserve for insurance contracts with feature of financial
instruments are summarized below:
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$-

$-

$446,490

Life insurance

For the years ended 31 December
2015
Beginning balance
Premiums received
Insurance claim payments
Net provision of statutory reserve
Ending balance

2014
$-

$446,490

-

(447,096)
606

$-

$-

17. Foreign exchange valuation reserve
(1) The hedge strategy and risk exposure
The Company consistently adjusts the hedge ratios to establish an adequate risk exposure
planning based on the new foreign exchange valuation exposure principle by integrating
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the exchange rate and interest rate trends of domestic and foreign financial markets.
However, changes in the hedge and risk exposure ratios should follow the internal risk
control to alert and adjust hedge strategy in advance to meet the optimal hedge
considerations.
(2) Adjustment in foreign exchange valuation reserve:
For the years ended 31
December
2015
Beginning balance
Reserve

2014

$5,263,545

$2,773,740

811,659
4,045,945

546,672
2,774,814

Subtotal
Recover

4,857,604
(2,425,325)

3,321,486
(831,681)

Ending balance

$7,695,824

Compulsory reserve
Extra reserve

$5,263,545

(3) Effects due to foreign exchange valuation reserve:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Item
Net income
Earnings per share (dollar)
Foreign exchange valuation reserve
Equity

Inapplicable
amount (1)
$11,190,694
3.35
87,547,227

Applicable
amount (2)
$9,171,902
2.75
7,695,824
82,583,868

Effects (2) - (1)
$(2,018,792)
(0.60)
7,695,824
(4,963,359)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Item
Net income
Earnings per share (dollar)
Foreign exchange valuation reserve
Equity

Inapplicable
amount (1)
$8,579,344
2.58
77,269,061

Applicable
amount (2)
$6,512,806
1.96
5,263,545
74,324,493

Effects (2) - (1)
$(2,066,538)
(0.62)
5,263,545
(2,944,568)
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18. Provisions
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Provisions for employee benefits
Litigation liabilities

$263,501
13,990

$249,028
17,623

$225,573
12,222

Total

$277,491

$266,651

$237,795

The Company has an official policy to control and manage litigations. When a professional
advice has been made and the loss can be reasonably estimated, the Company will make
adjustments to recognize losses and any negative effects arising out of any financial claims.
As at 31 December 2015, the Company has 110 unresolved legal suits.
19. Post-employment benefits
The Company’s post-employment benefits are classified into defined contribution plan and
defined benefit plan based on start date of employment and personal choice. Employees who
start employment after 1 July 2005 apply to defined contribution plan; employees who start
employment before 1 July 2005 can choose to apply to defined benefit plan or defined
contribution plan. Employees who originally apply to defined benefit plan can change to
defined contribution plan before 30 June 2010. Those who have chosen or mandatorily
applied to defined contribution plan shall not change to defined benefit plan.
Defined contribution plan
The Company adopts a defined contribution plan in accordance with the Labor Pension Act
of the R.O.C. Under the Labor Pension Act, the Company will make monthly contributions
of no less than 6% of the employees’ monthly wages to the employees’ individual pension
accounts. The Company has made monthly contributions of 6% of each individual employee’s
salaries or wages to employees’ pension accounts.
Expenses under the defined contribution plans for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 were NT$200,652 thousand and NT$187,428 thousand, respectively.
Defined benefit plan
The Company adopts a defined benefit plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act of
the R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units of service years and the

China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

average salaries in the last month of the service year. Two units per year are awarded for the
first 15 years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the completion of the 15th
year. The total units shall not exceed upper limit. Under the Labor Standards Act, the
Company contributes an amount equivalent to certain percentage of the employees’ total
salaries and wages on a monthly basis to the pension fund deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in
the name of the administered pension fund committee.
Bureau of Labor Fund, Ministry of Labor executes asset allocation according to Regulations
for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund.
Investments are handled by both internal-managed and external-managed modes as well as
active and passive medium and long-term investment strategies. In consideration of market,
credit, and liquidity risks, etc., Bureau of Labor Fund sets investment limit and management
plan to have sufficient elasticity to achieve return target under reasonable risk.
The expected duration of the defined benefits plan as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are
both 10 years. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 are as follows:
For the years ended 31
December
2015
Not later than one year

2014

$32,718

$25,950

Later than one year and not later than five years

98,153

77,849

Later than five years

32,718

25,950

$163,589

$129,749

Total

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:
For the years ended 31
December
2015
Current period service costs
Net-interest
Total

2014

$27,585

$25,056

3,471

4,313

$31,056

$29,369
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Defined benefit obligation
Plan assets at fair value

$328,491
(64,990)

$311,771
(62,743)

$288,795
(63,222)

Funded status

$263,501

$249,028

$225,573

Net benefit liability (asset)

$263,501

$249,028

$225,573

Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan is as follows:
Defined benefit
obligation

Fair value of plan

$311,771
27,585
4,365

$(62,743)
(894)

$249,028
27,585
3,471

Subtotal
Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (asset) :
Actuarial gains and losses arising
from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising
from changes in financial
assumptions
Experience adjustments

343,721

(63,637)

280,084

Subtotal
Payments from the plan
Contributions by employer

8,940
(24,170)
-

2015.1.1
Current period service costs
Net interest expense (income)

2015.12.31

2014.1.1
Current period service costs
Net interest expense (income)
Subtotal

assets

Net benefit
liability (asset)

(22,727)

-

(22,727)

41,199
(9,532)

516

41,199
(9,016)

516
356
(2,225)

9,456
(23,814)
(2,225)

$328,491

$(64,990)

$263,501

Defined benefit
obligation

Fair value of plan
assets

Net benefit
liability (asset)

$288,795
25,056
5,545

$(63,222)
(1,232)

$225,573
25,056
4,313

319,396

(64,454)

254,942
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Defined benefit
obligation
Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (asset) :
Actuarial gains and losses arising
from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising
from changes in financial
assumptions
Experience adjustments
Subtotal
Payments from the plan
Contributions by employer
2014.12.31

16,350

Fair value of plan
assets

Net benefit
liability (asset)

-

16,350

(5,689)
(18,286)

1,229

(5,689)
(17,057)

(7,625)

1,229

(6,396)

-

2,358
(1,876)

2,358
(1,876)

$311,771

$(62,743)

$249,028

As at 31 December 2015, the expected contributions of the defined benefit plan for the future
year was NT$21,554 thousand.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
Pension plan (%) as at
2015.12.31
Cash

2014.12.31

97.69

98.06

Equity instruments

0.87

0.75

Bond instruments

0.82

0.68

Others

0.62

0.51

100.00

100.00

Total

The actual return on plan assets is $344 thousand and $307 thousand in the year of 2015 and
2014, respectively.
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The following significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the
defined benefit obligation:
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Discount rate

1.40%

1.92%

1.80%

Expected rate of salary increases

2.33%

2.00%

2.00%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is, as
shown below:
Effect on the defined benefit obligation
2015

Discount rate increase by 0.5%
Discount rate decrease by 0.5%
Future salary increase by 1%
Future salary decrease by 1%

2014

Increase
defined
benefit
obligation

Decrease
defined
benefit
obligation

Increase
defined
benefit
obligation

Decrease
defined
benefit
obligation

$27,202
52,122
-

$24,851
44,832

$26,766
51,956
-

$24,388
44,395

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for example:
change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses compared to the previous period.
20. Common stock
(1) As of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, the Company’s
authorized and issued capital were NT$33,401,467 thousand, NT$30,364,970 thousand,
and NT$27,221,478 thousand, divided into 3,340,146,700, 3,036,497,000, and
2,722,147,800 common shares at NT$10 par value.
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(2) On 17 June 2014, the Company decided to appropriate NT$1,104,184 thousand and
NT$1,656,271 thousand from 2013 distributable earnings and additional paid-in capital
respectively to increase capital in shareholders’ meeting, issuing 110,418,417 and
165,627,090 common shares at NT$10 par value. The capital increase was documented
by the authorities on 31 July 2014 and approved to set 27 August 2014 as subscription
base date by board of directors.
(3) On 26 June 2015, the Company decided to appropriate NT$910,949 thousand and
NT$2,125,548 thousand from 2014 distributable earnings and additional paid-in capital
respectively to increase capital in shareholders’ meeting, issuing 91,094,910 and
212,554,790 common shares at NT$10 par value. The capital increase was documented
by the authorities on 16 July 2015 and approved to set 9 August 2015 as subscription
base date by board of directors.
(4) As of 1 January 2014, the 2009 first unsecured subordinated mandatory convertible
bonds the Company issued were converted to 118,881,113 common shares. The
convertible bonds expired on 27 March 2014 were fully converted to 38,303,693
common shares. The base date of issuing new shares was 3 April 2014.
21. Capital surplus
Item
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock transactions
Stock option
Total

2015.12.31
$2,254,442
34,831
$2,289,273

2014.12.31
$4,379,990
34,831
$4,414,821

2014.1.1
$6,189,158
34,831
230,140
$6,454,129

Pursuant to the Company Act, the capital surplus shall not be used except for covering the
deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the capital surplus
related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium or income from
endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in cash or in the form
of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of shares being held by
each of them.
The 2009 first unsecured subordinated mandatory convertible bonds expired on 27 March
2014 were fully converted to common shares. The conversion wrote off NT$230,140
thousand of paid-in capital－stock options and NT$152,897 thousand of paid-in capital－
issuing at a premium.
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On 26 June 2015, the Company decided to issue NT$2,125,548 thousand of new shares from
additional paid-in capital in shareholders’ meeting, issuing 212,554,790 common shares at
NT$10 par value.
22. Retained earnings
(1) Legal capital reserve
Pursuant to the Insurance Act, 20% of the Company’s after-tax net income in the current
year must be appropriated as legal capital reserve until the total amount of the legal
capital reserve equals the issued share capital. Legal capital reserve shall not be used
except for making good the deficit of the company. When the Company incurs no loss,
the Company’s board of directors may distribute the portion of its legal capital reserve
which exceeds 25% of the issued share capital by issuing new shares or by cash to its
original shareholders.
(2) Special capital reserve
Pursuant to “Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance
Enterprises” established by the R.O.C. Financial Supervisory Commission, the after-tax
amount of released provision from the special reserves for contingency are appropriated
as special capital reserve in accordance with Order No. FinancialSupervisory-Insurance-Corporate-0910074195, after obtaining approval at the
stockholders’ meeting in the following year. The after-tax amount of released provision
from the special reserves for contingency appropriated as special capital reserve for the
year ended in 2013 was NT$476,818 thousand, resolved in the stockholders’ meeting in
2014. The after-tax amount of released provision from the special reserves for
contingency appropriated as special capital reserve for the year ended in 2014 was
NT$347,516 thousand, expected to be resolved in the stockholders’ meeting in 2015.
The Company set aside special reserves for major incidents and fluctuation of risks for
the retained businesses with policy period within 1 year in accordance with “Regulations
Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance Enterprises”. Please refer
to Note IV.17 for the calculation. The after-tax amount of reserve and release for the
special reserves is converted to special capital reserve at the end of current year. Special
capital reserve for the years of 2015 and 2014 were set aside NT$784,991 thousand and
NT$758,358 thousand and reversed NT$488,189 thousand and NT$372,255 thousand.
In addition, the Company released special reserves under liabilities in the amount of
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NT$1,306,408 thousand in accordance with Order No. Financial-Supervisory-InsuranceCorporate-10302077080 in 2014. The after-tax amount of NT$1,084,318 thousand was
set aside as special capital reserve under equity, which was resolved in the shareholders’
meeting in 2015.
The Company is required by law to set aside special capital reserve for foreign exchange
volatility. Please refer to Note IV.18. The Company decided to release original foreign
exchange volatility reserve (including the recovered amount from decrease in original
amount of transferring special reserve for major incidents and for fluctuation of risks to
foreign exchange volatility reserve). The Company set aside NT$1,424,176 thousand of
special capital reserve for 2013. The Company set aside NT$239,507 thousand and
NT$472,474 thousand of special capital reserve based on hedging costs saved and 10%
of after-tax earnings for 2013, which were resolved in the shareholders’ meeting in 2014.
The Company set aside NT$319,910 thousand and NT$651,196 thousand of special
capital reserve based on hedging costs saved and 10% of after-tax earnings for 2014, and
recovered such reserve to increase the share capital in 2014. The amounts mentioned
above were resolved in the shareholders’ meeting in 2015.
The Company changed its accounting policy for subsequent measurement of investment
property from cost to fair value starting from 2014. In order to ensure the soundness and
stability of the financial structure, the Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities
-Corporate-10402501001 issued by the FSC on 23 January 2015 requires insurance
companies to set aside special capital reserve equal to the amount of the increase in
retained earnings net of the increase in reserve for life insurance liabilities resulting from
valid contracts’ fair value approved by the authority. The amount set aside by the
Company was NT$8,394,443 thousand. The special capital reserve should be used to
cover insufficiency of life insurance liabilities resulting from valid contracts’ fair value
approved by the authority and additionally set aside liabilities for soundness of financial
structure in the future to comply with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts second stage. The net
amount of income from changes in fair value for 2014 was NT$500,406 thousand,
resolved in the shareholders’ meeting in 2015 to set aside as special capital reserve.
(3) The Company’s Article of Incorporation about earnings distribution amended by
shareholders’ meeting on 17 June 2014 is as follows:
To consistently expand the Company’s business scale and increase profitability, in line
with the Company’s funding needs and long-term financial plan for substantial operation
and stable development, the Company adopts the policy of residual dividend distribution.
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As provided by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, annual net income, after paying
applicable income taxes, should be used to offset accumulated deficit and retained as
legal reserve or reserved as special reserve, the remainder of which, if any, shall
appropriate at 1% as employees’ bonus. Any remaining portion plus the beginning
balance of unappropriated earnings are distributable earnings. Thirty percent to
one-hundred percent of distributable earnings shall also be distributed. The policy of
earnings distribution would be proposed by the board of directors to be submitted to the
shareholders’ meeting for approval. But if distributable earnings are not sufficient to
offer NT$0.5 per share, the Company could retain and not distribute the earnings based
on principles of economics.
The board of directors is authorized to determine the independent directors’
remuneration based on participation of the Company’s operation, value of contribution
and taking into account industry standards at home and abroad. The independent
directors do not take apart in the earnings distribution.
According to the Company’s business plan, in principle, the Company distributes stock
dividends and retains necessary funding. However, it may retain a part of funds to
distribute cash dividends. If there is cash distribution in the current year, cash dividends
could not be less than 10% of total amount of dividends. The ratios of stock dividends
and cash dividends are adjusted appropriately based on current profits and funds
situation. The most appropriate policy should be proposed by the board of directors and
resolved in the shareholders’ meeting.
The revised Article of Incorporation set forth the Company’s ratio of distributable
earnings, and it was applied to earnings distribution in 2014. Distribution of 2013
earnings was in accordance with Article of Incorporation revised on 22 June 2012.
(4) However, according to the addition of Article 235-1 of the Company Act announced on
20 May, 2015, the Company shall provide a fixed amount or percentage of the actual
profit for a year to be distributed as “employee remuneration”, after deducting and
setting aside an amount equal to the cumulative losses (if any). The aforementioned
employee remuneration may be made in the form of stocks or cash, which shall be
determined by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a board of directors meeting
attended by two-thirds or more of the directors and be reported at a shareholders’
meeting. Furthermore the Articles of Incorporation may stipulate that the employee
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remuneration could be distributed to employees of affiliated enterprises meeting certain
criteria. In accordance with aforementioned recent amendment to the Company Act, the
Articles of Incorporation is to be amended in the shareholders’ meeting in 2016.
(5) The Company’s Articles of Incorporation for earnings distribution for the year of 2013
are as follows:
To consistently expand the Company’s operation scale and increase its profitability in
line with its funding needs and long-term financial plan for substantial operation and
stable development, the Company adopts the policy of residual dividend distribution.
As provided by the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, annual net income, after paying
applicable income taxes, should be used to offset accumulated deficit and retained as
legal reserve, and to appropriate or reverse special reserve, the reminder of which, if any,
shall be distributed at 1% as employees’ bonus. Any remaining portion plus the beginning
balance of undistributed earnings are distributable earnings. The policy of earnings
distribution would be proposed by the board of directors and resolved in the
shareholders’ meeting.
The board of directors is authorized to determine the independent directors’
remuneration. The independent directors do not take part in earnings distribution.
According to the Company’s business plan, in principle, the Company distributes stock
dividends and retains necessary funding. However, it may retain a part of funds to
distribute cash dividends. If there is cash distribution in the current year, cash dividends
could not be less than 10% of total amount of dividends. The ratios of stock dividends
and cash dividends are adjusted appropriately based on current profits and funds
situation. The most appropriate policy should be proposed by the board of directors and
resolved in the shareholders’ meeting.
(6) Pursuant to the Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-10202501992
issued by the FSC on 8 February 2013, if the life insurance industry appropriates
earnings by distributing cash dividends (not including preferred stocks in liability type ),
it should report to the FSC and the FSC will review the plan based on the soundness of
individual company’s finance and business.
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For related information about earnings appropriation approved by the board of directors
and resolved in shareholders’ meeting, please refer to the “Market Observation Post
System” website of Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
(7) Earnings appropriation for the years of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Earnings appropriation
2014
Appropriate legal capital reserve
Appropriate (reverse) special capital
reserve
Cash dividends
Stock dividends
Directors’ remuneration
Employee cash bonus

2013

Dividends per
share(NT$)
2014

2013

$1,302,392

$944,949

$-

$-

11,501,703

1,541,927

-

-

1,214,599
910,949
42,000
42,000

1,104,181
1,104,184
42,000
22,365

0.40
0.30
-

0.40
0.40
-

Earnings appropriation for 2014 and 2013 were approved by shareholder’s meeting on
26 June 2015 and 17 June 2014, respectively.
(8) The Company estimated the amounts of the employee remuneration for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014 to be NT$60,000 thousand and NT$42,000 thousand,
respectively, and directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 to be NT$84,000 thousand and NT$42,000 thousand, respectively.
The estimates were accrued based on after-tax net income in consideration of legal
reserve, the ratio set in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation and past experience.
The estimated employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration are recognized as
operating expense for the period. If the Board modifies the estimates significantly in the
subsequent periods, the Company will recognize the change as an adjustment to current
income. The difference between the estimates and the resolution of shareholders’
meeting will be recognized in profit or loss in the subsequent year. There is no significant
difference between the actual employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration
distributed from the earnings and the estimated amount in the financial statements for the
year ended 2014 and 2013.
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For related information about employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration
approved by the board of directors and resolved in the shareholders’ meeting, please
refer to the “Market Observation Post System” website of Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation.
23. Components of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Reclassification

Other

adjustments

Income tax

comprehensive

Arising during

during the

benefit

income, net of

the period

period

(expense)

tax

Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans

$(9,455)

$-

$1,607

$(7,848)

Gains from revaluation

142,089

-

(12,639)

129,450

To be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Unrealized valuation gains (losses) from
available-for-sale financial assets
Total

7,354,146

(8,258,052)

1,084,376

180,470

$7,486,780

$(8,258,052)

$1,073,344

$302,072

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Reclassification

Other

adjustments

Income tax

comprehensive

Arising during

during the

benefit

income, net of

the period

period

(expense)

tax

Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans

$6,396

$-

$(1,230)

$5,166

Gains from revaluation

48,136

-

(2,786)

45,350

To be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Unrealized valuation gains (losses) from
available-for-sale financial assets
Total

14,768,090

(6,035,246)

(2,357,005)

6,375,839

$14,822,622

$(6,035,246)

$(2,361,021)

$6,426,355
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24. Retained earned premium
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Investment contracts
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Direct premium income
Reinsurance premium income
Premium income

participation feature

Total

$126,336,440

$24,888,606

$151,225,046

-

-

-

$126,336,440

$24,888,606

$151,225,046

1,052,610

-

1,052,610

Less:
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Changes in unearned premium reserve
Subtotal
Retained earned premium

219,690

(14)

219,676

1,273,300

(14)

1,272,286

$125,063,140

$24,888,620

$149,952,760

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Investment contracts
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Direct premium income
Reinsurance premium income
Premium income

$113,194,441
(34)

participation feature
$31,479,648

Total
$144,674,089

-

(34)

113,194,407

31,479,648

144,674,055

1,027,796

-

1,027,796

Less:
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Changes in unearned premium reserve
Subtotal
Retained earned premium

272,190

(17)

272,173

1,299,986

(17)

1,299,969

$111,894,421

$31,479,665

$143,374,086

25. Retained claim payments
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Investment contracts
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Direct insurance claim payments
Reinsurance claim payments
Insurance claim payments

participation feature

Total

$47,279,084

$35,811,642

$83,090,726

39

-

39

47,279,123

35,811,642

83,090,765
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
Investment contracts
with discretionary
Insurance contract

participation feature

Total

Less:
Claims recovered from reinsures
Retained claim payments

589,774

-

589,774

$46,689,349

$35,811,642

$82,500,991

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Investment contracts
with discretionary
Insurance contract
Direct insurance claim payments

Total

$38,825,835

$25,620,002

$64,445,837

53

-

53

38,825,888

25,620,002

64,445,890

536,724

-

536,724

$38,289,164

$25,620,002

$63,909,166

Reinsurance claim payments
Insurance claim payments

participation feature

Less:
Claims recovered from reinsures
Retained claim payments

26. Employee benefits, depreciation and amortization
Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses
breakdown:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Operating costs
Employee benefits
Salary and wages
Labor and health insurance
Pension expense
Other employee benefits
Depreciation
Amortization

$4,913,681
4,913,681
-

Operating
expenses
$2,295,468
1,546,055
384,127
231,710
133,576
94,489
27,790

Total
$7,209,149
6,459,736
384,127
231,710
133,576
94,489
27,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Operating costs
Employee benefits
Salary and wages
Labor and health insurance
Pension expense
Other employee benefits
Depreciation
Amortization

$4,840,148
4,840,148
-

Operating
expenses
$2,116,636
1,405,704
364,996
228,958
116,978
82,411
17,276

Total
$6,956,784
6,245,852
364,996
228,958
116,978
82,411
17,276

Note : Other employee benefits expenses consist of meals, group insurance, training and
employee benefits.
The number of employees as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were 13,539 and 11,676,
respectively.
27. Income taxes
(1) The major components of income tax expense are as follows:
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
For the years ended 31 December
2015
Current income tax expense (benefit):
Current income tax payable
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of
prior periods
Deferred tax expense (benefit)
Deferred tax expense relating to origination and
reversal of temporary differences
Deferred tax benefit relating to origination and
reversal of tax loss and tax credit
Additional income tax under the Alternative
Minimum Tax Act
Other
Total income tax expense

2014
$-

52,366

$2,875
(5,897)

2,606,408

2,561,484

(1,315,371)

(2,137,905)

18,353
146,806

90,570

$1,508,562

$511,127
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Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
For the years ended 31 December
2015

2014

Deferred tax expense (benefit):
Unrealized losses (gains) from available-for-sale
financial assets
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans
Unrealized gains from revaluation

$1,084,376
1,607
(12,639)

$(2,357,005)
(1,230)
(2,786)

Income tax expense relating to components of other
comprehensive income

$1,073,344

$(2,361,021)

Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
applicable tax rates is as follows:
For the years ended 31 December
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income tax
Tax calculated by statutory tax rate
Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purposes
Tax effect of deferred tax assets/ liabilities
10% surtax on undistributed retained earnings
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior
periods
Tax effect of tax-exempt income under Tax Act 42
Others
Total income tax expense (income) recognized in
profit or loss

2015

2014

$10,680,464

$7,023,933

1,815,679
(1,233,283)

1,194,069
(1,356,550)

21,714
11,175
-

32,257
14,325
2,812

52,366
694,105
146,806

(5,897)
539,478
90,633

$1,508,562

$511,127
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(2) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following:
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Recognized in
Recognized

other

Beginning

in profit or

comprehensive

Ending

balance

loss

income

balance

Temporary differences
Depreciation difference for tax
purpose

$76,768

$2,232

$-

$79,000

963,212

(289,718)

-

673,494

Financial assets valuation at fair
value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
valuation

(3,204,714)

Provisions

2,996

Net defined benefit liability

5,884

Accrued pension liability
Compensated absences payable

(617)

1,084,376

(2,120,338)

-

2,379

-

1,607

7,491

40,860

2,460

-

43,320

8,012

849

-

8,861

Unrealized gains (losses) on foreign
exchange
Unused tax loss
Land value increment tax

(2,800,579)

(2,284,229)

-

(5,084,808)

2,137,905

1,297,018

-

3,434,923

5,623

-

(13,628)

(8,005)

Fair value adjustment for investment
property

(719,563)

(137,253)

(12,639)

(869,455)

Fair value adjustment for Property and
equipment

-

Deferred income tax benefit (expense)

1,648

-

1,648

$(1,401,987) $1,073,344

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) $(3,502,847)

$(3,831,490)

Information expressed in balance sheet
is as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

$3,235,637

$4,251,116

$(6,738,484)

$(8,082,606)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
Recognized in
Recognized

other

Beginning

in profit or

comprehensive

Ending

balance

loss

income

balance

Temporary differences
Depreciation difference for tax
purpose

$74,995

$1,773

$-

$76,768

479,785

483,427

-

963,212

Financial assets valuation at fair
value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
valuation

(847,709)

-

(2,357,005)

Provisions

2,078

918

Net defined benefit liability

7,114

-

36,874

3,986

-

40,860

7,529

483

-

8,012

Accrued pension liability
Compensated absences payable

-

(3,204,714)

(1,230)

2,996
5,884

Unrealized gains (losses) on foreign
exchange

251,493

Unused tax loss

-

Land value increment tax

(3,052,072)

-

(2,800,579)

2,137,905

-

2,137,905

-

-

(13,628)

(13,628)

Fair value adjustment for investment
property

(626,207)

Deferred income tax benefit (expense)
Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

(90,570)

(2,786)

(719,563)

$(514,150) $(2,361,021)
$(627,676)

$(3,502,847)

$859,868

$3,235,637

Information expressed in balance sheet
is as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

$(1,487,544)

$(6,738,484)

(3) Information of unused tax loss is summarized below:
Unused tax losses
Year
2014
2015

Tax losses for
the period
$12,618,132
7,587,299

2015.12.31
$2,145,082
1,289,841
$3,434,923

2014.12.31
$2,145,082
$2,145,082

2014.1.1
$$-

Expiration
year
2024
2025
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(4) Unrecognized deferred tax assets
As of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2014, deferred tax assets
that have not been recognized all amount to NT$22,696 thousand.
(5) Imputation credit information
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$135,587

$110,363

$195,556

Balance of the imputation credit
amount

The expected creditable ratio for 2015 and the actual creditable ratio for 2014 were
1.53% and 8.87%, respectively.
The Company’s earnings generated in the year ended 31 December 1997 and prior years
have been fully appropriated.
(6) The assessment of income tax returns
As of 31 December 2015, the income tax returns of the Company have been assessed
and approved up to 2012.
28. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income for the year (after adjustment
of interests for convertible bonds) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of all potential shares with dilutive effect
as if they are probably turned into shares.
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For the years ended 31 December
2015

2014

Basic earnings per share
Net income available to common shareholders

$9,171,902

$6,512,806

3,340,147

3,330,571

$2.75

$1.96

$9,171,902

$6,512,806

$-

$80

$9,171,902

$6,512,886

-

9,576

3,340,147

3,340,147

$2.75

$1.95

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic
earnings per share (in thousands)
Basic earnings per share (in dollars)
Diluted earnings per share
Net income available to common shareholders
Interests for convertible bonds
Net income after adjustment of dilutive effect
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic
earnings per share (in thousands)
Effect of dilution:
Convertible bonds (in thousands)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding after
dilution (in thousands)
Diluted earnings per share (in dollars)

29. Separate account insurance products
(1) Separate account insurance products - assets and liabilities
Assets
Item
Cash in bank
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Other receivables
Total

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$772,904

$342,194

$705,465

64,108,288
81,086

68,711,462
118,675

63,989,881
105,335

$64,962,278

$69,172,331

$64,800,681
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Liabilities
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Reserve for separate account
Other payables

$64,678,147
284,131

$68,783,359
388,972

$64,503,650
297,031

Total

$64,962,278

$69,172,331

$64,800,681

(2) Separate account insurance products - revenues and expenses:
Revenues
For the years ended 31 December
Item

2015

2014

Premium income
Gains (losses) from financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Interest income
Other revenues
Foreign exchange gains (losses)

$6,643,514

$6,265,764

(1,597,001)
302
179,420
461,248

3,008,984
133
158,963
681,892

Total

$5,687,483

$10,115,736

Expenses
For the years ended 31 December
Item

2015

2014

Insurance claim payments
Net change in separate account reserve
Custodian fee

$6,075,792
(2,278,328)
1,890,019

$7,004,493
1,242,530
1,868,713

Total

$5,687,483

$10,115,736

(3) The rebate earned for engaging in investment-linked insurance business from
counterparties for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were NT$330,023
thousand and NT$317,992 thousand, respectively.
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VII. Information of insurance contracts
1. Objectives, policies, procedures and methods of insurance contracts risk management
(1) Framework of risk management, organization structure and responsibilities:
The board of directors should ensure the effectiveness of risk management and bear the
ultimate responsibility for risk management, responsible for formulating the company's
overall risk appetite and risk tolerance, review and approve the Company’s risk
management objectives and strategies. “Risk Management Committee” is set under the
board of directors and proposes risk management report at time of board of directors
meeting. Various risk management report and related issues are first report to risk
management committee and made the final approval by the board of directors. Besides
the risk management committee, the Company set up an assets and liabilities
management team to strengthen the risk management organization and structure.
In addition, the Company establishes the risk management department independent to the
business units, which is responsible for the implementation of various risk management
measures and the fulfillment of each risk management system, including monitoring the
daily risks, measuring and evaluating related issues, assisting the board to develop
Company's risk appetite, executing the risk management policies and regulations
approved by risk management committee. Moreover, the business units should be
responsible for the risks identification, report the risk exposure conditions, measure the
impact of risks, review the various risks and limits regularly, and make sure that the
internal control procedures of each unit are implemented effectively in accordance with
related regulations and the Company's risk management policy.
(2) Risk management policies, procedures and methods:
The Company sets an effective system in its risk management policies to deal with
identification, measurement, monitoring, reporting and response to risk, establishes clear
objectives for risk management, controls approaches and attribution of responsibility to
make sure that each operational risk is controlled under the tolerable range, making the
largest surplus and profits for shareholders.
Pursuant to “China Life Insurance Company Limited Risk Management Policy”,
approved by the board of directors, the Company follows the principle of centralized
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management and specialization, and assigns responsible risk management department to
manage various risks, including market, credit, operation, liquidity, underwriting, claim
resewe, insurance product development and pricing, asset-liability management,
reinsurance and catastrophe risk based on the sources of risk. In addition, the Company
develops management guidelines for various types of risk, standardizes measurement and
evaluation methods, and regularly issues risk reports to monitor the various risks.
(3) Risk management policies, procedures and methods related to reserves:
Reserve-related risks refer to risks that various reserves are unable to deal with future
obligations due to understatement of liability for premium business.
The Company sets and implements the appropriate risk management system for the
insurance business reserves and related risks.
(4) Risk management policies, procedures and methods related to matching assets and
liabilities:
Risks related to matching assets and liabilities indicate risks arising from inconsistent
movement of assets and liabilities. The Company sets appropriate asset-liability
management system based on the attributes and complexity of insurance liability risks.
The system allows the Company to form, implement, monitor and correct related
strategies within the tolerable range and achieves the Company’s predetermined financial
goals. The contents include the following items:
j Risk identification related to matching of assets and liabilities
k Risk measurement related to matching of assets and liabilities
l Risk responses related to matching of assets and liabilities
2. Information of insurance risks
(1) Sensitivity of insurance risks - Insurance contracts and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features:
Insurance companies set aside various reserves according to the legal requirements and
regularly conduct adequacy test of liability to assess the adequacy of insurance liabilities
of the company as a whole.
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For the insurance contracts and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features underwritten by the Company, the main risks include mortality, morbidity,
surrender, expense and investment returns rate.
When doing the liability adequacy test, various actuarial assumptions are made based on
available information at assessment point for all insurance contracts and financial
instruments with discretionary participation feature, to assess whether the insurance
liability of the Company is adequate. If the test result indicates the insurance liability is
not adequate, then set aside the insufficient amount as liability adequacy reserve
according to the provision. The reserve will affect current profit and loss.
As at 31 December 2015, assuming a 5% change in mortality, morbidity, surrender and
expenses, and a decrease in investment return of 0.1%, all insurance contracts and
financial instruments with discretionary participation feature will not cause the
Company’s insurance liability inadequate.
(2) Interpretation for concentration of insurance risks
j The Company’s insurance business is mainly in Taiwan, Republic of China and there is
no significant difference in insurance risk between each region. The Company had set
tolerable cumulative risk limits for each risk unit and incident. Insurance risks that
exceed the limits will be transferred through reinsurance. Please refer to Note VI.15
for concentration of risk before and after the reinsurance for the Company.
k Furthermore, according to “Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various
Reserves by Insurance Enterprises”, the annual increased special capital reserve,
excluding taxes, for major incidents and fluctuation of risks for abnormal changes in
loss ratio and claims of each type of insurance needs to be recognized in special
capital reserve under equity in accordance with IAS 12.
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(3) Claim development trend
j Direct business loss development trend
Development year
Accident
NT$

Reserve

year
1
2008

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

for claims

$2,170,100 $2,736,556 $2,776,542 $2,781,989 $2,786,399 $2,792,187 $2,798,032 $2,798,807

2009

2,243,111

2,870,648

2,924,110

2,934,461

2,936,046

2,939,451

2010

2,574,879

3,071,401

3,132,443

3,137,874

3,143,299

3,143,963

2011

2,610,108

3,276,928

3,328,279

3,342,075

3,346,106

2012

2,345,575

2,953,776

3,029,335

3,045,381

2013

2,267,213

2,964,954

3,028,400

2014

3,448,229

4,203,186

2015

3,518,471

2,940,095

$800,447

Note: This table does not include long term life insurance

Add : Long term insurance claims

370,958

Claim reserve for discount on no claim
Reserve for claims balance

114,401
$1,285,806

k Retained business loss development trend
Development year
Accident
NT$

Reserve

year
1
2008

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

for claims

$2,128,556 $2,682,784 $2,721,905 $2,719,002 $2,723,312 $2,728,970 $2,734,682 $2,735,440

2009

2,204,858

2,820,114

2,862,350

2,868,022

2,869,572

2,872,900

2010

2,535,358

3,010,157

3,068,543

3,066,830

3,072,133

3,072,782

2011

2,561,841

3,214,455

3,260,383

3,266,408

3,270,348

2012

2,304,504

2,897,464

2,967,538

2,976,431

2013

2,227,515

2,908,429

2,966,622

2014

3,387,852

4,123,055

2015

3,456,864

Note: This table does not include long term life insurance

2,873,529

$768,132
Add : Long term insurance claims
Claim reserve on discount for no claim
Reserve for claims balance

351,905
114,401
$1,234,438
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The Company recognizes claim reserve for reported claims (reported but not paid) and
unreported claims (incurred but not reported). Due to uncertainty, estimation, and
judgment involved in recognition, there is a high degree of complexity in claim reserves.
Any changes of the estimation or judgment are treated as the changes of the accounting
estimates and can be recognized as profit and loss in current year. The Company was not
notified of some claims in time. Also, the expected payment for unreported claims
involves major subjective judgment and estimation on the past experience. Thus, it is
uncertain that the estimated claim reserve on the balance sheet date will be equal to the
final settled amount of claim payments. The claim reserve recorded on the book is
estimated based on the current available information. However, the final amount
probably will differ from the original estimates because of the follow-up development of
the claim events.
The charts above show the development trend of claim payments (not including cases
whose payment and time will be confirmed within a year). The accident year is the actual
year for the occurrence of the insurance claim events; the x-axis is the year of the
development for the settlement cases. Each slash represents the cumulative amount of
compensation for each accident event at the end of the year. The occurred claims include
decided and undecided claims which represent the accumulated estimated dollar amounts
need to be paid for each accident year as time passes. It is possible that the circumstances
and trends affecting dollar amount of recognition for claim reserve in the current year
will be different from those in the future. Thus, the expected future payment amount for
the settlement cases cannot be determined by the charts above.
(4) Credit risk:
For insurance contracts undertaken by the Company, the credit risk comes from
reinsurers who fail to fulfill their obligation of reinsurance contracts, causing the
Company to be exposed to the risk of financial loss. If the Company disputes with the
reinsurers, then it may lead to impairment of reinsurance assets. In addition, the account
receivables of insurance brokers and agents also have credit risk.
The Company’s highest risk exposure for the reinsurance contracts are the carrying
amount of reinsurance assets. In order to manage that risk and avoid credit losses, the
Company decides to deal with reinsurance companies that have good credits. The
Company sets related selection standard, makes regular assessment and monitors the
reinsurers’ financial business condition, credit status and rating. Also, it will adjust the
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business scope and scale based on the circumstances to prevent from over concentration
of credit risk.
(5) Liquidity risk:
As at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, the maturity analysis
of liquidity risk for insurance contract liabilities are as follow:
31 December 2015

Within 1 year

1 to 3 years

3 to 5 years

5 to 15 years

Over 15 years

$8,348,546

$25,870,176

$48,977,540

$399,432,352

$2,200,881,372

-

-

-

-

-

Insurance liabilities of investment
contracts with discretionary
participation features
Reserve for insurance contracts with
feature of financial instruments
31 December 2014

Within 1 year

1 to 3 years

3 to 5 years

5 to 15 years

Over 15 years

$22,596,344

$70,224,461

$76,787,529

$332,149,174

$1,910,802,565

-

-

-

-

-

Insurance liabilities of investment
contracts with discretionary
participation features
Reserve for insurance contracts with
feature of financial instruments
1 January 2014

Within 1 year

1 to 3 years

3 to 5 years

5 to 15 years

Over 15 years

$9,594,719

$75,923,620

$86,230,920

$285,262,634

$1,754,551,355

447,089

-

-

-

Insurance liabilities of investment
contracts with discretionary
participation features
Reserve for insurance contracts with
feature of financial instruments

-

Note:
1. This table estimates net cash flow of all related insurance liabilities at it starting point.
2. The actual maturity date will change according to the exercise of termination right by
the policyholders.
3. The table cannot match with the liabilities of balance sheet because the above
contracts use the undiscounted contractual cash flow analysis. In addition, it includes
the cash inflows of future renewal premiums.
4. In addition to the analysis of the above table, the Company uses both the estimated of
the expected less and more than 12 months to analyze assets and liabilities. Please
refer to Note X.
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(6) Market risk:
Pursuant to the “Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by
Insurance Enterprises”, when the Company measures insurance liabilities, it sets aside the
reserve by using the discount rate required by the authorities. Since the discount rate
assumption does not move in the same direction with the interest rate, changes in market
risks have no significant influence on the Company’s profit or loss and equity for
insurance contracts. However, changes in market risks may have influence on liability
adequacy test evaluated based on available information. But, it has little influence on the
adequacy of current recognized insurance liabilities.
VIII. Financial instruments
1. Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss:
Held for trading

$22,615

$993,595

$1,303,318

loss at initial recognition

335,329

612,231

632,273

Subtotal

357,944

1,605,826

1,935,591

Available-for-sale financial assets

439,274,726

435,292,552

427,706,046

Held-to-maturity financial assets

42,124,302

-

-

52,420,379

61,217,736

112,696,045

504,141,924

440,007,443

290,884,414

Receivables

11,220,392

14,384,897

11,169,076

Loans

30,933,445

31,083,479

32,139,338

5,347,920

4,817,040

5,485,137

604,064,060

551,510,595

452,374,010

$1,085,821,032

$988,408,973

$882,015,647

Designated at fair value through profit or

Loans and receivables :
Cash and cash equivalents (Exclude cash on
hand and revolving funds)
Debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists

Refundable deposits
Subtotal
Total
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Financial liabilities
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss :
Held for trading

$3,984,347

$5,847,792

$3,008,375

8,055,698

9,999,089

5,628,375

137,370

129,694

122,062

-

-

11,104

8,193,068

10,128,783

5,761,541

$12,177,415

$15,976,575

$8,769,916

Financial liabilities at amortized cost :
Payables
Guarantee deposits received
Other financial liabilities
Subtotal
Total

2. Fair value of financial instruments
(1) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
methods and assumptions used by the Company to measure and disclose fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities are as follows:
j Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and other current
liabilities are approximately equal to the carrying amount due to their short maturity.
k For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and
conditions, their fair value are determined based on market quotation price. (including
listed stocks and beneficiary certificates, etc.)
l Fair value of financial instruments with no active market is estimated based on the
valuation methods. The estimates and assumptions used are consistent with those
made by market participants during the pricing of financial instruments.
m The assessment bases for forward exchange are exchange rates on the Reuters, the
NT as the closing price, and the purchase price of the other currency. Fair value of
each forward exchange contract is calculated based on the exchange rate on each
maturity date. Fair value of interest rate swap is the quoted price provided by traded
parties.
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n Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities are determined based on discounted
cash flow analysis. The interest rates and discount rates assumptions mainly refer to
related information of similar instruments and yield curve for the duration, etc.
o The adjustments of credit risk valuation for the derivative instrument contracts traded
over-the-counter are classified as Credit value adjustments (CVA) and Debit value
adjustments (DVA), to reflect the probability of default of the counterparty (CVA)
and the Company (DVA).
Under the assumption that the Company will not default, the Company determines its
credit value adjustment (CVA) by multiplying three factors, probability of default
(PD), loss given default (LGD), and exposure at default (EAD) of the counterparty.
On the other hand, under the assumption that the counterparty will not default, the
Company calculates its debit value adjustment by multiplying three factors, probability
of default, loss given default, and exposure at default of the Company. The Company
estimates probability of default through internal rating, estimates loss given default at
60% by considering suggestions by scholars and foreign financial institutions, and
estimates exposure at default through market approach for derivative instruments, to
reflect credit risk of the counterparty and the credit quality of the Company.
(2) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost
Other than cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other
current liabilities whose carrying amount approximates their fair value, the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost is as follows:
Carrying amount
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity financial assets

$42,124,302

$-

$-

504,141,924

440,007,443

290,884,414

3,754,886

3,296,370

2,813,157

Debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists
Refundable deposits - Bonds
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Fair value
2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity financial assets

$41,331,369

$-

$-

502,622,477

447,355,742

287,498,964

4,039,495

3,373,333

2,876,032

Debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists
Refundable deposits - Bonds

3. Fair value measurement hierarchy
(1) Fair value measurement hierarchy
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are
described as follows:
Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.
(2) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities
The Company does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring
basis. Fair value hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities measured on a
recurring basis is as follows:
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2015.12.31
Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds

$335,329

$-

$-

$335,329

22,615

-

22,615

-

Stocks

119,425,829

97,093,371

-

22,332,458

Bonds

309,826,505

97,333,719

212,492,786

-

Others

10,022,392

9,469,076

-

553,316

21,633,633

-

-

21,633,633

(3,984,347)

-

Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Available-for-sale financial assets

Investment property
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Forward foreign exchange
contracts

(3,984,347)

-

2014.12.31
Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Stocks

$811,755

$811,755

$-

$-

Bonds

612,231

-

-

612,231

181,840

-

181,840

-

Stocks

115,556,093

95,004,739

-

20,551,354

Bonds

311,992,115

70,686,890

241,305,225

-

Others

7,744,344

7,744,344

-

-

20,802,675

-

-

20,802,675

(5,847,792)

-

Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Available-for-sale financial assets

Investment property
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Forward foreign exchange
contracts

(5,847,792)

-
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2014.1.1
Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Stocks

$870,298

$870,298

$-

$-

Bonds

879,179

105,267

246,906

527,006

183,037

-

183,037

-

3,077

-

3,077

-

Stocks

79,493,812

66,724,174

-

12,769,638

Bonds

336,149,818

56,654,445

279,495,373

-

Others

12,062,416

12,062,416

-

-

19,930,556

-

-

19,930,556

(3,008,375)

-

Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Interest rate swaps contracts
Available-for-sale financial assets

Investment property
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Forward foreign exchange
contracts

(3,008,375)

-

A. Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company’s bonds of available-for-sale
financial assets measured on a recurring basis, amounted to $4,349,755 thousand,
transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 because the Company can asses quoted market
prices. During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.
B. Reconciliation for Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Reconciliation for recurring fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy for movements during the period is as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2015:
Total gains and losses
recognized
Transfer
Recognized Recognized

in (out) of

Beginning

in profit or

in OCI

Acquisition Disposal or

balance

loss (Note 1)

(Note 2)

$612,231

$(276,902)

$-

$-

$-

20,551,354

-

1,305,091

539,665

(22,537)

(41,115) 22,332,458

20,802,675

45,717

142,089

458,606

(80,750)

265,296

or issue

settlement

Level 3

Ending

(Note 3)

balance

Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Convertible bonds

$-

$335,329

Available-for-sale financial assets
Stock
Investment property

21,633,633

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
Total gains and losses
recognized
Transfer
Recognized Recognized
Beginning

in profit or

in OCI

balance

loss (Note 1)

(Note 2)

in (out) of
Acquisition Disposal or
or issue

settlement

Level 3

Ending

(Note 3)

balance

Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Convertible bonds

$527,006

$85,225

$-

$-

$-

$-

$612,231

12,769,638

-

7,015,014

819,550

(52,848)

-

20,551,354

19,930,556

648,402

48,136

266,127

(125,137)

34,591

20,802,675

Available-for-sale financial assets
Stock
Investment property

Note1: presented in “Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss/Gains (losses) on
investment property” in the comprehensive income statement.
Note2: presented in “Unrealized gains (losses) from available-for-sale financial assets/Gains (losses) on
revaluation” in the comprehensive income statement.
Note3: The amount of investment property is related to transfer between property and equipment, no transfer in
(out) for fair value level.
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Total gains (losses) recognized in profit or loss above contains gains (losses) related
to assets on hand as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:
For the years ended 31
December
2015
Total gains and losses
Recognize in profit or loss
Recognized in other comprehensive income

2014

$(231,185)
1,447,180

$733,627
7,063,150

C. Information on significant unobservable inputs to valuation
Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of recurring fair value
measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:
2015.12.31
Valuation

Significant

Quantification

techniques

unobservable inputs

Information

Option

Volatility in stock price

34.61%

Relationship between inputs and fair value

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Private Convertible bonds

for the three-month

The higher the volatility in stock price for the
three-month period, the higher the fair value of

period

convertible bonds

Available-for-sale
Stock

Market approach

Discount for lack of

10%~30%

liquidity
Stock

Discounted cash

Long-term operating

flow approach

profit, long-term

The higher the discount for lack of liquidity, the lower
the estimated fair value

6.00%

The higher the long-term average cost of capital, the
lower the estimated fair value

average cost of capital
Stock

Net asset value

N/A

1.36~69.04

N/A

N/A

30.17~33.68

N/A

approach
Private Equity Fund

Net asset value
approach

Investment property

Please refer to Note VI、8

As of 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2014:
Not applicable.
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D. Valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy
The Company is responsible for validating the fair value measurements and ensuring
that the results of the valuation are in line with market conditions and the sources are
independent, reliable, based on independent and reliable inputs which are consistent
with other information, and represent exercisable prices.. The Company analyses the
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured
or re-assessed according to the Company’s accounting policies at each reporting date.
Also, assessment of fair value for investment property are outsourced to appraisers
from professional agencies every half year and they evaluates the effectiveness of fair
value on the balance sheet date quarterly and decides whether to re-issue reports or
issue review report. The Company’s real estate department will review the legality,
the rationality and correctness of valuation parameters important to results from
external reports case-by-case.
(3) Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which the
fair value is disclosed
2015.12.31
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Only financial assets not measured at
fair value but for which the fair value is
disclosed:
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Bonds

$38,533,570

$2,797,799

$-

$41,331,369

320,450,238

182,172,239

-

502,622,477

-

4,039,495

-

4,039,495

Debt instrument investments for which
no active market exists
Bonds
Refundable deposits
Bonds

As of 31 December 2014 and and 1 January 2014:
Not applicable.
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4. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company holds financial instruments in accordance with paragraph 42 of IAS 32
recognized by the FSC and the related assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet.
The Company may perform transactions not meeting the requirements of offsetting, but has
enforceable master netting arrangement or other similar agreements with the counterparties.
When both parties agree to settle in net amount, financial assets and financial liabilities could
be offset and settled in net amount, and if not, in total amount. However, if any party in the
transaction defaults, the other party can choose net settlement.
Related information about above offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are as
follows:
2015.12.31
Financial assets ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

assets

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

liabilities

recognized on

(d)

financial

recognized on

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

assets (a)

balance sheet (b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

received

(e)= (c)- (d)

$22,615

$-

$22,615

$12,661

$-

$9,954

2015.12.31
Financial liabilities ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

liabilities

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

assets recognized

recognized on

(d)

financial

on balance sheet

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

liabilities (a)

(b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

pledged

(e)= (c)- (d)

$3,984,347

$-

$3,984,347

$12,661

$-

$3,971,686
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2014.12.31
Financial assets ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

assets

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

liabilities

recognized on

(d)

financial

recognized on

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

assets (a)

balance sheet (b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

received

(e)= (c)- (d)

$181,840

$-

$181,840

$131,188

$-

$50,652

2014.12.31
Financial liabilities ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

liabilities

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

assets recognized

recognized on

(d)

financial

on balance sheet

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

liabilities (a)

(b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

pledged

(e)= (c)- (d)

$5,847,792

$-

$5,847,792

$131,188

$-

$5,716,604

2014.1.1
Financial assets ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

assets

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

liabilities

recognized on

(d)

financial

recognized on

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

assets (a)

balance sheet (b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

received

(e)= (c)- (d)

$186,114

$-

$186,114

$117,349

$-

$68,765

2014.1.1
Financial liabilities ruled by offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement

Derivative financial instrument

Gross amount of

Net financial

Relevant amount that has not

Gross amount

offset financial

liabilities

been offset on balance sheet

of recognized

assets

recognized on

(d)

financial

recognized on

balance sheet

Financial

Cash collateral

Net amount

liabilities (a)

balance sheet (b)

(c)= (a)- (b)

instruments

pledged

(e)= (c)- (d)

$3,008,375

$-

$3,008,375

$117,349

$-

$2,891,026
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IX. Financial risk management
The Company's financial risk management objectives are primarily managing risks arising from
holding financial assets. According to the Company's risk management policies, the main
financial risks is market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company has established
guidelines related to the management of the financial risk. The following is the definition,
source, management procedures of the risk and methods used to measure the risk :
1. Credit risk analysis
(1) Credit risk refers to the result of the issuer, the contract transaction counterpart and the
debtor fail to fulfill responsibilities (obligations), or because of changes in credit quality,
resulting in financial assets held by the Company's contractual default or the risk of loss
of value. Credit risks from financial instruments transactions include issuer credit risk and
counterparty risk.
Issuer credit risk represents that bond issuer, debtor and the guarantor does not pay its
debts or declares bankruptcy, commit a crime or changes of tax law and accounting
standards that lead to make credit deterioration hence unable to fulfill obligations of the
repayment or comply with the terms of the issue of default risk of loss.
Counterparty credit risk refers to the risk of the counterparty, custodian banks, brokers,
reinsurers and other participants in the transaction, for the present or the future cash
flows, are unable or fail to fulfill the contract delivery responsibilities (obligations).
The Company prepares reports periodically to determine the credit conditions of
counterparty and issuer. The Company also identifies internal rating indicators to
comprehensively assess the credit risk of existing bond positions. The indicators are
based on financial position and operational management performance. The company
manages the usage of different level of credit limit by internal rating.
The Company determines the counterparty credit risk limit, dividing into pre-settlement
risk limit and settlement risk limit. The other is issuer credit risk limit, which determines
credit risk limit according to long or short transaction terms.
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With respect to credit risk assessment, the Company has established credit risk value
model. The model is to calculate credit risk value and estimate expected and unexpected
credit loss, assessing the credit positions maximum loss due to changes of credit rating or
default. Besides, the Company also assesses credit risk and concentration risk based on
the issuer’s portfolio of region, industry and credit rating.
(2) Financial assets credit risk concentration analysis

A. The largest credit risk exposure of the financial debt instrument investments held by
the Company or deposit in the bank is listed in accordance with the regional
distribution as follows:
Date: 31 December 2015
Financial assets

Taiwan

Asia

Europe

America

Global

Total

$45,858,938

$5,836,036

$725,405

$-

$-

$52,420,379

335,329

-

-

-

-

335,329

193,707,005

45,637,178

22,013,112

45,413,529

3,055,681

309,826,505

which no active market exists

107,501,183

109,821,244

119,153,541

167,562,780

103,176

504,141,924

Held-to-maturity financial assets

2,472,447

8,124,035

9,303,692

22,224,128

-

42,124,302

Refundable deposits

5,328,622

-

-

-

-

5,328,622

$355,203,524

$169,418,493

$151,195,750

$235,200,437

$3,158,857

$914,177,061

38.85%

18.53%

16.54%

25.73%

0.35%

100.00%

Taiwan

Asia

Europe

America

Global

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for

Total
Proportion

Date: 31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$43,287,295

$13,257,920

$4,672,521

$-

$-

$ 61,217,736

612,231

-

-

-

-

612,231

200,746,015

39,756,615

37,131,966

31,472,382

2,885,137

311,992,115

109,254,692

97,263,938

122,739,566

107,221,109

3,528,138

440,007,443

4,795,751

-

-

-

-

4,795,751

$358,695,984

$150,278,473

$164,544,053

$138,693,491

$6,413,275

$818,625,276

43.82%

18.36%

20.10%

16.94%

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists
Refundable deposits
Total
Proportion

0.78%

100.00%
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Date: 1 January 2014
Financial assets

Taiwan

Cash and cash equivalents

Asia

Europe

America

Global

Total

$103,652,035

$6,792,538

$2,251,472

$-

$-

$112,696,045

879,179

-

-

-

-

879,179

220,175,679

31,168,010

51,311,168

20,658,457

12,836,504

336,149,818

77,228,590

64,487,479

78,296,313

67,661,836

3,210,196

290,884,414

4,315,783

-

-

-

-

4,315,783

$406,251,266

$102,448,027

$131,858,953

$88,320,293

$16,046,700

$744,925,239

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists
Refundable deposits
Total
Proportion

54.54%

13.75%

17.70%

11.86%

2.15%

100.00%

B. Regional distribution of credit risk exposure for secured loans and overdue receivables
is as follows:
Date: 31 December 2015
Central area:
Northern areas:

Taichung to

Southern area:

Taipei and eastern

Changhua and

Counties below

counties

Nantou

Tainan

Location
Secured loans

$1,469,801

$741,349

$674,293

$2,885,443

-

-

-

-

$1,469,801

$741,349

$674,293

$2,885,443

25.69%

23.37%

Overdue receivables
Total
Proportion

Total

50.94%

100.00%

Date: 31 December 2014
Central area:

Location
Secured loans
Overdue receivables
Total
Proportion

Northern areas:

Taichung to

Southern area:

Taipei and eastern

Changhua and

Counties below

counties

Nantou

Tainan

Total

$1,906,713

$939,962

$922,846

$3,769,521

67,349

-

-

67,349

$1,974,062

$939,962

$922,846

$3,836,870

24.50%

24.05%

51.45%

100.00%
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Date: 1 January 2014
Central area:
Northern areas:

Taichung to

Southern area:

Taipei and eastern

Changhua and

Counties below

counties

Nantou

Tainan

Location
Secured loans

$2,451,025

$1,209,930

$1,195,337

$4,856,292

239,831

-

2,084

241,915

$2,690,856

$1,209,930

$1,197,421

$5,098,207

52.78%

23.73%

23.49%

100.00%

Overdue receivables
Total

Total

Proportion

(3) Financial asset credit quality and overdue impairment analysis
A. Grading of financial instrument credit risk quality
The Company's internal credit risk is classified into investment grade and
non-investment grade mainly based on rating of the credit rating agencies:
a. Investment grade means credit rating reaches at least BBB- granted by a credit
rating agency.
b. Non-investment grade means no credit rating or credit rating lower than BBBgranted by a credit rating agency.
c. Impaired means the company or the object fails to perform its obligations. The
Company estimates the impairment criteria in accordance with potential losses.
The Company’s financial instruments are classified into normal assets, past due but
not impaired, impaired according to credit quality, listed as follows:
Date: 31 December 2015
Normal assets

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Past due

Investment

Non-investment

but not

grade

grade

impaired

Impaired

Total

$52,420,379

$-

$-

$-

$52,420,379

335,329

-

-

-

335,329

309,826,505

-

-

-

309,826,505

504,141,924

-

-

-

504,141,924

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists
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Normal assets

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Refundable deposits
Total
Proportion

Past due

Investment

Non-investment

but not

grade

grade

impaired

Impaired

Total

42,124,302

-

-

-

42,124,302

5,328,622

-

-

-

5,328,622

$914,177,061

$-

$-

$-

$914,177,061

100.00%

-

-

-

100.00%

Date: 31 December 2014
Normal assets

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Past due

Investment

Non-investment

but not

grade

grade

impaired

Impaired

Total

$61,217,736

$-

$-

$-

$61,217,736

612,231

-

-

-

612,231

311,992,115

-

-

-

311,992,115

440,007,443

-

-

-

440,007,443

4,795,751

-

-

-

4,795,751

$818,625,276

$-

$-

$-

$818,625,276

100.00%

-

-

-

100.00%

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists
Refundable deposits
Total
Proportion

Date: 1 January 2014
Normal assets

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Past due

Investment

Non-investment

but not

grade

grade

impaired

Impaired

Total

$112,696,045

$-

$-

$-

$112,696,045

773,912

105,267

-

-

879,179

332,352,678

3,797,140

-

-

336,149,818

290,884,414

-

-

-

290,884,414

4,315,783

-

-

-

4,315,783

$741,022,832

$3,902,407

$-

$-

$744,925,239

99.48%

0.52%

-

-

100.00%

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists
Refundable deposits
Total
Proportion
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B. The Company classifies the risk of secured loans to evaluate whether there is objective
evidence indicating impairment and whether there is observable information indicating
credit deterioration of the borrower. The credit classification is defined as follows:
a. Normal users: the borrower makes monthly payment within 30 days after the due
date. There is no sign of credit deterioration, so the borrower can make payments
continuously.
b. Worsening solvency: there is no objective evidence indicating impairment.
However, the borrower has financial difficulty and credit deterioration. The
borrower enters in financial reorganization such as conducting a repayment
agreement, preceding compromise, liquidation or debt settlement proceedings,
indicating the borrower’s capacity to make payment worsens.
c. Delayed users: the borrower makes monthly payment in 31 to 90 days after the due
date. The borrower is lack of contractual capacity since the borrower fails to make
payment on time under the terms of the loan contract.
d. Past due but not impaired: the borrower makes monthly payment over 91 days
after the due date. There is objective evidence indicating impairment and the
Company should evaluate the asset for impairment. The present value of estimated
future cash flows (including disposal of collateral) is higher than the book value of
the loan, indicating the asset is not impaired.
e. Past due and impaired: the overdue day meets the standard of overdue loans. There
is objective evidence indicating impairment and the Company should evaluate the
asset for impairment. The present value of estimated future cash flows (including
disposal of collateral) is lower than the book value of the loan, indicating the asset
is impaired.
Secured loans listed according to the above levels are as follows:
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Date: 31 December 2015
Low risk

Potential risk

Secured loans and

Worsening

Delayed

solvency

users

Past due but

Past due

Provision for

Normal users
Overdue receivables

Total
not impaired and impaired impairment

Consumer finance

$2,886,347

$33,661

$9,370

$-

$-

$43,935

$2,885,443

Corporate finance

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$2,886,347

$33,661

$9,370

$-

$-

$43,935

$2,885,443

Total

Date: 31 December 2014
Low risk

Potential risk

Secured loans and

Normal

Worsening

Delayed

Overdue receivables

users

solvency

users

Past due but

Past due

Provision for

not impaired and impaired impairment

Total

Consumer finance

$3,711,978

$43,626

$16,791

$-

$-

$19,114

$3,753,281

Corporate finance

-

16,571

-

105,924

-

38,906

83,589

$3,711,978

$60,197

$16,791

$105,924

$-

$58,020

$3,836,870

Total

Date: 1 January 2014
Low risk

Potential risk

Secured loans and

Normal

Worsening

Delayed

Overdue receivables

users

solvency

users

Past due but

Past due

Provision for

not impaired and impaired impairment

Total

Consumer finance

$4,717,326

$60,641

$28,821

$4,040

$-

$24,732

$4,786,096

Corporate finance

40,000

33,143

-

336,641

-

97,673

312,111

$4,757,326

$93,784

$28,821

$340,681

$-

$122,405

$5,098,207

Total

Aging analysis for net amount of secured loans is as follows:
Neither

Delayed

delayed nor

but not

impaired

impaired

Within 30 days

31-90 days

Past due or impaired
91-180 days

Over 181 days

Total

2015.12.31

$2,876,260

$9,183

$-

$-

$2,885,443

2014.12.31

3,753,066

16,455

-

67,349

3,836,870

2014.1.1

4,826,358

28,244

1,690

241,915

5,098,207
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As of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, the fair value of
the collateral for discounted and loan’s financial assets of past due but not impaired
were NT$0 thousand, NT$371,747 thousand, and NT$958,746 thousand,
respectively.
2. Liquidity risk analysis
(1) Liquidity risks are classified to “funding liquidity risk” and “market liquidity risk.”
“Funding liquidity risk” represents that the Company is not able to obtain sufficient funds
at a reasonable funding cost to meet the demands within reasonable time. “Market
liquidity risk” represents the risk that the Company sells at loss to meet the demand for
cash.
The Company assesses the characteristics of business, monitors short-term cash flows,
and constructs the completed mechanism of liquidity risk management. Furthermore, the
Company manages market liquidity risk cautiously by considering market trading
volumes and adequacy of holding positions with symmetric. To decentralize market risk
when investment and to maintain investment each aspect (such as asset category,
maturity, region, currency and tools) diversification. Planning emergency financing plan
in order to assess how the Company in the long term illiquid environment still regularly
operate to pay emergency and major funding requirements.
The Company regularly monitors market liquidity and formulates plans to use the funds
depending on market conditions and funding demand arrangements for liquidity assets
portfolio. To quarterly prepare duration reports of assets and liabilities, the quarterly end
of effective contracts estimate future liabilities side of cash expenditures time and the size
of the amount. The Company early response to possible liquidity risk assort in order to
assort full term insurance money management of again sales or assets combination
adjustment measures, etc. Also, for abnormal and urgent financing needs, the Company
makes an emergency management operating procedure to deal with significant liquidity
risks.
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(2) Financial assets held for managing liquidity risk and maturity analysis of non-derivative
financial liabilities
A. Financial assets held for managing liquidity risk
The Company holds cash, highly liquid and superior assets to deal with payment
obligation and the potential urgent funds needs to dispatch in the market environment.
Financial assets for managing liquidity risk are cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets, held-to-maturity financial assets and debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists, etc.
B. Maturity analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities
The analysis of cash outflows to the Company is listed below and based on the
residual term from the date of balance sheet to the maturity. The disclosed amount is
in accordance with cash flows on contracts, so the partial disclosed items are not the
same as related items in the balance sheet.
Non-derivative financial instruments
In 1 year

Over 1 year

Total

2015.12.31
Payables

$8,055,698

$-

$8,055,698

$9,999,089

$-

$9,999,089

$5,628,375
10,773

$-

$5,628,375
10,773

2014.12.31
Payables

2014.1.1
Payables
Convertible bonds

C. Maturity analysis of derivative financial liabilities
The Company operates derivatives including foreign exchange derivative instruments
(such as currency forward contracts, foreign exchange forward) and interest rate
derivative instruments (such as cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps).
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The Company has enough operating capital, including cash and cash equivalents, and
highly liquid securities, such as government bonds to pay the investment and liabilities
at maturity. Therefore, the risk of liquidity is extremely low. The Company enters into
forward contracts, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps derivative financial
instruments, whose currencies are highly liquid, so the possibility of selling out and
the risk of market liquidity are low. The forward contracts and cross currency swaps
will be operated continually and the capital is enough to pay for settlement, so the risk
of capital liquidity is low.
Maturity structure of derivative financial liabilities is as follows:
2015.12.31
In 90 days

91-180 days

181 days

Over 1 year

Total

-1 year
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

$3,547,249

$342,014

$95,084

$-

$3,984,347

2014.12.31
In 90 days

91-180 days

181 days

Over 1 year

Total

-1 year
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

$5,847,792

$-

$-

$- $ 5,847,792

2014.1.1
In 90 days

91-180 days

181 days

Over 1 year

Total

-1 year
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

$2,361,728

$511,246

$135,401

$-

$3,008,375

3. Market risk analysis
(1) Market risk refers to financial assets and liabilities due to market risk factors volatility
(refer to interest rate, exchange rate, stock prices and other variables), making the
change of the value to cause the risk of loss.
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The Company has built value at risk model. All financial assets involve market risks
regularly monitor by risk management system and calculate the risk value. Over control
index are notional amount, price sensitivity and risk value. It will issue risk management
reports and execute routine control and process when over limit. We also report each
asset risk value, the use of various types of credit limits and the results of backtesting
regularly to the board of directors or risk management committee.
(2) Exchange rate risk
The Company continues to exercise swaps and forward exchange derivative transactions
to hedge the value change risk of holding foreign currencies because of changes in
exchange rates in accordance with relevant laws and internal control requirements to use
the correlation model and control mechanism to effectively control this risk.
The Company’s exchange rate risk is primarily related to operating activities (the
currencies the income or expense used are not the same as the functional currency of the
Company).
Some of the Company’s accounts receivable and accounts payable are denoted in the
same foreign currency. Under such circumstances, the similar positions will naturally
generate the hedging effect. Some foreign currency positions use forward exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risk. As the foregoing natural hedge and foreign
exchange forward do not meet the requirements of hedge accounting in terms of
managing exchange rate risk, hedge accounting is not adopted.
(3) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk resulting from changes in market interest rates which
causes fluctuations in the fair value of financial instruments. The Company manages
interest rate risk by combinations of fixed and floating interest rate products. Because
they do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is not
adopted.
(4) Equity price risk
The Company holds equity securities of listed and unlisted companies, and OTC-traded
and non-OTC traded companies. The price of such equity securities will be affected by
uncertainties about the future value of the underlying investment. The equity securities of
listed and OTC-listed companies held by the Company fall into held-for-trading and
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available-for-sale categories, respectively. Equity securities of non-listed and non-OTC
traded companies fall into available-for-sale category. The Company diversified its
investment and set investment limits for a single equity security to manage price risk of
equity securities. Portfolio information of equity securities is required to be regularly
reported to senior executives of the Company. The Board of Directors should authorize
the senior executives to review and approve the equity securities of all investment
decisions.
(5) Value at Risk
Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) is the maximum loss on the portfolio with a given probability
defined as the confidence level, over a given period of time. The Company uses 99%
VaR to measure the market risk over the next ten days.
VaR model must be able to reasonably and appropriately measure the maximum potential
risk of financial instruments and investment portfolio. VaR model used to manage risk
must perform model validation and back testing to show that the model can reasonably
and effectively measure the maximum potential risks of the financial instruments or
investment portfolio.
(6) Stress testing
The Company measures and evaluates potential risks of the occurrence of extreme and
abnormal events regularly in addition to Value at Risk models. Stress testing measures
the potential impact on the value of the investment portfolio when extreme fluctuations
of financial variables occur.
The Company performs position stress testing regularly by using “Simple Sensitivity”
and “Scenario Analysis” methods. The test is capable of representing the position loss
resulted from the movement of a specific risk factor under different kinds of historical
scenarios:
A. Simple Sensitivity
Simple Sensitivity measures the dollar amount change for the portfolio value from the
movement of specific risk factors.
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B. Scenario Analysis
Scenario Analysis measures the dollar amount changes for the total value of
investment positions if stress scenarios occur. The types of scenario include:
a. Historical scenario:
Adding fluctuating risk factors to a specific historical event, the Company
simulates what the dollar amount of losses for the current investment portfolio
would be in the same period of time.
b. Hypothetical scenario:
The Company makes hypothesis with rational expectations from the extreme
market movements to assess the dollar amount of losses for the investment
position by taking into consideration the movement of relevant risk factors.
Risk management department performs the stress testing with historical and
hypothetical scenarios regularly. The Company’s risk analysis, early warning, and
business management are in accordance with the stress testing report.
Summarization of Simple Sensitivity
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Risk Factors

Changes (+/-)

Equity risk (Stock index)

+1%

Interest rate risk (Yield curve)

+1BP

Exchange risk

+1%( USD for each

(Foreign exchange rate)

currency appreciates 1%)

Changes in income
(108)
934,426

Changes in equity
879,335
(367,189)
79,437

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Risk Factors

Changes (+/-)

Equity risk (Stock index)

+1%

Interest rate risk (Yield curve)

+1BP

Exchange risk

+1%( USD for each

(Foreign exchange rate)

currency appreciates 1%)

Changes in income
7,899
(250)
633,385

Changes in equity
879,094
(335,125)
48,232
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X. Assets and liabilities are classified based on expected recovery or settlement within 12
months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date:
2015.12.31

Item

Recovery or

Recovery or

settlement within

settlement more

12 months

than 12 months

Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$52,426,711

$-

$52,426,711

11,220,392

-

11,220,392

1,975,975

-

1,975,975

22,615

335,329

357,944

103,215,426

336,059,300

439,274,726

4,708,323

499,433,601

504,141,924

Held-to-maturity financial assets

-

42,124,302

42,124,302

Investment property

-

24,273,542

24,273,542

Loans

-

30,933,445

30,933,445

340,209

-

340,209

Property and equipment

-

6,988,198

6,988,198

Intangible assets

-

98,836

98,836

4,251,116

-

4,251,116

306,690

18,945,365

19,252,055

Receivables
Current tax assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for which no active
market exists

Reinsurance assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Separate account product assets
Total assets

64,962,278
$178,467,457

$959,191,918

$1,202,621,653

$8,055,698

$-

$8,055,698

3,984,347

-

3,984,347

27,451,875

998,261,077

1,025,712,952

Foreign exchange valuation reserve

-

7,695,824

7,695,824

Provision

-

277,491

277,491

Deferred tax liabilities

-

8,082,606

8,082,606

496,511

770,078

1,266,589

Liabilities
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Insurance liabilities

Other liabilities
Separate account product liabilities
Total liabilities

64,962,278
$39,988,431

$1,015,087,076

$1,120,037,785
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2014.12.31

Item

Recovery or

Recovery or

settlement within

settlement more

12 months

than 12 months

Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$61,223,512

$-

$61,223,512

14,384,897

-

14,384,897

1,326,043

-

1,326,043

993,595

612,231

1,605,826

104,060,058

331,232,494

435,292,552

1,850,179

438,157,264

440,007,443

Investment property

-

23,553,058

23,553,058

Loans

-

31,083,479

31,083,479

264,209

-

264,209

Property and equipment

-

6,973,988

6,973,988

Intangible assets

-

53,806

53,806

3,235,637

-

3,235,637

475,651

18,615,463

19,091,114

Receivables
Current tax assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for which no active
market exists

Reinsurance assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Separate account product assets
Total assets

69,172,331
$187,813,781

$850,281,783

$1,107,267,895

$9,999,089

$-

$9,999,089

5,847,792

-

5,847,792

31,772,979

902,417,745

934,190,724

Foreign exchange valuation reserve

-

5,263,545

5,263,545

Provision

-

266,651

266,651

Deferred tax liabilities

-

6,738,484

6,738,484

402,666

1,062,120

1,464,786

Liabilities
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Insurance liabilities

Other liabilities
Separate account product liabilities
Total liabilities

69,172,331
$48,022,526

$915,748,545

$1,032,943,402
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2014.1.1

Item

Recovery or

Recovery or

settlement within

settlement more

12 months

than 12 months

Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$112,702,457

$-

$112,702,457

11,169,076

-

11,169,076

936,683

-

936,683

1,408,585

527,006

1,935,591

81,864,065

345,841,981

427,706,046

6,785,563

284,098,851

290,884,414

Investment property

-

22,873,268

22,873,268

Loans

-

32,139,338

32,139,338

296,817

-

296,817

Property and equipment

-

5,663,139

5,663,139

Intangible assets

-

42,350

42,350

859,868

-

859,868

93,465

5,498,540

5,592,005

Receivables
Current tax assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for which no active
market exists

Reinsurance assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Separate account product assets
Total assets

64,800,681
$216,116,579

$696,684,473

$977,601,733

$5,628,375

$-

$5,628,375

3,008,375

-

3,008,375

11,104

-

11,104

16,820,592

814,210,631

831,031,223

446,490

-

446,490

Foreign exchange valuation reserve

-

2,773,740

2,773,740

Provision

-

237,795

237,795

Deferred tax liabilities

-

1,487,544

1,487,544

1,441,499

4,245,394

5,686,893

Liabilities
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Other financial liabilities
Insurance liabilities
Reserve for insurance contracts with feature of
financial instruments

Other liabilities
Separate account product liabilities
Total liabilities

64,800,681
$27,356,435

$822,955,104

$915,112,220
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XI. Capital management
The Company’s main objective of capital management is to make sure the risk-based capital
(RBC) ratio calculated in accordance with “Regulations Governing Capital Adequacy of
Insurance Companies” meets the ratio provided by the Insurance Act, to maintain a sound
capital structure to protect rights and interests of customers and shareholders.
The Company implements capital management mainly by monitoring the results of RBC report
to ensure its solvency.
.
XII. Related party transaction
Significant transactions with related party are as follows:
1. Key management personnel remuneration
For the years ended 31
December
2015

2014

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

$299,683
1,940

$237,736
1,842

Total

$301,623

$239,578

For more information about the key management personnel remuneration, please refer to the
shareholders' meeting annual report.
XIII. Pledged assets
1. As of 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, and 1 January 2014, details of pledged and
guaranteed assets are as follows:
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt instrument investments for
which no active market exists

$1,573,736

$1,499,381

$1,502,626

3,754,886

3,296,370

2,813,157

Total

$5,328,622

$4,795,751

$4,315,783
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2. Refundable deposits from above government bonds are as follows:
Item

2015.12.31

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

Insurance deposits
Litigation deposits

$5,309,535
19,087

$4,774,240
21,511

$4,295,982
19,801

Total

$5,328,622

$4,795,751

$4,315,783

XIV. Commitment and Contingencies
1. Operating lease commitment－the Company as the lessee
The commercial lease contracts for offices, vehicles and equipment signed by the Company
are within one to three years on average without renewal option. There is no restriction on
the Company in these contracts. Furthermore, the Company leases the land for 70 years by
creating surface right and the agreement is a non-cancellable operating lease.
In accordance with the non-cancellable operating lease, the total amount of the minimum
lease payment as at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, 1 January 2014 are as follows:
2015.12.31
Less than one year
More than one year but less than five
years
More than five years
Total

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$116,357

$80,187

$52,719

463,858
7,045,202

200,101
6,878,440

43,256
-

$7,625,417

$7,158,728

$95,975

The minimum lease payments of operating lease for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014 amounted to NT$60,531 thousand and NT$64,390 thousand, respectively.

2. Operating lease commitment－the Company as the lessor
The remaining period of commercial property lease contracts the Company signed are
within one year to eleven years, and most of these lease contracts contain terms about
adjusting rents according to market environment annually.
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In accordance with the non-cancellable operating lease, the total amount of the minimum
lease payment as at 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014, 1 January 2014 are as follows:
2015.12.31
Less than one year
More than one year but less than five
years
More than five years
Total

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$436,567

$414,508

$430,217

1,066,373
361,128

929,204
353,180

956,444
482,053

$1,864,068

$1,696,892

$1,868,714

XV. Significant disaster damages
None.
XVI. Significant subsequent events
None.
XVII. Other matters
1. Foreign currency financial assets and liabilities with significant influence as of 31 December
2015, 31 December 2014, 1 January 2014 are as follows:
2015.12.31
Foreign currency

Exchange rate
(dollar)

NTD

$16,062,025

$33.0660

$531,106,909

AUD

507,727

24.1613

12,267,335

CNH

8,293,310

5.0334

41,743,546

CNY

1,892,348

5.0921

9,635,936

352,656

33.0660

11,660,923

6,281,166

5.0921

31,984,323

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD

Non-monetary items
USD
CNY
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2015.12.31
Foreign currency

Financial Liabilities
Payables
USD
CNY

Exchange rate
(dollar)

NTD

1,033

32.8920

33,990

29,984

5.0788

152,284

2014.12.31

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD
AUD
NZD
CNH
Non-monetary items
USD
CNY
Financial Liabilities
Payables
USD
HKD

Foreign currency

Exchange rate
(dollar)

NTD

$13,203,438
785,588
324,542
8,090,203

$31.7180
25.9517
24.8479
5.1038

$418,783,937
20,387,333
8,064,193
41,290,780

274,759
4,737,107

31.7180
5.1125

8,714,820
24,218,461

50,650
29,843

31.9501
4.0869

1,618,275
121,964

2014.1.1

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD
AUD
NZD
CNY

Foreign currency

Exchange rate
(dollar)

NTD

$9,043,492
741,917
784,454
4,924,215

$29.9500
26.7094
24.5979
4.9440

$270,852,576
19,816,161
19,295,927
24,345,320
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2014.1.1
Exchange rate
(dollar)

Foreign currency

Non-monetary items
USD
CNY

357,529
2,932,943

29.9500
4.9472

NTD

10,707,981
14,509,857

The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of the foreign currencies,
which has been translated to the functional currency.
2. Participation of unconsolidated structured entities
As of 31 December 2015, interests in unconsolidated entities the Company holds are as
follows. The Company does not provide any financial or other support for these structured
entities. The estimated maximum exposure amount is the interests the Company holds.
Real estate
Private Equity

Real estate

Fund

investment trust

beneficiary

Total

certificate
Assets held by the Company
Available-for-sale financial assets

$553,316

$1,555,087

$-

$2,108,403

-

-

24,951,715

24,951,715

553,316

1,555,087

24,951,715

27,060,118

None

None

None

Debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists
The maximum exposure amount
Financial or other support provided
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3. Additional comparative information
The Company changed the subsequent measurement of investment property from cost to
fair value model in 2014. To improve the reliability and relevance of financial reporting, the
Company additionally discloses the balance sheet and notes on 1 January 2014 and lists
effects of changes for the years ended 31 December 2014 as follows:

Effects on the balance sheet
Increase in investment property
Increase in property and equipment
Increase in insurance liabilities - participating policy
dividend reserve
Increase in deferred tax liabilities
Increase in retained earnings
Increase in other equity

2014.12.31

2014.1.1

$10,215,850
378,848

$9,437,990
383,709

858,474
719,563
8,936,197
80,465

801,049
626,207
8,359,328
35,115

For the year ended
31 December 2014
Effects on the income statement
Increase in investment property profit or loss
Increase in changes in insurance liabilities
Decrease in operating expenses
Increase in income tax expenses
Increase in net income
Increase in other comprehensive income
Increase in comprehensive income
Increase in earnings per share

$616,907
57,425
107,957
(90,570)
576,869
45,350
622,219
0.17

XVIII. Information regarding investment in Mainland China
1. The Company set up China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (Taiwan) Beijing Representative
Office in Mainland China, which was approved by FSC on November 2004 and was
approved by the China Insurance Regulatory Commission in July 2005. The Beijing
representative office was officially established in August 2005.

China Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Notes to financial statements (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars except for share and per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2. The Company participated in the equity investment of Pacific-Antna Life Insurance
Company Ltd. in Mainland China authorized by FSC on 30 December 2010, and by the
Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEAIC) on 28 January
2011, and by the China Insurance Regulatory Commission on 6 April 2011.
The Company remitted US$ 58,775 thousand on 24 June 2011, completed settlement on
29 June 2011 and obtained 19.9% ownership. The Company shared 100% equity of
Pacific-Antna Life Insurance Company Ltd. with China Construction Bank and other
financial investors and used the channel and customer resources of China Construction
Bank to develop bank insurance business which is to ensure the Company successfully
enters the mainland market and increases the Company’s long-term value and
shareholders’ interests. Pacific-Antna Life Insurance Company Ltd. was renamed to CCB
Life Insurance Company Ltd. authorized by the China Insurance Regulatory Commission
on 7 June 2011.
The Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEAIC) authorized
the Company to increase capital of CCB Life Insurance Company Ltd. on 29 August
2011 and to remit US$11,844 thousand on 30 August 2011. The increased share capital
case was approved by China Insurance Regulatory Commission on 28 September 2011
and by Shanghai Administration for Industry and Commerce on 13 December 2011.
Moreover, the Company remitted US$179,070 thousand to increase share capital in June
2012, and this increased share capital case was approved by China Insurance Regulatory
Commission on 27 July 2012 and by Shanghai Administration for Industry and
Commerce on 5 November 2012.
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